
      
UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON D.C 20549-3010

February4 2008

Michael Sigal

Sidley Austin LLP

One South Dearborn

Chicago IL 60603

Re Pulte Homes Inc

Incoming letter dated December 28 2007

Dear Mr Sigal

This is in response to your letter dated December 28 2007 concerning the

shareholder proposal submitted to Pulte Homes by the AmalgamatedBank LongView

Collective Investment Fund Our response is attached to the enclosed photocopy of your

correspondence By doing this we avoid having to recite or summarize the facts set forth

in the correspondence Copies of all of the correspondence also will be provided to the

proponent

In connection with this matter your attention is directed to the enclosure which

sets forth brief discussion of the Divisions informal procedures regarding shareholder

proposals

Sincerely

Jonathan Ingram

Deputy Chief Counsel

Enclosures

cc Cornish Hitchcock

Attorney at Law

1200 Street NW
Suite 800

Washington DC 20005

DIVISION OF
CORPORATION FINANCE



February 2008

Response of the Office of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

Re Pulte Homes Inc

Incoming letter dated December 28 2007

The proposal requests that the board establish compliance committee to be

composed of independent directors that would conduct thorough review of the

companys regulatory litigation and compliance risks with respect to its mortgage

lending operations and would report to shareholders its findings and recommendations as

well as the progress made towards implementing those recommendations

There appears to be some basis for your view that Pulte Homes may exclude the

proposal under rule 14a-8i7 as relating to Pulte Homes ordinary business operations

i.e evaluation of risk Accordingly we will notTecommend enforcement action to the

Commission if Pulte Homes omits the proposal from its proxy materials in reliance on

rule 4a-8i7 In reaching this position we have not found it necessary to address the

alternative basis for omission upon which Pulte Homes relies

Sincerely

Greg Belliston

Special Counsel
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December 28 2007

By Federal Express

U.S Securities and Exchange Commission

Division of Corporation Finance

Office of General Counsel

100 Street N.E

Washington D.C 20549

Re Omission of Shareholder Proposal Submitted by the Amalgamated Bank

LongView Collective Investment Fund to Pulte Homes Inc

Ladies and Gentlemen

We are counsel to Pulte Homes Inc Pulte or the Company and on behalf of Pulte

we respectfully request that the staff of the Division of Corporation Finance the Staff concur

that it will not recommend enforcement action if Pulte omits shareholder proposal and

supporting statement the Proposal submitted by the Amalgamated Bank LongView

Collective Investment Fund the Proponent The Proponent seeks to include the Proposal in

Pultes proxy materials for the 2008 annual meeting of shareholders the 2008 Proxy The

Proposal requests Pulte to establish new Compliance Committee that would conduct review

of the Companys regulatory litigation and compliance risks with respect to its mortgage lending

operations and report to shareholders on the committees findings

Pulte received the Proponents Proposal dated December 2007 Pursuant to Rule 14a-

8j Pulte is submitting six paper copies of the Proposal and an explanation as to why Pulte

believes that it may exclude the Proposal copy is being submitted to the Proponent

simultaneously For your review we have attached copy of the Proposal as Appendix Pulte

appreciates the Staffs consideration and time spent reviewing this no action request

For purposes of our discussion key portion of the Proposal reads as follows

RESOLVED

The shareholders of Pulte Homes Inc Pulte or the Company request that

the board of directors establish new Compliance Committee to be composed of

independent directors that would conduct thorough review of the Companys

regulatory litigation and compliance risks with respect to its mortgage lending

Sidley Austin liP is limited liability partnership practicing in affihation with other Sidley Austin partnerships
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operations and report to shareholders within six months of the 2008 annual

meeting as to the committees findings and recommendations as well as the

progress made towards implementing those recommendations This report should

be prepared at reasonable cost and may omit confidential information

As described below the Company believes that the Proposal may be omitted because

it relates to the Companys ordinary business operations and ii it has been substantially

implemented

The Proposal Relates to Ordinary Business Operations Rule 14a-8i7

The Company believes that the Proposal may be omitted under Rule 14a-8i7 as

relating to Pultes ordinary business operations for two reasons First the Proposal asks Pulte

by establishing new committee that would report to shareholders to provide shareholders the

authority to step into the shoes of management in order to evaluate the regulatory litigation and

compliance risks of the Companys current mortgage lending operations Second the Proposal

calls on Pulte to supplant managements ordinary business judgment by allowing participation by

the Companys shareholders in the process of evaluating the progress made in implementing

recommendations with respect to such regulatory litigation and compliance risks relating to the

Companys mortgage lending operations

The Proposal asks the Company to form Compliance Committee of the Board of

Directors and produce risk assessment report concerning its mortgage lending operations and

related regulatory litigation and compliance risks to the Company Moreover the Proposal

focuses specifically on regulatory litigation and compliance risks to the Companys position by

stating that damage to long-term shareholder value may occur if the Company does not address

these risks

The Staff has previously adopted the position with respect to energy efficiency and public

health issues that shareholder proposals relating to internal assessments of risks or liabilities

relating to operations that may adversely affect the environment or the publics health are

properly excludable under rule 14a-8i7 In Staff Legal Bulletin No 14C SLB 14C
published on June 28 2005 the Staff set forth guidelines for companies seeking to preserve their

own managements ability to continue to make decisions affecting day-to-day operations

In pertinent part Section D.2 of SLB 14C states

To the extent that proposal and supporting statement focus on the company

engaging in an internal assessment of the risks or liabilities that the company

faces as result of its operations that may adversely affect the environment or the
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publics health we concur with the companys view that there is basis for it to

exclude the proposal under rule 14a-8i7 as relating to an evaluation of risk

Our understanding of the foregoing paragraph is that proposal letter that focuses solely

on the ordinary business matters of company including the assessment of risks facing the

company from various business decisions is excludable notwithstanding the fact that the

proposal also addresses significant energy efficiency or public health issues Moreover the Staff

has adopted similarposition with respect to shareholder proposals requesting risk assessment

report on company activities outside the context of energy efficiency and public health issues

Dean Foods Co Mar 2007 granting relief to exclude under Rule 14a-8i7

proposal requesting that an independent committee of the board of directors review the

companys policies and procedures with respect to the companys organic dairy products and

report to shareholders on the adequacy of such policies and procedures to protect the companys

reputation and address consumer and media criticism of the companys production and sourcing

practices Abbott Laboratories Mar 2006 granting relief to exclude under Rule 14a-8i7

proposal requesting report on the economic impact of the HIV/AIDS tuberculosis and

malaria pandemics on the company Newmont Mining Corp Jan 12 2006 granting relief to

exclude under Rule 14a-8i7 proposal requesting report on the companys existing

Indonesian operations which were the subject of criminal prosecution including associated

financial and reputational risks and Cinergy Corp Feb 2003 granting relief to exclude

under Rule 14a-8i7 proposal requesting report on economic risks caused by the

companys operations

In our judgment the Staffs reasoning in granting no-action relief in the aforementioned

letters is equally applicable to the Proposal and the Proposal is excludable because it focuses

solely on the Companys mortgage lending operations which are part of its ordinary business

operations and the assessment of risks facing the Company from various business judgments

with respect to such operations The Proposal requests the Company to conduct thorough

review of the Companys regulatory litigation and compliance risks and the supporting

statement clearly indicates that the reason to do so is to avoid or mitigate the conflict of interest

that may occur if home builders mortgage affiliate issues mortgages to home buyers who may

not be able to repay their obligations The supporting statement further states Given the

current public scrutiny of homebuilders and their business practices we believe that it is

important for new board committee to undertake thorough investigation of the Companys

practices in this area and to avoid or mitigate any conflicts that might arise Moreover the

supporting statement expresses concern about the damage to long-term shareholder value that

can result from litigation regulatory costs and reputational injury All of these items clearly

indicate focus on the Companys internal risks as opposed to an overall social policy issue

These clearly are matters of business judgment
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Even before the issuance of SLB 14C the Staff had granted no action relief under Rule

14a-8i7 in cases where proponent requested an evaluation of risk from company In one

such no action request Willamette Industries Inc Mar 20 2001 the Staff granted no action

relief under Rule 14a-8i7 where the proponent requested that an independent committee of

the board prepare report on the companys environmental problems and efforts to resolve them

including an assessment of financial risk due to environmental issues In the Willamette letter

the company argued that compliance with federal state and local environmental laws and

regulations was matter that related to ordinary business operations The company also

highlighted that such report would interfere with its day-to-day operations Similarly the

Proposal at issue here references existing state and federal laws affecting home builders and

mortgage originators as well as the possibility of new regulations Like the proposal in

Willamette the business judgment exercised by Pulte concerning regulatory risk is inappropriate

for consideration by Pultes shareholders as group

Finally Pulte believes the Proposal is distinguishable from the proposal in Beazer Homes

USA Inc Nov 30 2007 where the Staff recently denied no-action relief The proposal in

Beazer requested disclosure relating to the companys mortgage practices to supplement the

disclosure already made available by the Company in its publicly-filed financial statements

including the companys potential losses or liabilities relating to its mortgage operations and

an analysis of the companys mortgage originations by specific type of mortgage the geographic

markets that are most reliant upon specific types of mortgages and the number of non-performing

loans the company expects it will have to repurchase during the current and upcoming fiscal

year among other metrics In contrast to the proposal in Beazer the Proposal does not request

additional specific disclosures about Pultes mortgage lending operations and portfolio but

instead focuses on internal risk analysis relating to the Companys mortgage lending operations

which as discussed below the Staff has on numerous occasions found to relate to the

Companys ordinary business operations and be excludable pursuant to Rule 14a-8i7

Additionally certain unique circumstances that are applicable to Beazer cited by the proponent

as extraordinary challenges facing Beazer including the internal investigation being conducted

by Beazers Audit Committee and independent legal counsel the late filing of Beazers quarterly

report the necessity of restatement of its recent financial statements and the allegations of

federal securities law violations among other things are not at all applicable to Pulte There are

no extraordinary challenges in Pultes case that would warrant characterizing proposal that

relates to ordinary business operations as transcending day-to-day business matters

Based on the foregoing Pulte respectfully urges the Staff to concur that the Proponents

mortgage lending risk assessment proposal may be excluded

II The Proposal Falls Within the Staffs Precedent as Proposal Which May be

Omitted Because it Has Been Substantially Implemented
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Rule 14a-8i10 permits exclusion of shareholder proposal if the company has

already substantially implemented the proposal According to the Securities and Exchange

Commission the exclusion provided in Rule 14a-8i10 is designed to avoid the possibility of

shareholders having to consider matters which have already been favorably acted upon by the

management Exchange Act Release No 12598 Jul 1976

When company can demonstrate that it has already adopted policies or taken actions to

address each element of shareholder proposal the Staff has concurred that the proposal has

been substantially implemented and may be excluded as moot $.ç Nordstrom Inc Feb

1995 proposal that the company commit to code of conduct for its overseas suppliers that

was substantially covered by existing company guidelines was excludable as moot
The Gap Inc Mar 1996 The substantially implemented standard replaced the

predecessor rule allowing omission of proposal that was moot and reflects the Staffs

interpretation of the predecessor rule that the proposal need not be fully effected by the

company to meet the mootness test so long as it was substantially implemented Exchange

Act Release No 34-2009 Aug 16 1983

The Company believes that the Proposal has been substantially implemented and that it

may properly omit the Proposal from its Proxy Statement in accordance with Rule 14a-8i10
The Proposal calls for the Company to establish new Compliance Committee to review the

Companys regulatory litigation and compliance risks with respect to its mortgage lending

operations and report to shareholders as to the committees findings Pulte believes the Proposal

to be substantially implemented based on Pultes existing processes for establishing policies and

procedures with respect to the Companys mortgage lending operations which processes have

been carefully developed by the Company under the supervision of its Board of Directors

Pultes subsidiary Pulte Mortgage LLC Pulte Mortgage has dedicated legal and

compliance department which establishes policies and procedures governing the Companys

mortgage lending operations including policies and procedures relating to loan terms and

underwriting standards and the evaluation and mitigation of risks associated with the Companys

mortgage lending operations Compliance with these policies and procedures is regularly

audited by internal and external teams and audit results are reported to and overseen by various

committees comprised of senior Company officers including the Companys Chief Financial

Officer Additionally the Companys Board of Directors including its outside directors already

reviews as it deems appropriate Pulte Mortgages policies and procedures and the results of

compliance audits Based on these existing processes policies and procedures together with the

Board of Directors oversight the Company believes the Proposal has been substantially

implemented

Moreover the Proposal specifically focuses on the conflict of interest that may occur if

home builders mortgage affiliate issues mortgages to home buyers who may not be able to

repay their obligations Higher risk loans made to borrowers with problematic credit histories



5101EV AUSTIN LLP

SIDLEY

U.S Securities and Exchange Commission

December 28 2007

Page

or limited ability to repay oflen referred to as sub-prime loans have received significant

media coverage and public attention relating to the recent adverse changes in housing and

mortgage markets Similarly Alt-A loans are generally recognized as loans accompanied by

higher risk of default Sub-prime and Alt-A loans account for only very small portion of

Pultes lending operations as disclosed in Pultes recent periodic reports filed with the

Commission due in large part to Pultes existing mortgage lending policies and procedures For

example Pulte defines sub-prime loans as first mortgages with FICO scores below 620 and Alt-

loans as non-full documentation first mortgages with FICO scores of 620 or higher As

disclosed in Pultes Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

November 2007 only approximately 4% and 11% respectively of the loans the Company

originated in the third quarter of 2007 were considered sub-prime loans and Alt-A loans Pulte

believes that these figures demonstrate that the Company has already adopted policies that

address the Proposals concern surrounding mortgages made to borrowers who may not be able

to repay their obligations

Staffs Response

Pursuant to Staff Legal Bulletin 14C in order to facilitate transmission of the Staffs

response to our request during the highest volume period of the shareholder proposal season our

facsimile number is 312 853-7036 and the facsimile number for the Proponents representative

is 202 315-3552 Further in appreciation of the Staffs work during the height of the proxy

season we have included photocopies of all no-action letters cited in this no action request as

Appendix

Based on the foregoing the Company respectfully requests the Staffs concurrence that

the Proposal may be omitted and that it will not recommend enforcement action if the Proposal is

excluded from the 2008 Proxy

If you have any questions or need any additional information please contact the

undersigned We appreciate your attention to this request

Very truly yours

Michael Sigal
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cc Mr Comish Hitchcock

Attorney at Law

1200 Street N.W
Suite 800

Washington D.C 20005

Mr Steven Cook

Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

Pulte Homes Inc

100 Bloomfield Hills Parkway

Suite 300

Bloomfield Hills Michigan 48304



Appendix
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CORNISH HITCHCOCK
ATTORNEY AT LAW

1200 STREET NW SUITE 800

WASHINGTON D.C 20005

202 489-4813 FAx 202 31 5-3552

CONH@HITCHLAW.COM

December 2007

Mr Steven Cook

Corporate Secretary

Pulte Homes Inc

100 Bloomfield Hills Parkway Suite 300

Bloomfielcl Hills Michigan 48304

Via courier

Dear Mr Cook

On behalf of the Amalgamated Bank LongView Collective Investment Fund

the Fund submit the enclosed shareholder proposal for inclusion in the proxy

statement that Pulte Homes Inc plans to circulate to shareholders in anticipation

of the 2008 annual meeting The proposal is being submitted under SEC Rule 14a-8

and relates to the composition of the board of directors

The Fund is an SP 500 index fund located at 275 Seventh Avenue New

York N.Y 10001 The Fund has beneficially owned more than $2000 worth of

Pulte Homes common stock for more than year letter confirming ownership is

being submitted under separate cover The Fund plans to continue ownership

through the date of the 2008 annual meeting which representative is prepared to

attend

If you require any additional information please let me know

Very truly yours

Cornish Hitchcock



RESOLVED The shareholders of Pulte Homes Inc Pulte or the Com
pany iequest that the board of threctois estabhsh new Compliance Committee

to be composed of independent directors that would conduct thorough review of

the Companys regulatory litigation and compliance risks with respect to its

mortgage lending operations and report to shareholders within six months of the

2008 annual meeting as to the committees findings and recommendations as well

as the progress made towards implementing those recommendations This report

should be prepared at reasonable cost and may omit confidential information

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

The recent turmoil in the housing and mortgage markets has wiped out

biffions of dollars in shareholder value at housing-related companies During the

first eleven months of 2007 Pulte stock lost approximately 70% of its value and

performed below the SP Homebuilding Index

In its August 13 2007 issue BUSINESs WEEK suggested that certain business

practices among the nations largest homebuilders particularly within their

mortgage or financing affiliates may have contributed to the recent collapse of the

mortgage and housing markets specific concern is the conflict of interest that

may occur if home builders mortgage affiliate issues mortgages to home buyers

who may not be able to repay their obligations

Concerns about housing financing practices have prompted calls for more

regulatory and legislative action as well as litigation Reports in the news media

indicate an increased interest by state and federal regulators in enforcing existing

laws affecting home builders and mortgage originators with possibility of new

regulations In addition some Members of Congress have indicated an interest in

imposing fiduciary obligation on originators and possibly placing non-bank

lenders under federal oversight At the state level legislatures in number of

states are considering measures that target deceptive lending foreclosure or fraud

Litigation is also pending under the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act

the Truth in Lending Act and the Home Ownership Equity Protection Act as well

as state anti-predatory lending statues

In October 2007 Pulte was one of six home builders who paid total of $1.4

million to settle federal investigation into whether those companies accepted

rebates from insurers for referrals when selling homes Pulte has denied any

wrongdoing

As shareholders we are concerned about the damage to long-term share-

Page of



holder value that can res.u1t from litigation regulatory costs and reputational injury

at companies that lack adequate compliance procedures and active oversight by the

board Although the board currently has an Audit Committee that committees

focus appears to be on financial reporting Given the current public scrutiny of

homebuilders and their business practices we believe that it is important for new
board committee to undertake thorough investigation of the Companys practices

in this area and to avoid or mitigate any confficts that might arise

We urge you to vote FOR this proposal

Page of
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certain supporting materials omitted
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON D.C 20549-3010

OMSION OF
CORPORATION FINANCE

March 2006

John Beny

Divisional Vice President

Securities and Benefits

Domestic Legal Operations Act
__________________________

Abbott Laboratories
Sectiot______________________

100 Abbott Park Road
RuIe

Abbott Park IL 60064-6001
Public

Re Abbott Laboratories Availability_________________

Incoming letter dated December 29 2005

Dear Mr Berry

This is in response to your letter dated December 29 2005 concerning the

shareholder proposal submitted to Abbott by the New York Province of the Society of

Jesus Christian Brothers Investment Services Inc the Benedictine Sisters of Mount St

Scholastica the Missouri Province of the Society of Jesus the Upper Canada Province of

the Society of Jesus the Maryknoll Sisters of St Dominic Inc the Dominican Sisters of

Oxford MI the Sisters of St Francis of Philadelphia the Dominican Sisters of

Springfield IL Trinity Health the Missionary Oblates of Mary Immaculate the

Wisconsin Province of the Society of Jesus The Sisters of Charity of Saint Elizabeth the

Holy Cross Province of the Congregation of the Passion the Sisters of St Joseph of

LaGrange the California Province of the Society of Jesus the Sisters of Charity of the

Blessed Virgin Mary the Unitarian Universalist Association Amalgamated Long View

Collective Investment Fund ASC Investment Group the Detroit Province of the Society

of Jesus the Chicago Province of the Society of Jesus the Society of Jesus of New

England the Presbyterian Church USA the New Orleans Province of the Society of

Jesus the Dominican Sisters of Great Bend KS the Maryland Province of the Society of

Jesus Creighton University the New York Province of the Society of Jesus and the

Benedictine Sisters Charitable Trust Our response is attached to the enclosed photocopy

of your correspondence By doing this we avoid having to recite or summarize the facts

set forth in the correspondence Copies of all of the correspondence also will be provided

to the proponents
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In connection with this matter your attention is directed to the enclosure which

sets forth brief discussion of the Divisions informal procedures regarding shareholder

proposals

Sincerely

Eric Finseth

Attorney-Adviser

Enclosures

cc New York Province of the Society of Jesus

and co-proponents

Sister Doris Gormley SFCC

Socially Responsible Investment Consultant

Jesuit Conference The Society of Jesus in the United States

1616 Street NW Suite 300

Washington DC 20036-1405

Julie Tanner

Corporate Advocacy Coordinator

Christian Brothers Investment Services Inc

90 Park Avenue 29th Floor

New York NY 10016-1301

SØamus Finn OMI
Director

Justice Peace and Integrity of Creation Office

Missionary Oblates of Mary Immaculate

391 Michigan Avenue NE
Washington DC 20017

Sister Rosemary Moynihan SC

Coordinator of Corporate Responsibility

The Sisters of Charity of Saint Elizabeth

P.O Box 476

Convent Station NJ 07961-0476

Jerry Gabert

Treasurer and Vice President of Finance

Unitarian Universalist Association of Congregations

23 Beacon Street

Boston MA 02108
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cc Cornish Hitchcock

5301 Wisconsin Avenue NW Suite 350

Washington DC 20015-2015

Rev Thomas Regan S.J Provincial

Society of Jesus of New England

85 School Street

Watertown MA 02472-4251

Vicki Cummings
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer

Sisters of Mercy of the Americas

Administration

2300 Adeline Drive

Burlingame CA 94010-5599
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Response of the Office of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

Re Abbott Laboratories

Incoming letter dated December 29 2005

The proposal requests that the board of directors review and report to shareholders

on the economic effects of the HI V/AIDS tuberculosis and malaria pandemics on the

companys business strategy and initiatives to date

There appears to be some basis for your view that Abbott may exclude the

proposal under rule 14a-8i7 as relating to Abbotts ordinary business operations

i.e evaluation of risk Accordingly we will not recommend enforcement action to the

Commission if Abbott omits the proposal from its proxy materials in reliance on

rule 14a-8i7 In reaching this position we have not found it necessary to address the

alternative basis for omission upon which Abbott relies

Sincerely

Mark Vilardo

Special Counsel



ABBOrF LABORATORIES TCcjVi-j
100 Abbott Park Road

Abbott Park IL 60064-6011 OEC 30 PH J7

crL

December 29 2005

By Messenger

Securities and Exchange Commission

Division of Corporation Finance

Office of Chief Counsel

100 Street N.E

Washington D.C 20549

Re Abbott Laboratories Shareholder Proposal Submitted by
New York Province of the Society of Jesus received November and November 28

2005

Christian Brothers Investment Services Inc received November and November 29

2005

Benedictine Sisters of Mount St Scholastica Inc received November and

November 28 2005

Jesuits of the Missouri Province received November and November 29 2005

Upper Canada Province of the Society of Jesus received November 10 and

November 242005

Maryknoll Sisters of Saint Dominic Inc received November 14 and November 28

2005

The Dominican Sisters of Oxford Michigan received November 14 and

November 28 2005

The Sisters of St Francis of Philadelphia received November 14 and November 28

2005

The Dominican Sisters of Springfield Illinois received November 14 and

November 28 2005

Trinity Health received November 14 and November 28 2005

The United States Province of Missionary Oblates of Mary Immaculate received

November 14 and November 30 2005

Wisconsin Province of the Society of Jesus received November 15 and

November 28 2005

The Sisters of Charity of Saint Elizabeth received November 15 and November 29

2005

Congregation of the Passion Holy Cross Province received November 16 and

November 28 2005

Sisters of St Joseph of LaGrange received November 16 and November 28 2005

California Province of the Society of Jesus received November 16 and November 29
2005

13294225 91947408



Sisters of Charity of the BVM received November 16 and December 2005

Unitarian Universalist Association of Congregations received November 16 and

December 2005

Amalgamated Bank Long View Collective Investment Fund received November 17

and November 28 2005

ASC In vestment Group received November 17 and November 28 2005

Detroit Province Jesuits received November 17 and November 28 2005

Chicago Province of the Society of Jesus received November 17 and November 30

2005

Society of Jesus of New England received November 17 and November 30 2005

Board of Pensions of the Presbyterian Church USA received November 18 and

December 2005

New Orleans Province of the Society of Jesus received November 18 and November

28 2005

Nuns of the Third Order of St Dominic received November 18 and November 28

2005

The Maryland Province of the Society of Jesus received November 18 and

November 29 2005

Creighton University received November 18 and December 2005

Sisters of Mercy of the Americas received November 18 and December 2005

Benedictine Sisters Charitable Trust received November 28 and December 2005

Ladies and Gentlemen

On behalf of Abbott Laboratories and pursuant to Rule 14a-8j under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 hereby request confirmation that the Staff of the Securities and

Exchange Commission will not recommend enforcement action if in reliance on Rule 14a-8 we

exclude proposal submitted by the proponents listed above from the proxy materials for

Abbotts 2006 annual shareholders meeting which we expect to file in definitive form with the

Commission on or about March 21 2006

We received notices on behalf of proponents listed above the first of which was received

on November 2005 submitting the proposal for consideration at our 2006 annual

shareholders meeting The proposal and supporting statement copy of which is attached as

Exhibit the Proposal read as follows

REPORT RELATED TO GLOBAL LILY/AIDS-TB-MALARIA PANTEMLCS

Resolved

Shareholders request that our Board review the economic effects of the

HIV/AIIDS Tuberculosis and Malaria pandemics on our Companys business

strategy and its initiatives to date and report to shareholders within six

months following the 2006 annual meeting This report developed at reasonable

Each proponent submitted an identical proposal

1329422591947408



costs and omitting proprietary information will identify the impacts of these

pandemics on the company

IMPACT OF THE PANDEMICS ON ABBOTT LABORATORIES

We believe that IllV/AIDS Tuberculosis TB and Malaria could have

profound impact on companies like Abbott Laboratories which produce products

essential to combating infectious disease This report
would improve our ability

to evaluate our investment

The Pharmaceutical Shareowners Group of large institutional investors recently

asked Has the sector gone far enough and answered The public health crisis

in emerging markets is going to become bigger challenge year on year We did

not hear convincing story that the sector is ready for this i.e that it has

proactive coherent and forward-looking approach for adapting to these new

realities which is linked to overall business strategy This may leave the sector

exposed in the future

Growth of the pharmaceutical industry depends on maintaining license to

operate including intellectual property protections This is especially true in so-

called BRIC countries Brazil Russia India and China

However the HI V/AIDS-TB-Malaria pandemics have the potential to undermine

intellectual property protections because developing countries may perceive

those protections at odds with combating HitV/AIlS and other diseases

The Council on Foreign Relations adds Widening gaps in access to anti-HIV

drugs have become pivotal sources of global political anger It concluded

American firms have taken the brunt of the blame and been the target of special

anger

SCOPE OF THE PANDEMICS

Globally over six millionpeople with AIDS need treatment or they will die with

the crisis most acute in Africa and growing rapidly in BRIC countries In China

UNAIDS projects 10 million infections by 2010 Stephen Roach Morgan

Stanleys Chief Economist wrote in June 2004 that all the economic growth in

the world cannot possibly compensate for the devastation China would face if

IJNAIDSJ projections were to come to pass

Advancements in treating those living with AIDS have been made Yet only 15%

of those in clinical need are on treatment

Children with AIDS have huge unmet medical needs Over half of all children

with AIDS die before they are two years old Two million children are infected

and need care and treatment
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REPORTING TO SHAREHOLDERS

Surveys of pharmaceutical industry reporting on HIV/AIDS-TB-Malaria have

noted since reporting is not systematic or linked to discussions of investment

value this makes it difficult for investors to assess whether companies are

effectively optimizing opportunities
and minimizing risks

Our company provides limited information on products and charitable programs

However it does not disclose HI V/AIDS-TB-Malarias impact on our business

strategy This additional information is vital to making informed investment

decisions

We urge shareholders to vote FOR this resolution

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8j have enclosed six copies of the Proposal and this letter

which sets forth the grounds upon which we deem omission of the Proposal to be proper have

also enclosed copy of all relevant correspondence exchanged with the proponents as well as

copy of each of the no-action letters referred to herein Pursuant to Rule 14a-8j copy of this

letter is being sent to notify the proponents of our intention to omit the Proposal from our 2006

proxy materials

We believe that the Proposal may be properly omitted from Abbotts 2006 proxy

materials pursuant to Rule 14a-8 for the reasons set forth below

The Proposal may be properly omitted under Rule 14a-8i12iii because it deals

with substantially the same subject matter as prior proposals that were included in

our 20022004 and 2005 proxy materials and when previously submitted the

proposal did not receive the support necessary for resubmission

Rule 14a-8i12iii permits the exclusion of shareholder proposal dealing with

substantially the same subject matter as another proposal or proposals that has or have been

previously included in the companys proxy materials within the preceding calendar years and

the proposal received less than 10% of the vote on its last submission to shareholders if

proposed three times or more previously within the preceding calendar years..

We included proposal the 2002 Proposal in our 2002 proxy materials filed on

March 122002 which requested our board of directors to develop and implement policy to

provide pharmaceuticals for the prevention and treatment of HIV/AJTS TB and Malaria in ways

that the majority of infected persons in African nations can afford copy of the 2002 Proposal

is attached hereto as Exhibit In addition at the request of The Maryland Province of the

Society of Jesus current proponent and an affiliate of several of the other current proponents

we included proposals in our 2004 and 2005 proxy materials in which the actions the board was

requested to take are identical to the Proposal and the substance of the supporting statements are

the same the 2004 and 2005 Proposals and together with the 2002 Proposal the Previous

Proposals Copies of the 2004 and 2005 Proposals as they appeared in our 2004 and 2005

proxy materials are attached hereto as Exhibit and Exhibit respectively The Proposal and

the Previous Proposals are substantially similarfor purposes of Rule 14a-8i12 since the
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substantive concerns of all four proposals are the REV/AIDS tuberculosis and malaria

pandemics

Substantially the same subject matter as that phrase is used in Rulel4a-8i12 does

not mean that the Previous Proposals and the Proposal must be exactly the same Although the

predecessor to Rule 14a-8i12 required proposal to be substantially the same proposal as

prior proposals the Commission amended the rule in 1983 In SEC Release No 34-20091

August 16 1983 the Commission explained the reason for and meaning of the revision

stating

The Commission believes that this change is necessary to signal clean break

from the strict interpretive position applied to the existing provision The

Commission is aware that the interpretation of the new provision will continue to

involve difficult subjective judgments but anticipates that those judgments will

be based upon consideration of the substantive concerns raised by proposal

rather than the specific language or actions proposed to deal with those concerns

While the Staff initially seemed to take very restrictive view of the current versionS of

Rule 14a-8i12 see e.g Procter Gamble Co July 27 1988 more recently the Staff has

made it clear that Rule 14a-8i12 does not require that the proposals or their subject matters

be identical in order for company to exclude the later-submitted proposal When considering

whether proposal deals with substantially the same subject matter the Staff has increasingly

focused on the substantive concerns raised by the proposal as the essential consideration

rather than the specific language or corporate action proposed to be taken The Staff has thus

concurred with the exclusion of proposals under Rule 14a-8i12 when the proposal in question

shares similar underlying social or policy issues with prior proposal even if the subsequent

proposal recommended that the company take different actions

For example in Bristol-Myers Squibb Co February 1996 the Staff permitted

exclusion of proposal recommending that the board of directors form committee to formulate

an educational plan to inform women of the possible abortifacient abortion-causing effects of

any of the companys products because it dealt with substantially the same subject matter as

prior proposals asking the company to refrain from giving charitable contributions to

organizations that perform abortions Despite the different actions requested and the different

subject matters of the prior proposals charitable contributions and the proposal at issue

consumer education the substantive concern of both proposals was abortion-related matters

thus the Staff concluded that the proposal at issue dealt with substantially the same subject

matter as the proposals regarding the companys charitable contributions

More recently in both Medtronic Inc June 2005 and Bank of America Corp

February 25 2005 the Staff permitted the omission of proposals requesting that the companies

list all of their political and charitable contributions on their websites In prior proposals

shareholders had requested that the companies cease making charitable contributions Again

despite the different actions requested and the different subject matters of the prior proposals

ceasing contributions and the proposals at issue disclosure of contributions the substantive

concern of both proposals was corporate contributions and thus the Staff concluded that the

proposals at issue dealt with substantially the same subject matter See also Dow Jones Co
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inc December 17 2004 proposal requesting the company publish in its proxy materials

infotmation relating to its process of donations to particular non-profit organization was

excludable as it dealt with substantially the same subject matter as prior proposal requesting an

explanation of the procedures governing all charitable donations Saks inc March 2004

proposal requesting the board of directors to implement code of conduct based on International

Labor Organization standards establish an independent monitoring process and annually report

on adherence to such code was excludable as it dealt with substantially the same subject matter

as prior proposal requesting report on the companys vendor labor standards and compliance

mechanism Bristol-Myers Squibb Co February 11 2004 proposal requesting the board

review pricing and marketing policies and prepare report on how the company will respond to

pressure to increase access to prescription drugs was excludable because it dealt with

substantially the same subject matter as prior proposals requesting the creation and

implementation of policy of price restraint on pharmaceutical products But see Win Wrigley

Jr Company December 13 2004 dealing with two proposals to add against to the proxy

card the Staffs response in this instance may reflect the inclusion in the earlier but not the later

proposal of request to also remove managements discretionary voting authority where signed

proxies did not specify vote

The Proposal as well as the 2004 and 2005 Proposals requests that Abbott review and

report on the economic effects of the IIIV/AIDS tuberculosis and malaria pandemics while the

2002 Proposal requested that Abbott develop and implement policy to provide affordable

pharmaceuticals for the prevention and treatment of these diseases Despite the different actions

requested by the proposals all four of the proposals deal with the same substantive concern and

thus substantially the same subject matter the HIV/AIDS tuberculosis and malaria pandemics

and Abbotts response to them Based on our examination of the supporting statements for each

proposal it is clear that the substantive concerns raised by the proposals are the same

responding to the HIV/AIDS tuberculosis and malaria pandemics particularly in developing

countries Each supporting statement discusses the prevalence of these diseases especially

lilY/AIDS in developing countries and argues that Abbott must take action relating to these

pandemics Although the action Abbott is requested to make in the 2002 Proposal is different

from the action requested in the current Proposal and the 2004 and 2005 Proposals the

substantive concern in all four proposals is the same thus their subject matters are substantially

similar for purposes of Rule 14a-8i12iii

As evidenced in Exhibit the 2005 proposal received 6.9% of the vote at our 2005

annual meeting of shareholders.2 Since the 2005 proposal failed to meet the required 10%

threshold at the 2005 annual meeting of shareholders and the other rule requirements are

satisfied the Proposal may be excluded from the 2006 proxy materials under Rule 14a-

8i12iii

2Tabulation is as follows votes cast for 71234106 and votes cast against 960516598 Pursuant to the Staffs

position on counting votes for purposes of Rule 14a-8iXl2 abstentions and broker non-votes were not included for

purposes of the calculation See Staff Legal Bulletin No 14 Question F.4 July 13 2001
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II The Proposal may be properly omitted because it relates to the conduct of our

ordinary business operations within the meaning of Rule 14a-8i7

Rule 14a-8i7 permits registrant to exclude proposal that deals with matters relating

to the conduct of the registrants ordinary business The purpose of Rule 14a-8iX7 is to

allow companies to exclude shareholder proposals that deal with ordinary business on which

shareholders as group would not be qualified to make an informed judgment due to their

lack of business expertise and their lack of intimate knowledge of the issuers business SEC

Release No 34-12999 November 22 1976 The Commission further stated in its Release

accompanying the 1998 amendments to Rule 14a-8 that the purpose of Rule 14a-8i7 is to

confine the resolution of ordinary business problems to management and the board of directors

since it is impracticable for shareholders to decide how to solve such problems at an annual

shareholders meeting SEC Release No 34-40018 May 21 1998 the 1998 Release The

1998 Release outlined two central considerations underlying this policy for exclusion and as

described below we believe that the Proposal implicates both considerations and therefore

should be excludable pursuant to Rule 14a-8i7

First the Commission stated that tasks are so fundamental to managements

ability to run company on day-to-day basis that they could not as practical matter be

subject to direct shareholder oversight and such proposals may therefore be excluded Several

examples of such activities were provided including management of the companys workforce

production decisions and retention of suppliers We believe that the Proposal relates to such

activities

Abbott is broad-based health care company that discovers develops manufactures and

markets health care products and services We serve customers in more than 130 countries with

staff of over 60000 employees at more than 100 manufacturing distribution research and

development and other locations world-wide including the countries and regions mentioned in

the Proposal Brazil Russia India China several countries in Africa and other developing

countries

In making Abbotts production purchasing operational and investment decisions

Abbotts management regularly considers wide variety of business and economic risks that

may affect Abbotts operations and the viability of the potential investment including the

volume and growth potential of local market that will consume Abbotts products the

availability of local patent protections for Abbotts products and the risks involved with losing

such protection the quality and size of local workforce and the capacity and stability of local

distributors and suppliers
that are integral to Abbotts international operations Abbott is

continually obliged to plan for variety of contingencies affecting its products The effects of

HTV/AIDS tuberculosis and malaria as well as many other diseases may bear directly on all of

these considerations and therefore are already taken into account with host of other complex

factors by Abbotts management in making production purchasing operational and investment

decisions in the ordinary course of business

The second consideration cited by the Commission was the degree to which the proposal

seeks to micro-manage the company by probing too deeply into matters of complex nature

upon which shareholders as group would not be in position to make an informed judgment
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The Commission elaborated on this consideration saying that there would more likely be basis

for excluding proposals that would be unduly onerous or intrusive with respect to a-companys

ordinary business operations including those proposals involving intricate detail or seeking to

impose specific time-frames or methods for implementing complex policies We believe that

actions requested by the Proposal would constitute such an undue intrusion upon our ordinary

business operations

The nature and structure of Abbotts business involving manufacturing distribution and

research and development in numerous countries around the world are extremely complex As

result Abbott is forced to review constantly its operations to manage broad spectrum of risks

none of which can readily be isolated from other factors Although the Proposal seems to be

based on the premise that the economic effects of HI V/AIDS tubereulosis and malaria on

Abbotts business can be meaningfully considered in isolation the complexity of Abbotts

international operations makes such individual consideration inherently problematic if not

impossible Consequently shareholder review of these economic effects almost inevitably will

involve shareholders in scrutinizing variety of daily decisions made by Abbott in managing its

international operations Abbotts shareholders being as group less familiar with the other

considerations that must bear on Abbotts decision-making than is Abbotts management are not

in position to be able either to place the -risks Proposal in appropriate

perspective or to make an informed decision about their effects on Abbott As such the

intrusiveness of the actions contemplated by the Proposal with respect to the day-to-day

deliberative processes of Abbotts management far outweighs any theoretical benefit that might

be gained from shareholder oversight as to single factor in Abbotts decision making

Abbotts view of the Proposal is consistent with recent guidance provided by the Staff on

similar proposals and in Staff Legal Bulletin No 14C June 28 2005 In February 2004 and

again earlier this year the Staff concurred that proposals virtually identical -to the Proposal could

be excluded pursuant to Rule 14a-8i7 In American International Group Inc February 19

2004 the Staff agreed that there was some basis for AIGs view that the proposal was

excludable because it focused on AIGs evaluation of risks in overseas markets which was

fundamental function of management Likewise in Texas Instruments Inc January 28 2005

the Staff found that there was some basis for excluding the proposal as relating to Texas

Instruments ordinary business operations i.e evaluation of risks The Staff has similarly

pennitted exclusion in cases involving analogous proposals relating to various subjects on the

grounds that the proposals entailed an assessment by management of benefits and risks See

e.g The Dow Chemical Company February 232005 allowing exclusion of proposal requiring

report on environmental problems Wachovia Corporation January 28 2005 allowing

exclusion of proposal requiring report on effects of global warming on the registrants business

But see the Staffs earlier response in Johnson Johnson February 2003 in which the Staff

did not concur that Johnson Johnson could omit shareholder proposal on the HIV/AIDS

tuberculosis and malaria pandemics pursuant to Rule 14a-8i7 Unlike the Johnson Johnson

proposal however which sought to have the board of directors establish and implement

standards of response to the HIV/AIDS tuberculosis and malaria pandemics in developing

countries the Proposal requests that the board review the economic effects of these pandemics

on Abbotts business strategy and thus seeks an evaluation of risks by Abbott that is analogous

and in the case of AIG and Texas Instruments virtually identical to those sought in the MG
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Texas Instruments Dow and Wachovia requests The analysis applied in these later requests

subsequent to Johnson Johnson should therefore apply to the Proposal

Finally the fact that the Proposal seeks repolt from the board of directors that will be

reviewable by Abbotts shareholders as opposed to implementation of specific policy or

action does not exempt the Proposal from application of Rule 14a-8i7 The Commission has

stated that proposal requesting preparation and dissemination of report may be excludable

under Rule 14a-8i7 ifthe subject matter of the report is within the.ordinary business of the

company See SEC Releae No 34-20091 August 16 1983 The Staff has adhered to this view

by allowing exclusion of proposals seeking reports on ordinary business matters See e.g

General Motors Corp March 30 2005 and ATT Cop February 212001 in addition to the

Wachovia Dow Texas Instruments and AIG requests mentioned in the previous paragraph

LII Conclusion

For the foregoing reasons request your confirniation that the Staff will not recommend

any enforcement action to the Commission if the Proposal is omitted from Abbotts 2006 proxy

materials To the extent that the reasons set forth in this letter are based on matters of law

pursuant to Rule 14a-8j2iii this letter also constitutes an opinion of counsel of the

undersigned as an attorney licensed and admitted to practice in the State of Illinois

If the Staff has any questions with respect to the foregoing or iffor any reason the Staff

does not agree that we may omit the Proposal from our 2006 proxymaterials please contact me
at 847.938.3591 or Deborah Koenen at 847.938.6166 We may also be reached by facsimile at

847.938.9492 and would appreciate it if you would send your response to us by facsimile to that

number The majority of the proponents have indicated that Sister Doris Gormley is their

representative and she may be reached by facsimile at 301.249.2272 The representative for The

Sisters of Charity of Saint Elizabeth Sister Rosemary Moynihan SC may be reached by

facsimile at 973.290.5338 The representative for Congregation of the Passion Holy Cross

Province John Gonzalez may be reached by facsimile at 773.631.8059 The representative for

Unitarian Universalist Association of Congregations Jim Gunnig may be reached by facsimile

at 617.367.3237 The representative for Amalgamated Bank LongView Collective Invesinient

Fund Cornish Hitchcoclç may be reached by facsimile at 202.364.9960 The representatives

for the Society of Jesus of New England Rev Mark Hallinan SJ and Rev Gerald

Chojnacki S.J may be reached by facsimile at 212.794.1036 The representative for the Sisters

of Mercy of the Americas Vicki Cummings may be reached by facsimile at 650.347.2550

The representative for the Missionary Oblates of Mary Immaculate SØamus Finn OMI may
be reached by facsimile at 202.483.0708
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Please acknowledge receipt of.this letter and the enclosures by date-stamping the

enclosed copy of this letter and returning it to the waiting messenger

Very truly yours

John J3eny

Divisional Vice President

Securities and Benefits

Domestic Legal Operations

Enclosures

cc Doris Gonnley SFCC

Socially Responsible Investment Consultant

Jesuit Conference The Society ofJesus in the United States

1616 Street NW Suite 300

Washington DC 20036-1405

and

                              

                          

Sister Rosemary Moynihan SC

The Sisters of Charity of Saint Elizabeth

P.O Box 476

Convent Station NJ 07961-0476

John Gonzalez

SRI Consultor to

Congregation of the Passion Holy Cross Province

205 Monroe 2W
Chicago IL 60606-5062

Jim Gunnig

Committee on Socially Responsible Investing

Unitarian Universalist Association of Congregations

25 Beacon Street

Boston MA 02108

Cornish Hitchcock

Attorney at Law

5301 Wisconsin Avenue N.W Suite 350

Washington DC 20015-2015
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Rev Mark Hallinan SJ
Rev Gerald Chojnacki SJ
New York Province of the Society of Jesus

Office of Social Ministries

39 East 83rd Stmet

New York New York 10028

Vicki Cummings

Sisters of Mercy of the Americas

Administration

2300 Adeline Drive

Burlingame CA 94010-5599

SØamus Finn OMI

Missionary Oblates of Mary Immaculate

391 Michigan Avenue NE

Washington D.C 20017
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Page lofi

Shareholder Proposal on mV/AIDS-TB-Malaria Item on Proxy Card

Whereas The HIV/Aids epidemic constitutes global emergency one of the most formidable challenges to human life and

dignity as well as to the effective enjoyment of human rights

By the end of the year 2000 36.1 million people worldwide were living with 1EV/AIDS 90% in developing countries and

75% in sub-Sahara Africa

All are affected by this epidemic but people in developing countries are the most affected and women young
adults and

children particularly girls are the most vulnerable

African Heads of Governments have pledged to target at least 15% of their annual national budgets to address the HIV/AIDS

epidemic Actions to reach this target will need to be complemented by international assistance

Tuberculosis is now the worlds leading infectious killer taking million lives year and is frequent complication of

AIDS Malaria causes 1.1 million deaths annually Both diseases are growing more difficult to treat because of the spread of

drug-resistant strains

Access to medication in the context of such pandemics is fundamental element of achieving physical and mental health

Effective prevention care and treatment strategies will require increased availability of and nondiscriminatory access to

vaccines sterile injecting equipment drugs including anti-retroviral therapy diagnostics and related technologies as well as

increased research and development

Avai lability and affordability of drugs and related technology are factors to be reviewed and addressed There is need to

reduce the cost of these drugs and technologies

Some countries within the most seriously affected regions have begun to promote innovation and the development of

domestic industries in order to increase access to medicines to protect the peoples health

The impact of international trade agreements on access to or local manufacturing of essential drugs and on the development

of new drugs needs to be evaluated

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED Shareholders request the Board of Directors to develop and implement policy to

provide phannaceuticals for the prevention and treatment of HIVIAIDS TB and Malaria in ways that the majority of infected

persons in African nations can afford

report of the development and implementation of such policy omitting proprietary information and at reasonable cost

would be sent to shareholders six months after the 2002 annual meeting

Proponents Statement in Support of Shareholder Proposal

Pharmaceutical companies have the unique mission to provide health-giving medicines often making the difference between

life and death This is the time for pharmaceutical companies to offer the kind of leadership necessary to address diseases that

afflict so many people throughout the world especially in African countries Making life-saving medicines more affordable

for poor countries is vital for improving public health More importantly it is realistic Press Release WHO/W1O

Workshop-PricingfFinancmg of Essential Drugs April 11 2001 One way to make needed drugs accessible and affordable is

to grant voluntary licenses to African countries which request them This would enable the production of generic drugs for

prevention and treatment of infectious diseases Improved access to effective and affordable medicines is essential for the

peoples health in these nations

http//www.sec.govlArchives/edgarldata/ 1800/00009 1205702009572/a2O70046zdef 4a J2V9flflS
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Page of

Shareholder Proposal Concerning Global Infectious Diseases Item on Proxy Card

The Maryland Province of the Society of Jesus 5704 Roland Avenue Baltimore Maryland 21210-1399 owner of 100

Abbott common shares and 16 other proponents have infonned Abbott that they intend to present the following proposal at

the meeting Abbott wilt provide the proponents names and addresses to any
shareholder who requests that information and

if provided by proponent to Abbott the number of Abbott common shares held by that proponent

Whereas

Shareholders have an interest in how our companys products are being utilized to address global health risks of common

infectious diseases with respect to short term and long-term performance and risk

According to UNAIDS the HIV/AJDS pandemic is creating or aggravating poverty among millions of people eroding

human capital weakening government institutions and threatening business activities and investment

Our company produces effective products for the treatment of HIV/AIDS and yet

There arc more than 42 million people worldwide currently living with HIV/AIDS over 95% of whom live in the developing

world and only 4% of whom have access to effective treatment

Our company produces an effective product for the treatment of Malaria and yet

People with Malaria have difficulty accessing an effective treatment that could save their lives and in some cases people are

being treated with drugs that are no longer effective

23

The final agreement on the World Trade Organization negotiations over paragraph of the Doha Declaration related to

easing access to essential medicines in developing countries has several riders These riders place new regulatory burdens and

additional uncertainty on countries and companies importing and exporting generic essential medicines

While we affirm our companys partnership initiative with the government of Tanzania to modernize the countrys public

health infrastructure and develop services and care for people living with LilY/AIDS we feel this is one focused response and

does not address the scope and scale of the HIV/AJDS pandemic in southern Africa and other developing countries

Core Ratings subsidiary of Fitch Ratings first recognized as nationally recognized statistical rating organization

NRSRO by the SEC in 1975 has found that our companys performance relative to its pharmaceutical industry peers

has not demonstrated flexibility on patents has no formal policy on developing country diseases and its policy

on clinical trials does not commit to adherence with WHO guidelines Philanthropy or Good Business Emerging Market

Issues for the Global Pharmaceutical Industry Core Ratings May 2003

The World Bank reports that in southern Africa and other affected regions complete economic collapse will occur unless

there is response to the HI V/AIDS pandemic Even delay in responding to the outbreak of the epidemic however can

lead to collapse The Long-Run Economic Costs of AIDS June 2003 The World Bank

We believe that these failures pose investment and public relations risks to our companys market value and good name

Therefore Be It Resolved Shareholders request that our Board review the economic effects of the HI V/AIDS tuberculosis

and malaria pandemics on the companys business strategy and its initiatives to date and report to shareholders within six

months following the 2004 annual meeting This report developed at reasonable costs and omitting proprietary

information will identify the impacts of these pandemics on the company
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Pagelofi

Shareholder Proposal Concerning HIV/AIDS-1B-Malaria Pandemics Item on Proxy Card

The Maryland Province of the Society of Jesus 5704 Roland Avenue Baltimore Maryland 21210-1399 and 28 other

proponents
have informed Abbott that they intend to present the following proposal at the meeting Abbott will provide the

proponents names and addresses to any shareholder who requests that information and if provided by proponent to Abbott

the number of Abbott common shares held by that proponent

Resolved Shareholders request that our Board review the economic effects of the HIV/AIDS tuberculosis and malaria

pandemics on the companys business strategy and its initiatives to date and report to shareholders within six months

following the 2005 annual meeting This report developed at reasonable costs and omitting proprietary information will

identify the impacts of these pandemics on the company

Proponents Statement in Support of Shareholder Proposal

We believe that l-UV/AIDS Tuberculosis TB and Malaria pose major risks to the long-term financial health of firms like

Abbott Laboratories that operate in emerging markets

The crisis of HI V/AIDS in Africa with half of all global HI V/AIDS cases is well known UNAIDSthe joint United

Nations AIDS programreports life expectancy in much of southern Africa has declined by over half to barely thirty years

New research also shows disturbing trends in Asian markets New infection rates in Asia are at all-time highs 7.4 million

people there are living with HIV India alone has more citizens living with HTV than any country except South Africa

Report on the Global AIDS Pandemic UNAIDS 2004

Foreign Affairs reported in December 2002 that even moderate HIV pandemics in India and China may reduce per capita

GNP by 2025 to virtually 2000 levelswiping out generations worth of economic growth

In China UNAIDS projects 10 million infections by 2010 Stephen Roach Morgan Stanleys Chief Economist wrote in

June 2004 that all the economic growth in the world cannot possibly compensate for the devastation China would face if

projections were to come to pas

Standard Chartered Bank Group Chief Executive Mervyn Davies in 2004 World Economic Forum report
cautioned that

AIDS imposes day-to-day economic tax that compromises business productivity Finns pay
in increased health and

benefit costs decreased productivity higher turnover and other ways

Despite these warnings the same report concluded firms are not particularly active in combating HIV/AIDS and

businesses appear to be making decisions based on patchy assessment of the risks they face

Unfortunately most companies do not yet report appropriate data for investors to make informed decisions about the impact

of HI V/AIDS says 2003 survey of corporations by UNAIDS We believe to date our companys reporting has also been

inadequate

in contrast to our companys performance several large-cap firms make reporting on infectious diseases best practice The

Bill Melinda Gates Foundation has funded an HIV/AIDS Resource Document at the Global Reporting Initiative

In 2004 Coca-Cola shareholders approved resolution seeking such report with 98% support Coca-Colas subsequent

report notes the moral and business imperatives are of equal importance in responding to HIV/AIDS

Our experience with Coca-Cola and other leading companies demonstrates that these reports need not be onerous In our

opinion shareholders must fully understand the threats posed by these diseases in order to make informed assessments of our

companys value

We urge shareholders to vote FOR this resolution
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Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

Abbott Laboratories held its Annual Meeting of Shareholders on Api-tI 222005 The following is summary of the

matters voted on at that meeting

The shareholders elected AbboWs entire Board of Directors The persons
elected to AbboWs Board of Directors and

the number of shares cast for and the number of shares withheld with respect to each of these persons were as follows

Name

Roxanne Austin

William Daley

Laurance Fuller

Richard Gonzalez

Jack Greenberg

Jeffrey Leiden M.D Ph.D

The Lord Owen CH
Boone Powell Jr

Addison Bay Rand

Ann Reynolds Ph.D

Roy Roberts

William Smithburg

John Walter

Miles DWhite

18

Votes For

1335745463

1341199411
1336590924

1323525501
1338458177

1330165076
1342882255

1337056319

1337206795
1333234174

1343081511

1335222369
1334641826

1334508735

Votes Wltbheld

24119515
18665567

23274054
36339471

21406801

29699902
16982723

22808659

22658183
26630804

16783467

24642609
25223152
25356243

L.
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The shareholders ratified the appointment of Deloitte Touche LLP as Abbotts auditors The number of shares

cast in favor of the ratification of Deloitte Touche LLP the number against and the number abstaining were as follows

For Abstain

1338466739 11750298 9647941

The shareholders rejected shareholder proposal on executive compensation lhe number of shares cast in favor of

the shareholder proposal the number against the number abstaining and the number of broker non-votes were as follows

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Vote

58830774 1054385293 19061307 227587604

The shareholders rejected shareholder proposal concerning performance-based options The number of shares cast

in favor of the shareholder proposal the number against the number abstaining and the number of broker non-votes were as

follows

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Vote

422868073 695048135 14361166 227587604

The shareholders rejected shareholder proposal concerning in vitro testing The number of shares cast in favor of

the shareholder proposal the number against the number abstaining and the number of broker non-votes were as follows

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Vote

25588601 993974542 112714231 227587604

The shareholders rejected shareholder proposal concerning political contributions The number of shares cast in

favor of the shareholder proposal the number against the number abstaining and the number of broker non-votes were as

follows

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Vote

83669995 941974705 106632674 227587604

The shareholders rejected shareholder proposal concerning mV/AIDS-TB-Malaria Pandemics The number of

shares cast in favor of the shareholder proposal the number against the number abstaining and the number-of broker non-

votes were as follows

For Against Abstain Broker Non.Vote

71234106 960516598 100526670 227587604

The shareholders rejected shareholder proposal on separating the roles of Chair and CEO The number of shares

cast in favor of the shareholder proposal the number against the number abstaining and the number of broker non-votes

were as follows

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Vote

196635942 918620280 17021152 227587604

.-... .- -s _1 L..__ 1- IQ tV



UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON D.C 20549-3010

DIVISION OF

CORPORATION FINANCE

November 30 2007

John Schuster

Cahill Gordon Reindel LLP /9.S
Eighty Pine Street

New York NY 10005-1702

Re Beazer Homes USA Inc

Incoming letter dated October 15 2007 ct /1 3ô

Dear Mr Schuster

This is in response to your letter dated October 15 2007 concerning the

shareholder proposal submitted to Beazer Homes USA by the Indiana State District

Council of Laborers and HOD Carriers Pension Fund We also have received letter

from the proponent dated November 2007 Our response is attached to the enclosed

photocopy of your correspondence By doing this we avoid having to recite or

summarize the facts set forth in the correspondence Copies of all of the correspondence

also will be provided to the proponent

In connection with this matter your attention is directed to the enclosure which

sets forth brief discussion of the Divisions informal procedures regarding shareholder

proposals

Sincerely

Jonathan Ingram

Deputy Chief Counsel

Enclosures

cc Michael Short

Secretary Treasurer

Indiana State District Council of Laborers

and HOD Carriers Pension Fund

P.O Box 1587

Terre Haute IN 47808-1587

PU8jj REFERENCE COPY



November 30 2007

Response of the Office of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

Re Beazer Homes USA Inc

Incoming letter dated October 15 2007

The proposal requests that the board prepare report evaluating the companys

mortgage practices including the companys potential losses and liabilities relating to its

mortgage operations

We are unable to concur in your view that Beazer Homes USA may exclude the

proposal under rule 14a-8i5 Accordingly we do not believe that Beazer Homes USA

may omit the proposal from its proxy materials in reliance on rule 14a-8i5

We are unable to conclude that Beazer Homes USA has met its burden of

establishing that Beazer Homes USA may exclude the proposal under rule 14a-8i7
Accordingly we do not believe that Beazer Homes USA may omit the proposal from its

proxy materials in reliance on rule 14a-8i7

Sincerely

Ted Yu

Special Counsel



CAHILL GORDON REINDEL LLP
EIGHTY PINE STREET

NEW YORK N.Y 10005-1702
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HOWARD ADAMS
ROBERT ALESSI
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HELENE BANKS

MICHAEL BECKER
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JAMES CLARK
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CHRISTOPHER COX

LESLIE DUFFY
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RICHARD FARLEY
PATRICIA FARREN

JOAN MURTAGH FRANKEL
JONATHAN FRANKEL
BART FRIEDMAN

CIRO GAMBONI
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CHARLES OILMAN
STEPHEN GREENE
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DAVID .ANUSZEWSKI

ELAI KATZ
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DAVID KELLEY
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JOEL KURTZBERG

ALIZA LEVINE
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MICHAEL MACRIS
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NOAH NEWITZ

TELEPHONE 212 701-3000
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WRITERS DIRECT NUMBER

212 701-3000

MICHAEL OHLER

KENNETH 0RCE
DAVID OWEN
JOHN PAPACHRISTOS

LUIS PENALVER
ROY REGOZIN

DEAN RINGEL

JAMES ROBINSON

THORN ROSENTHAL
JONATHAN SCHAFFZIN
JOHN SCHUSTER

MICHAEL SHERMAN
DARREN SILVER

HOWARD SLOANE
LAURENCE SORKIN

LEONARO SPIVAK
SUSANNA SUM
GERALD TANENBAUM
JONATHAN THIER

JOHN TRIPODORO
ROBERT USADI

GEORGE WAILAND

GLENN WALDRIP JR
MICHAEL WEISS

PENNY WI MOLE
COREY WRIGHT

DANIEL ZUBKOFF

ADAM ZUROFSKY

SENIOR COUNSEL

LAWRENCE KOBRIN

IMMANUEL KOHN

DONALD NULVIHILL

COUNSEL

JAY GEIGER

RAND McOUINN

AOMITTEO IN

DC TX VA ONLY

Ladies and Gentlemen

October 15 2007

c..1

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8j under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended the Act on behalf of our client Beazer Homes USA Inc Delaware corpora

tion the Company we are writing to inform you that the Company hereby gives notice of

its intention to omit from its proxy statement and form of proxy together the Proxy State

ment pursuant to Rules 4a-8i5 and 14a-8i7 under the Act proposal together with

the statement in support thereof the Proposal from the Indiana State District Council of

Laborers and HOD Carriers Pension Fund the Proponent for action at the Companys up
coming Annual Meeting of stockholders to be held in 2008 the Annual Meeting The

Company hereby respectfully requests confirmation by the Staff of the Division of Corpora
tion Finance the Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission the Commission
that it will not recommend enforcement action to the Commission if the Company omits the

Proposal from the Companys Proxy Statement for the reasons set forth herein

in accordance with Rule 4a-8j under the Act we hereby enclose six copies

of this letter and six copies Of the following

letter dated August 29 2007 from Michael Short Secretary-

Treasurer of the Proponent Exhibit A-iand

U.S Securities and Exchange Commission

Division of Corporation Finance

Office of Chief Counsel

100 Street N.E Cli

Washington DC 20549

Re BeazerOmission of Stockholder Proposal Pursuant to Rule -8

1-

ru

LJ
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letter dated August 30 2007 from Linda Lockwood Senior Vice

President of U.S Bank indicating that the Proponent has been the beneficial owner of

at least $2000 in market value of voting securities of the Company at least one year

prior to the receipt of the Proposal Exhibit A-2

In addition copy of this letter is also being sent to the Proponent as notice of the Companys

intent to omit the Proposal from the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting

The Company currently is not able to determine the date upon which it intends

to begin mailing the Proxy Statement to stockholders and file the Proxy Statement with the

Commission However the Company notes that it began mailing and filed its proxy state

ment for the Companys annual meeting held in 2007 on January 2007 If the Proxy State

ment is first mailed to stockholders and filed with the Commission on or about the same date

in 2008 this letter setting forth the Companys reasons for omitting the Proposal will have

been submitted 80 or more calendar days before such mailing and filing

The Proposal

The Proponent requests that the Company include the Proposal in the Com
pany Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting The Proposal consists of resolution which

would read in its entirety as follows

Resolved That the shareholders of Beazer Homes USA Inc Company request that the

Board of Directors prepare within 90 days of its annual meeting report evaluating the Com

pany mortgage practices including the Companys potential losses or liabilities relating to

its mortgage operations and/or those of any affiliates or subsidiaries and discussion of the

following

The extent of the Companys mortgage originations in subprime Alt-A jumbo

and exotic mortgages including piggybacks/second mortgages interest only

loans negative amortization loans and low/no documentation loans as well as

what percentage of its mortgage originations may be classified as such mort

gages

Which of the Companys geographic markets are most reliant on mortgages

listed in above

The identity of the purchasers that buy the Companys mortgage loans in the

secondary market

What percentage if any of the purchases discussed in have Early Payment

Default EPD provisions attached which may require the Company to buy

back loans as well as the time frame for those obligations and
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How many non-performing loans the Company expects it will have to repur

chase during the current and upcoming fiscal year

The
report

should be prepared annually at reasonable cost omit proprietary information and

be distributed in the manner deemed most efficient by the Company including posting on its

website

Reasons for Omission of the Proposal

The Proposal concerns matter dealing with the Companys ordinary

business operations and therefore may be excluded under Rule 14a-8V7

The disclosure in the Companys reports and proxy statements is regulated by

the Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder As disclosed in footnote

an excerpt of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B-i to the financial statements of the

Company included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

September 30 2006 the 2006 Form 10-Kthe Company provides mortgage origination

services through its subsidiary Bearer Mortgage Corporation Bearer Mortgage The

Company believes that its filings with the Commission include all other information with re

gard to Bearer Mortgage and its mortgage origination business required to be disclosed by the

Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder

The Proposal would require the Company to prepare on an annual basis re

port evaluating the Companys mortgage practices including the Companys potential losses

or liabilities relating to its mortgage operations and make certain enumerated disclosures re

lated thereto Such disclosure is not required by the Act or the rules and regulations of the

Commission thereunder The Company believes that once applicable regulatory require

ments have been met the determination of what additional information is to be disclosed and

the format in which such information is to be disclosed is fundamentally decision of ordi

nary business operations properly made by the Companys Board and management and not by

its stockholders

As has been publicly disclosed the Audit Committee of the Companys Board

of Directors is conducting an independent internal investigation into the Companys mortgage

origination business and certain accounting and financial reporting matters If upon comple

tion of such investigation the Audit Committee determines that further disclosure regarding

Bearer Mortgage and the Companys mortgage origination business is necessary or appropri

The Company notes that the Proposal raises only disclosure issues The Proposal does not raise any

social or ethical issues that would not be subject to the ordinary business exclusion provided by Rule

4a-8i7
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ate then the Company will make such disclosure at such time However the Company be
lieves that inclusion in the Proxy Statement of the Proposal at time when the Companys

mortgage origination practices are under investigation by the Audit Committee could result

in the Company being required to make disclosures deemed unnecessary or inappropriate by

such committee Therefore the Proposal deals with matter relating to the Companys ordi

nary business operations and as described below the Company should be able to exclude it

from the Proxy Statement in reliance upon Rule 4a-8i7

Rule 14a-8i7 allows company to omit stockholder proposal that relates

to the ordinary business operations of the company The Staff has stated that one of the key

policy considerations underlying the business operations exclusion provided by Rule 4a-

8i7 is the degree to which the proposal seeks to micro-manage the company by probing

too deeply into matters of complex nature upon which shareholders as group would not

be in position to make an informed judgment Release No 34-40018 May 28 1998 The

Staff has also taken the position that proposals may be excluded under Rule 14a-8i7 based

on the general proposition that some proposals may intrude unduly on companys ordinary

business operations by virtue of the level of detail that they seek Release No 34-40018

May 28 1998 More specifically the Staff previously has examined the issue about

whether proposal by stockholders to prepare special report is excludable and has stated

staff will consider whether the subject matter of the special report .. involves matter

of ordinary business where it does the proposal will be excludable under 14a-8 Re
lease No 34-20091 August 16 1983 The Staff has consistently applied these principles to

allow companies to omit from their proxy statements stockholder proposals requiring compa
nies to make disclosures to stockholders beyond applicable regulatory requirements and be

yond what the Companys Board and management have determined is necessary and appro

priate See General Electric Company January 28 2003 permitting exclusion of proposal

seeking disclosure of the method of selecting independent auditors General Electric Com
pany January 21 2003 permitting exclusion of proposal seeking disclosure in annual report

of certain subsidiary information Refac March 27 2002 permitting exclusion of proposal

requesting disclosure of shareholders of record for and results of voting at the companys an
nual meeting International Business Machines Corporation January 2001 permitting

exclusion of proposal requesting in part that the company provide transparent financial re

porting of profit from real company operations reconsideration denied February 14 2001
and Conseco Inc April 18 2000 permitting exclusion of proposal requesting that ac
counting methods and financial statements adequately report the risks of subprime lending

For the reasons set forth above the Company hereby requests determination

by the Staff that it will not recommend enforcement action to the Commission should the

Company omit the Proposal from the Companys Proxy Statement pursuant to Rule 14a-

8i7

II The Proposal concerns matter that is not relevant to the Companys

operations and therefore may be excluded under Rule 14a-8i5
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Rule 14a-8i5 allows company to omit stockholder proposal that relates

to operations which account for less than 5% of the companys total assets as of the end of its

most recent fiscal year and for less than 5% of its net earnings and gross sales for its most re

cent fiscal year and is not otherwise significantly related to the companys business

The Companys Mortgage Origination Business Accounted for

Less than 5% of the Companys Total Assets as of September

30 2006 and Provided Less than 5% of the Companys Net

Earnings and Gross Sales for Its Fiscal Year Ended 2006

As shown in footnote 15 an excerpt of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B-

to the financial statements of the Company included in the Fonn 10-K Beazer Mortgage

which as noted above conducts the Companys mortgage origination business comprised

$163417000 of $4559431000 or 3.6% of the Companys total assets as of September 30

2006 contributed $4453000 of $388761000 or 1.1% of the Companys net income for the

fiscal year ended September 30 2006 FY 2006 and contributed $54344000 of

$5462003000 or 1.0% of the Companys revenues which is the Companys term for gross

sales for FY 2006.2

The Proposal Is Not Otherwise Significantly Related to the Com
panys Business

The Staff has generally interpreted the phrase otherwise significantly related

to the companys business in Rule 4a-8i5 to not allow companies to exclude from proxy

statements proposals that raise social or ethical issues despite the fact that the subject mat
ter of such issues does not meet or exceed the 5% thresholds described above See Release

No 34-19135 October 14 1982 As described above the Companys mortgage origination

business does not meet or exceed the 5% of the thresholds set forth in Rule 14a-8i5 Fur

ther as noted above the Proposal does not raise social or ethical issues related to the Com
panys business Therefore the Proposal is similar to other proposals allowed by the Staff to

be excluded from proxy statements pursuant to Rule 14a-8i5 See e.g College Retire

ment Equities Fund May 2004 The Proctor Gamble Company August 11 2003 and

Hewlett-Packiird Company January 2003 and The Walt Disney Company November 29
2002

The Company notes that it has disclosed in filings made with the Commission that its expected re

statement of its financial statements will decrease net income for FY 2006 Although the Company is

unable to quantify precisely the impact of the restatement on its previously issued financial statements

it does not believe that any such restatement would result in the percentages set forth above as of Sep
tember 30 2006 and for FY 2006 meeting or exceeding 5% thresholds set forth in Rule 4a-8i5
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Even if the Proposal were deemed to implicate social or ethical issues the

Company does not believe that it is significantly related to the Companys business because it

would require substantial additional disclosure regarding an insignificant portion of the Com

panys business The Companys primary business is the construction and sale of homes

Indeed the Company is one of the largest homebuilders in the United States and builds in

dozens of markets in the Southeast Mid-Atlantic Midwest West and Central United States

The origination of mortgages by Bearer Mortgage is ancillary to the Companys primary

business and is offered only as value-added feature for prospective purchasers of the Com

panys homes Such purchasers have available numerous sources to finance their purchase of

home constructed by the Company other than the Companys mortgage origination services

Further the Company believes that if it were to discontinue its ancillary mortgage origination

business its primary business of constructing and selling homes would not be significantly

affected

For the reasons set forth above the Company hereby requests determination

by the Staff that it will not recommend enforcement action to the Commission should the

Company omit the Proposal from the Companys Proxy Statement pursuant to Rule 14a-

8i5

Summary

For each of the reasons set forth above the Company believes that it may omit

the Proposal from the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting The Company hereby re

quests determination by the Staff that it will not recommend enforcement action to the

Commission should the Company omit the Proposal from the Companys Proxy Statement

Should the Staff disagree with the Companys reasons that it may omit the

Proposal from the Proxy Statement or should the Staff desire any additional information to

support of the Companys positions set forth herein we would appreciate an opportunity to

confer with the Staff prior to the issuance of its response to this letter

of this page intentionally left blank
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If you have any questions or comments regarding this request please call the

undersigned at 212 701-3323

Very truly yours

icln Schuster

cc Mr Michael Short

Secretary-Treasurer

Indiana State District Council of Laborers and HOD Carriers Pension Fund

P.O Box 1587

Terre Haute IN 47808-1587

Ms Jennifer ODell

Assistant Director LIUNA Corporate Affairs Department

Laborers International Union of North America

905 16th Street N.W
Washington DC 20006

Ms Peggy Caidwell

Senior Vice President and Acting General Counsel

Bearer Homes

1000 Abernathy Road Suite 1200

Atlanta GA 30328

Ms Leslie Kratcoski

Vice President Investor Relations Corporate Communications

Beazer Homes

1000 Abernathy Road Suite 1200

Atlanta GA 30328
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________________________ ________

INDIANA STATE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF lABORERS AND HOD CARRIERS PNSJON FUND
Tdcpbone 812-338-55

.0 5o 1587 ToIl cc 8O0-%Z-l58
Terre lI%nte IndIana 47808-1587

_______________ ___ _______

Sent Via Fax 770-451-2841

August 27 2007

Ms Peggy CaIdwell

Senior Vice Fresidorit and Acting General Counsci

Bea2er Homes USA Inc

1000 Abernathy Road Suite 1200

Atlanta GA 30328

Dear Ms Caidwell

Qa bchalf of the Indiana Laborers Pension Fund Fund hereby submit the enclosed shareholder

proposal iroposal or inclusion in the Beizer osncs USA Inc Company proxy statement to be

ijculted Company shaholdcrs in conjunction with the next annual meeting of sbarehgldcra The

Proposal is submittcd under Rule 14a-S Proposals olSecurity Holders of the U.S SecuriThs and

Exchange ConmissiOns proxy regulations

The Fund is the bencficlal owner of approximately 300 sbare of the Companyscommon steclç which

have been held continuously for more than year prior to this date of submission The Proposal is

submktcd us otdcr to promote govensanec system at the Company that enables the Board and senior

management
to manage the Company for the long-term Maxrniizmg the Companys wealth generating

capacity over the long-tcun will bcst serve the interests of the Company cholders and other important

constituents of the Company

The Fund intends to hold the shares through the date of the Conipanys next annual meeting of

shareholders The racocd holder of the stock will provide the ajçropriatc verification of the Funds

bcnccial ounership by separate lctter Either the undersigned or dcignated cacutative will present

the Proposal for consideration at the annual meeting of shareholders

If yon have any questions or wish to discuss the Proposal please contact Jennifer ODçll Assistant

Directi LUJNA Corporate Aithira Deparuncat at 202 942-2359 Copies of correspondence or

request or no-action letter should be ferwardcd to Ms Oicll 10 the following address Laborers

tntenzational Union of North America 90$ 16a Steed NW Washington DC 20006

Sincerely

Michael Sb

$ccrctamy.Trcasurer

cc knraffev ODd

Enclosure

OFIICERS 60MW OF ThUSTEES

ROBERT HASGATE MICHAEl SHORT aJ4ETIA ENGLANr



AUC 07 l258p LI1JNR CORP RFFflIRS
p.3

Resolved That the shareholders of Beazer Homes USA ln Company request that the Board of

Directors prepare within 90 days of its annual neeg report evaluating the Companys mortgage

practices including the Companys potential losses or liabilities relating to its mortgage opetat and/or

those of any afilliates or subsidiaries and discussion of the following

The extent of the Companys mortgage originations in subprtxne Alt-A jumbo arid exotic

mortgages including piggybacks/second mortgages interest only loans negative amodizatin

loans and low/no docuntation loans as well as what percentage of its mortgage originations

may be claificd as such mortgages

Which of the Companys geographic markets are most reliant on mortgages listed in above

.1 The idctity of the purchasers that buy the Conpanys mortgage loans in the secondary niarkat

What pcrccntagc
if any of the purchases dizcuscd in have Early Payment Default EPTY

visions attached which may require the Company to bt back those loans as well as the time

frame for those obligations and

How many non-perfonning loans the Company expects it will have to repurchase during the

current and tzpeoniing fIscal year

The report should be prepared atutuafly at reasonable cost omit proprietary information aM be

distrilnited in the zusriner decreed most efficient by the Company including posting on its website

Srpporiiitgstateiaeut

The homebufiding and mortgage industries in general and our Company in particular face exfraordinaiy

challenges at this time In an article cntitlcd Feds arc lay nghomebuilder Boazer Residential

builder probcd in connection with potential mortgage fraud Bui.MessWeek online Mareh 2S 2007 the

potential scope of our Companys problems is noted

.Pcdctsl investigators havc opened broad criminal probe into lending practices some financial

transactions and other dealings at fleazer Homes USA

Atlanta-based Bcazer the nalioris sixth-largest residential homebufider rode high during the

heyday of the housing boom profiting from both selling the homes it constructed nd often

financing the buyers as weH through wholly onvd urtgagc ann Its common in the industry

but Beazer may have pushed the bounds The North Carolina field offices of the Federal Bureau

oflnvestigation the Internal Revenue Service and the Justrce Dept have rcocntly opened joint

investigation into the company over such matters...

In Form 8-X dated JuLy 23 2007 the Company disclosed that it is also the subject of Sccwities and

xchanga Commission formal investigaUon

As these iniestigatioris arc pending the Company is also epeiicucing significant declines in revenue

The Companys most recent I0-Q disclosed that for the six mouths ended March31 2007 tbc Companys

VItUCS declined 31.4% from $2374707000 to 1629309000 from the same period in the prier year

Unfortunately the Company is not providing sufflolent inforrantron on Its mortgage practices for

shareholders to adeqUately monitor risk For these reasons we urge shareholders to support our proposaL
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Exhtbit A2

August 30 2007

Aug.30 2001 338PM

bank
kistitutlonal Trust Custody

P0 Box 357

St Lous MO 83165-0337

814 418-2520 fiX

Sent Via Fax 77048 1-2841

Ms Peggy CaidweIl

Senior Vice President and Acting General Counsel

Beazcr Homes USA Inc

1000 AbernathyRoad Suite 1200

Atlanta GA 30328

Dear Ms Caidwoll

US Bank is the record holder for 300 shares ofBeazer Homes USA Inc

Company common stock hei for the bensfit of the Indiana State District Council of

Laborers and HOD Carriers Pónsion Fund Fund The Fund has ben benecia1

owner of at least 1% or $2000 in market value of the Companys common stock

continnously for at least one year prior
the date of submission of the shareholder

proposal eubmitted by the Fund pursuant to 1.ule 14a-8 of the Securities and Bxchange

Commission rules and regulations The Fund continues to hold the shares of Company

stock

SI ly

ood

Senior ice President
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Notes to Consolidated Finnci1 Statements

Swnmary of Slgnlaiat Accounting Policies

Organization Beazer Homes USA Inc is one of the ten largest homebuildcrs in the United States based on number

of homes closed We design sell and build primarily single-family homes in over 45 markets located in Arizona

California Colorado Delaware Florida 3eorgia Indiana Kentucky Maryland Nevada New Jersey Now Mexico

New Ypjç North Carolina Ohio Pennsylvania South Carolina Tennessee Texas Virginia and West
Virginia

flh Beater Mortgage Corporation or Beater Mortgage we offer mortgage ortgthiuon services to ouT
homebuyersfr MottgagoTmallCeS certain or our moga1iistTgaCUvtuea wtus ilVmgs-und

Thnouseifnc of credit or front general corporate funds prior to selling the loans and their servicing rights shortly

after origination to third-party investors In addition we offer title insurance services to our homebuyers in many of

our markets

Presenttion The accolnpanyng consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Beazer Homes USA Inc

and our wholly owned subsidiaries Intercompany balances have been eliminated in consolidation

Cssh and Cash Equivalents and Reltrscted Cash We consider investments with maturities of three months or less

when purchased to be cash equivalents Restricted cash includes cash restricted by state law or contractual

requirement

Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable primarily consist of escrow deposits to be received from title companies

associated with closed homes Generally we will receive cash from title companies within few days of the home

being closed

Inventory Owned inventory consists solely of residential real estate developments Interest real estate taxes and

development costs arc capitalized in inventory during the development and construction period Construction and

land costs are comprised of direct and allocated costs including estimated future costs for warranties and amenities

Land land improvements and other common costs are typically allocated to individual residential lots on pro-rata

basis and the costs of residential lots are transferred to construction its

progress
when home contruction begins

Consolidated inventory not owned represents the fair value of land under option agreements consolidated pursuant to

Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Interpretation No.46 Revised Consolidation of Variable Interest

Entitles an Interpretation of ARB No 51 FIN 46R or when our option deposits and preacquisition development

coSts exceed certain thresholds

Residential Mortgage Loans Avallabtr..fur-Sle Residential mortgage loans avaitable-for-sale are stated at the

lower of aggregate cost or market value Gains and losses from sales of mortgage loans are recognized when the

loans are sold

Inveatmesils II Unconsolidated Joint Ventures We participate in number of land development joint ventures in

which we have tess than controlling interest Our Joint ventures are typically entered into with developers and other

bomebuilders to develop finished lots lbs sale to the joint ventures members and other third pasties We account for

our interest in these joint ventures under the equity method We recognize out share of profits from the sale of lots to

other buyers Our share of profits from lots we purchase from the joint ventures is deferred and treated as reduction

of the cost of the land purchased from the joint venture Such profits are subsequontly recognized at the time the

home closes and titI passes to the homebuyer Our joint ventures typically
obtain secured acquisition and

development financing

Property Plant said qulpment Property plant and equipment is recorded at cost Depreciation is computed on

straight-line
basis at rates based on estimated useful lives as follows

Buildings lS3Oyears

Machinery and equipment lOycats

information systems years

Furniture and fixtures years

Leasehold improvements Lesser of the lease term or the

estimated useful life of the asset
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Exhibit B-2htt1881120600..

Primarily
consists of cash and cash equivalents consolidated inventory not owned deferred taxes and

capitaliard interest and oilier
corporate items that are not allocated to the segments

Segment assets as of both September 30 2006 and 2005 include goodwill assigned from prior acquisitions

as follows $55.5 million in the West $23.3 million in the Mid-Atlantic $13.7 million in Florida $17.6

million in the Southeast and $11.2 million in Other homebuilding These was no change in goodwill from

September 30 2005 to September 30 2006

15 Supplemeistal Guarantor Information

As discussed in Note our obligations to pay principal premium if any and interest under certain debt are

guaranteed on joint and several basis by substantially all of our subidiasies Certain of our title and warranty

subsidiaries and Beazer Mortgage do not
guarantee our Senior Notes or our Revolving Credit Facility The

guarantees are full and unconditional and the guarantor subsidiaries arc 100% owned by Beazer Homes USA Inc

We have determined that separate
fill financial statements of the guarantors

would not be material to investors and

accordingly supplemental financial infbrmation for the guatantors is presented

Beazer Iomes USA Tn

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30 2006

in thousands

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable

Owned inventory

Consolidated inventory not owned

Residential mortgage loans

availablefor-sale

Investment in and advances to

unconsolidated joint ventures

Deferred tax assets

Property plant and equipment net

Goodwill

Investments in subsidiaries

Intercompany

Other assets

Total Assets

.LIABILrrIES AND

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Trade accounts payable

Other liabilities

Intercompany

Obligations related to consolidated

Inventory not owned

Senior notes net of discounts of

$3578

Junior subordinated notes

Warehouse line

Oilier notes payable

Total Liabilities

Stockholders Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders

Equity

Hunm
USA ta

254915 l05l58S

4873

328740

3048891

471441

7149 162570

9873

502 333571

3048891

471441

92157

122799

59842

57 29465

121368

1829969

25211

107454

40.452 $l.829.969 4i4Th

Cnnsolidicd

Beucr Other Beanr

Madgng Nn-Ou.snntor Canolidai1a

Subsidiaries Core Sobidtute MjIksinsento tJSk bc

5664

5000

4329

92157

3093 119706

59345 497

28454 954

121368

1829969

1250702 1328310 52397

22.751 74.751 2.419

3420775 2764756i6l7

140902 132 97 141131

66296 456706 9166 14846 547014

1959 1959

330703 330703

1551422 1551422

103093 103093

94881 94881

89264 89264

1718852 1017575 104179 16902 2857508

170123 1747181 59238 23550 1829969 1701923

3420775 2764756 163417 40452 $l829969S 4559431
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Bexzer Moines USA Inc

Consolidating Statements of Income

in thousands

For the fiscal year ended September

30 2006

Total revenue

Home construction and land sales

expenses

Gross profit

Selling general and administrative

eqenses

Operating income

Equity
in loss of unconsolidated

joint ventures

Royalty and management fee

expenses

Other income net

Income before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Equity in income of subsidiaries

Net income

For the fiscal year ended September

30 2105

Total revenue

I-lame construction and land sales

expenses

Gross profit

Selling general and administrative

expenses

Goodwill impainnent

Operating income

Income before income taxes

Other income net

Income bcfbre income taxes

Provision lbr income taxes

Equity in income of subsidiaries

Net income

For the fiscal year ended September

30 20114

Total revenue

Home construction and land sales

expenses

Gross profit

Selling general and administrative

expenses

Operating income

Equity in income of unconsolidated

joint ventures

Other income net

Income before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Equity in income of subsidiaries

Net income

ffowm Guaretor

flqa tImdirta

ConsoIidatd

Ott Bzr
Bcazcr Nm-Guaamor ConcdEg Homes

.b.aoies Miuotmcnts 115k ls
eso.g.g_s.p

$S4I8l89TZ$ 9080 l96l0.003

96242 4124686 19610 4201388

96242 1293503 54344 9080 1260685

602578 44093 2339 649010

96242 690925 10251 6741 611675

772 772

3098 3098

2311 2311

96242 695562 7153 6741 613214

36332 255544 2700 2548 224453

448671 448671

388761 440018j3S 4200 448671 38876i

$4949699 54310 7621 16277$4995353

89678 3749899 16277 3823300

89678 1199800 54310 7628 1172053

521639 38683 1868 7290 554900

130235 130235

89678 547926 15627 5753 7290 486918

5021 5021

7395 7395

89678 560342 15627 5753 7290 499334

33732 259758 5878 2164 2142 236810

318470 318470

262524 300584 9749 3589 313922S 262524

$3899971 7138 $3907109

76035 3023697 3099732

16035 876274 7138 807377

436726 2552 9836 429442

76035 439548 4586 9836 377935

1561 1561

7079 7079

76035 448188 4586 9836 386575

29654 174794 1788 3836 150764

282192 282192

235811 273394 2798 2761925 235811
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INDIANA STATE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF LABORERS AND HOD CARRIERS PENSION FUND
Telephone 812-238-2551

P.O Box 1587 ToIl Free 800-962-3158

Terre Haute Indiana 47808-1587 Fax 812-238-2553

November 2007

Office of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance -i in
U.S Securities and Exchange Commission

IOOF Street NE

Washington DC 20549
rfl

Re Response to Beazer Homes USA Inc.s Request for No-Action Advice Concerning the

Indiana State District Council of Laborers and HOD Carriers Pension Funds Shareholder

Proposal

Dear Sir or Madam

The Indiana State District Council of Laborers and HOD Carriers Pension Fund Fund hereby

submits this letter in reply to Beazer Homes USA Inc.s Bearer or Company Request for

No-Action Advice to the Security and Exchange Commissions Division of Corporation Finance

staff Staff concerning the Funds shareholder proposal Proposal and supporting statement

submitted to the Company for inclusion in its 2008 proxy materials The Fund respectfully

submits that the Company has failed to satisfy its burden of persuasion and should not be granted

permission to exclude the Proposal Pursuant to Rule l4a-8k six paper copies of the Funds

response are hereby included and copy has been provided to the Company

The Proposal concerns matter that clearly transcends the Companys ordinary business

operations so it is not excludable under Rule 14a-8i7

The Company first argues that the Proposal may be excluded under Rule 4a-8i7 because it

relates to the ordinary business operations of the Company The Company bears the burden of

persuasion to show that such is the case burden we will show it fails to meet

The Company states that key policy consideration behind the ordinary business exclusion is the

degree to which the proposal seeks to micro-manage the company by probing too deeply into

matters of complex nature upon which shareholders as group would not be in position to

make an informed judgment Release No 34-40018 May 28 1998

The Proposal requests that the Companys Board of Directors prepare report evaluating the

Companys mortgage operations in order to provide vital information to shareholders as they

monitor their investment in Bearer as it confronts crisis relating to its mortgage practices

None of the extraordinary challenges confronting Bearer today nor the information we seek to

elicit can reasonably be construed as ordinary business

______________________________
OFFICERS BOARD OF TRUSTEES ______________________________

ROBERT HARGATE MICHAEL SHORT JANETTA ENGLAND

CHftRMAN SECRETARY-TREASURER ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER



Consider the following

The Wall Street Journal reported on August 2007

Shares of Beazer Homes USA Inc lost as much as 40% Wednesday morning

on talk that the company could be filing for bankruptcy but the borne builder

strong dismissed the rumors in statement as scurrilous and unfounded

emphasis supplied

The closing price of Beazers stock on Nov 2006 was $41.03 The closing price of

Beazers stock on Nov 2007 was $9.79

Beazer News Release on July 26 2007 noted

As previously disclosed on March 29 2007 Beazer Homes received subpoena

from the United States Attorneys office in the Western District of North

Carolina seeking the production of documents focusing on the Companys

mortgage origination services On May 2007 the Company received notice

that the Securities and Exchange Commission had commenced an informal

inquiry to determine whether any person or entity related to Beazer Homes

had violated federal securities laws On July 20 2007 the Company received

formal order of private investigation issued by the SEC in this matter The

Company intends to continue to fWiy cooperate with all related inquiries

Together with certain of its subsidiaries and current and former officers and

directors the Company has also been named as defendant in several purported

class action lawsuits

In response to these matters the Audit Committee of the Beazer Homes Board

of Directors and its independent legal counsel and financial consultant

launched an internal review of Beazer Homes mortgage origination business

and related matters The results of the ongoing review by the Audit Committee

the governmental investigations or the pending lawsuits could result in the

payment of criminal or civil fines the imposition of an injunction on future

conduct the imposition of other penalties or other consequences including the

Company adjusting the conduct of certain of its business operations and the

timing and content of its existing and future public disclosures any of which

could have material adverse effect on the business financial condition or

results of operations of the Company emphasis supplied

Bearer News Release on October 11 2007 Beazer Homes Announces Findings of

Independent Audit Committee Jnvestigation stated

Bearer Homes USA Inc NYSE BZH www.beazer.com today announced

interim findings from its Audit Committees previously announced independent

internal investigation into the Companys mortgage origination business and

certain accounting and financial reporting matters



The Audit Committee has determined that it will be necessary for the

Company to restate its financial statements relating to fiscal years 2004

through 2006 and the interim periods of fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007

collectively the restatement period The restatement is also expected to

impact the financial results for fiscal years 1999 through 2003 and the

Company expects that it will reflect the impact of financial results for these prior

years as part of the opening balances in the financial statements for the

restatement period

As described more fully below the Company expects the restatements

cumulative impact will likely be an increase in net income but will reflect an

expected decrease in net income for the Companys 2006 fiscal year Until the

internal investigation is completed and the restatement is finalized the Company
is unable to quantify precisely the impact of the restatement on its previously

issued financial statements As result of the Audit Committees findings the

Companys previously issued financial statements for the periods impacted

by the restatement as described above and the related audit reports of the

Companys independent registered public accounting firmshould no longer

be relied upon

The internal investigation found evidence that employees of the Companys
Beazer Mortgage Corporation subsidiary violated certain U.S Department

of Housing and Urban Development HUD regulations. emphasis

supplied

In Form8-K filing submitted by Beazer on August 15 2007 the Company reported

As previously disclosed in the Companys Form 2b-25 Notification of Late

Filing filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC on August

10 2007 the Company has not yet filed with the SEC the Companys Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30 2007 The

Companys delay in filing the Form 10-Q is the result of an independent internal

investigation being conducted by the Audit Committee of the Beazer Homes

Board of Directors into Bearer Homes mortgage origination business including

among other things an investigation of certain evidence that the Companys

subsidiary Bearer Mortgage Corporation violated U.S Department of Housing

and Urban Development HUD regulations and may have violated certain

other laws and regulations in connection with certain of its mortgage origination

activities The Audit Committee has retained independent legal counsel which in

turn has retained independent forensic accountants to assist with the

investigation During the course of the investigation it was also discovered that

the Companys former Chief Accounting Officer caused reserves and other

accrued liabilities relating primarily to land development costs and costs to

complete houses to have been recorded in prior accounting periods in excess of



amounts that would have been appropriate under generally accepted accounting

principles

In Form 8-K filing submitted by Beazer on November 2007 the Company reported

On November 2007 the Company also announced that it has recently taken

steps to further reduce its overall cost structure and improve operating

efficiencies As result in October 2007 the Company further reduced

overall headcount by approximately 650 positions or 25% Since peak

headcount levels in March 2006 overall headcount has declined by over 50%

through reductions in force and attrition The Company expects these

headcount reductions to result in annualized cost savings of at least $30

million In addition the Company has reorganized accounting and back-office

functions and is centralizing number of marketing initiatives to achieve

additional efficiencies

The Company also announced that its Board of Directors has voted to

suspend the Companys quarterly dividend of $0.10 per share The Board

concluded that this action which will allow the Company to conserve

approximately $16 million of cash on an annual basis is prudent in light of the

continued deterioration in the housing market at this time emphasis supplied

We respectfully submit that rumored bankruptcies state and federal investigations internal

investigations stock price drops of 40% in morning financial restatements covering multiple

years headcount reductions of more than 50% suspension of dividends and Company

statements that its financial statements cannot be relied upon cannot reasonably be construed as

matters of ordinary business

We have noted above the extreme circumstances facing Beazer today If state and federal

investigations had not been commenced it is unclear whether Bearers Audit Committee would

have begun an internal investigation Shareholders are entitled to the type of information

requested by the Proposal in order to monitor their investment The Company should not be able

to hide behind the assertion that recent events represent no more than ordinary business Such

is clearly not the case

In Staff Legal Bulletin No 14A July 12 2002 it was noted

The Division has noted many times that the presence of widespread public debate

regarding an issue is among the factors to be considered in determining whether

proposals concerning that issue transcend the day-to-day business matters fl

We believe that the public debate regarding shareholder approval of equity compensation

plans has become significant in recent months Consequently in view of the widespread

public debate regarding shareholder approval of equity compensation plans and

consistent with our historical analysis of the ordinary business exclusion we are

modifying our treatment of proposals relating to this topic



The analogy to the widespread debate surrounding equity-based compensation is apt The

subprime crisis that has engulfed the country and dominated news the last several months as

well as the severe economic and financial crisis that has ensued certainly serves to elevate what

admittedly once might have been matter of ordinary business to anything but that today

For these reasons we submit that the Company has failed to satisfy its burden of persuasion

under Rule 14a-8i7 and the Proposal should be included in the Companys proxy statement

The Company also fails to satisfy its burden under Rule 14a-8i5 ofproving that the

Proposal concerns matter not relevant to the Companys operations

First we believe that this argument may be disposed of based on single representation
made in

the Companys recent Oct 11 2007 News Release in which it noted

As result of the Audit Committees findings the Companys previously issued financial

statements for the periods impacted by the restatement as described above and the related

audit reports
of the Companys independent registered public accounting firm should no

longer be relied upon

Yet the Company seeks to do exactly that Rely on its financial statements to demonstrate its

mortgage business is below mandated threshold under Rule 14a-8i5
It should not be allowed to contravene its own advice when it serves its purpose Beazer states

its financial statements cannot be relied upon and the Staff should not rely upon them

Although that is sufficient to rebut the Companys argument under i5we would also briefly

note that we believe the above-quoted information concerning the enormous challenges

confronting Bearer amply demonstrates that the Proposal is in fact significantly related to the

companys business The Company finds itself in crisis today in large part as result of its

mortgage operations

Conclusion

For all these reasons we believe the company has failed to satisfy its burdens of persuasion under

Rules 4a-8i5 and and its request should be denied Should you wish to discuss this

matter further please contact Ms Jennifer ODell LIUNAs Assistant Director of Corporate

Affairs at 202 942-2359

Sincerely

Michael Short

Secretary-Treasurer



DIVISION OF CORPORATION ELNANCE

INFORMAL PROCEDURES REGARDING SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

The Division of Corporation Finance believes that its responsibility with respect to

matters arising under Rule 14a-8 CFR 240 14a-8 as with other matters under the proxy

niles is to aid those who must comply with the rule by offering informal advice and suggestions

and to determine initially whether or not it may be appropriate in particular matter to

recommend enforcement action to the Commission In connection with shareholder proposal

under Rule 14a-8 the Divisions staff considers the information furnished to it by the Company

in support of its intention to exclude the proposals from the Companys proxy materials as well

as any information furnished by the proponent or the proponents representative

Although Rule 14a-8k does not require any communications from shareholders to the

Commissions staff the staff will always consider information concerning alleged violations of

the statutes administered by the Commission including argument as to whether or not activities

proposed to be taken would be violative of the statute or rule involved The receipt by the staff

of such information however should not be construed as changing the stairs informal

procedures and proxy review into formal or adversary procedure

It is important to note that the stairs and Commissions no-action responses to

Rule 4a-8j submissions reflect only informal views The determinations reached in these no-

action letters do not and cannot adjudicate the merits of companys position with
respect to the

proposal Only court such as U.S District Court can decide whether company is obligated

to include shareholder proposals in its proxy materials Accordingly discretionary

determination not to recommend or take Commission enforcement action does not preclude

proponent or any shareholder of company from pursuing any rights he or she may have against

the company in court should the management omit the proposal from the companys proxy

material



UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON D.C 20549-0402

DMStON OF

CORPOPA11ON FINANCE

February 2003

Marc Manley

Chief Legal Officer çì
Cinergy Corp
l39EastFourthStreet

P.O.Box960

Cincinnati 01-1 45201-0960 _/
Re Cinergy Corp

Incoming letter dated December 23 2002

Dear Mr Manley

This is in response to your letter dated December 23 2002 concerning the

shareholder proposal submitted to Cinergy by the Presbyterian Church USA We also

have received letter from the proponent dated February 2003. Our response is

attached to the enclosed photocopy of your correspondence By doing this we avoid

having to recite or summarize the facts set forth in the correspondence Copies of all of

the correspondence also will be provided to the proponent

In connection with this matter your attention is directed to the enclosure which

sets forth brief discussion of the Divisions informal procedures regarding shareholder

proposals

Sincerely

Martin Dunn

Deputy Director

Enclosures

cc Rev William Somplatsky-Jarman

Associate for Mission Responsibility Through Investment

Presbyterian Church USA
National Industries Division

100 Witherspoon Street

Louisville KY 40202-1396

REFRE curi



February 2003

Response of the Office of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

Re Cinergy Corp

Incoming letter dated December 23 2002

The proposal urges the board of directors to issue report disclosing the

economic risks associated with the Companys past present and future emissions of

carbon dioxide sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxide and mercury emissions and the public

stance of the company regarding efforts to reduce these emissions and the economic

benefits of committing to substantial reduction of those emissions related to its current

business activities

There appears to be some basis for your view that Cinergy may exclude the

proposal under rule 14a-8i7 as relating to its ordinary business operations

i.e evaluation of risks and benefits Accordingly we will not recommend enforcement

action to the Commission if Cinergy omits the proposal from its proxy materials in

reliance on rule 14a-8i7 In reaching this position we have not found it necessary to

address the alternative bases for omission upon which Cinergy relies

Sincerely

Jennifer Bowes

Attorney-Advisor



Cinergy Corp
139 East Fourth Street

P.O Box 960

Cincrnnati OH 45201-0960

Tel 513.287.3023

Fax 513.287.1363

JEROME
Vice President

General Counsel

Assistant Corporate Secretary

HAND DELIVERY
DEC

1086

CINERGY

December 23 2002

c-fl

cc-

U.S Securities and Exchange Commission

Division of Corporation Finance

Office of Chief Counsel

450 Fifth Street N.W

Washington DC 20549

Re Omission of Shareholder Proposal Submitted to Cinergy Corp

Dear Sir or Madam

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8j1 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 Cinergy Corp Delaware corporation requests confirmation that the Staff of the Securities

and Exchange Commission will not recommend any enforcement action if Cinergy omits from its

proxy solicitation materials for its 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders the 2003 Meeting

proposal submitted by the Presbyterian Church USA the Proponent

Cinergy is utility holding company that owns all the common stock of The

Cincinnati Gas Electric CompanyCGE and PSI Energy Inc PSI both of which are

public utility subsidiaries CGE is combination electric and gas public utility that provides

service in the southwestern portion of Ohio CGEs principal subsidiary The Union Light Heat

and Power Company UHLP provides electric and gas service in northern Kentucky PSI is

vertically integrated and regulated electric utility that provides service in portions of Indiana In

2001 CGE began five-year transition to electric deregulation and customer choice however the

competitive retail market in Ohio still is in development stage The retail electric markets in

Indiana and Kentucky remain fully regulated

Pursuant to Rule 14a-Sa2 under the Exchange Act we submit six copies of this

letter to each of which is attached and identified as Exhibit the Proponents resolution and

supporting statement together the Proposal By copy of this letter Cinergy is notifying the

Proponent of its intention to omit the Proposal from its proxy solicitation material for the 2003

Meeting

iUCi



The Proposal requests that Cinergys Board of Directors report to shareholders by

August 2003 on the economic risks associated with certain emissions Cinergys public stance

regarding efforts to reduce those emissions and the economic benefits of committing to substantial

reduction of the emissions

Cinergy believes that the Proposal properly may be excluded from its proxy

solicitation materials pursuant to

Rule 14a-8i3 under the Exchange Act because the Proposal violates Rule 14a-9

Rule 4a-8i7 because the Proposal relates to Cinergys ordinary business

operations and

Rule 4a-8i 10 because it has been substantially implemented and therefore is

moot

The Proposal is Excludable under Rule 14a-8i3

The Proposal is Vague Indefinite and Ambiguous

We believe the Proposal maybe excluded because it is vague indefinite and

ambiguous The Proposal requires report on

the economic risks associated with the Companys past present
and future

emissions of carbon dioxide sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxide and mercury emissions

and the public stance of the company regarding efforts to reduce these emissions and

the economic benefits of committing to substantial reduction of these emissions

related to its current business activities i.e potential improvement in

competitiveness and profitability

The Staff has allowed companies to exclude shareholder proposals under Rule 4a

8i3 that are so vague indefinite and ambiguous that the shareholders voting on the proposal

would not be able to determine with any reasonable certainty exactly what action the company

would be required to take if the proposal were approved See Hormel Foods Corporation November

19 2002 Wal-Mart Stores Inc April 2001 McDonalds Corporation March 13 2001 and

Comshare Incorporated August 23 2000

The Proposal meets this test for two reasons First the Proposal is not clear as to

what economic risks and benefits the report is supposed to address and how they are supposed to be

addressed within the report Because they are economic these risks and benefits each should be

quantifiable at least within range of reasonable likelihood Certainly past and present costs are

quantifiable and anticipated future costs can be estimated However Cinergy is required to and

already does report extensively on historical and anticipated environmental costs and known future

contingencies including legal and regulatory contingencies in its financial statements and in

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Are

these the economic risks referred to by the Proponent If so the report would be duplicative If not

what are they



Similarly how are the economic benefits to be addressed within the report The

Supporting Statement for the Proposal asserts that taking early action on reducing emissions..

could better position companies over their peers and could expose companies to

reputation and brand damage emphasis added The Resolution refers to potential

improvement in competitiveness and profitability as result of committing to reducing emissions

emphasis added These are speculative hopes and theories of the Proponent relating principally to

intangible possible benefits They are not quantifiable by any company and despite early stage

deregulation in Ohio they are particularly out of context when applied to still heavily regulated

company in highly regulated industry

Against this backdrop report by the Board of Directors either would be repetitive

of information already provided to shareholders or would be speculative exercise that would not

yield any meaningful information to shareholders

Second because of the way in which the Resolution is phrased and punctuated it is

unclear what is intended to be done under part
Is the report supposed to address the

economic risks associated with emissions and the public stance of Cinergy regarding reduction of

emissions Or is it supposed to address the economic risks associated with emissions and

Cinergys public stance

Neither Cinergys shareholders in voting nor its Board of Directors if the Proposal

were adopted can know exactly what the requested report is supposed to address Therefore the

Proposal should be excluded

The Proposal is Materially False and Misleading

The Proposal also is excludable because it is false and misleading and violates Rule

l4a-9 By asking Cinergy to speculate on unknown and unknowable future risks and benefits the

Proposal falsely and misleadingly implies that Cinergy could issue meaningful report that goes

beyond the information already given or freely available to shareholders Additionally the overall

tone of the Proposal creates the false impression to shareholders that Cinergy is not taking steps to

reduce emissions that Cinergys public stance on emissions reduction is posing economic risks and

that change in policy would improve competitiveness and profitability This ignores Cinergys

multitudinous efforts in the environmental area and essentially impugns management by implying

that it is not maximizing profitability and therefore not acting in the best interests of Cinergys

shareholders

Finally the fifth and sixth paragraphs of the Supporting Statement beginning U.S

power plants. and Scientific studies show are excludable under Rule 14a-8i3 because

they are in their entirety generalized unsupported assertions of fact for which no authority is cited in

the Proposal See Division of Corporation Finance Staff Legal Bulletin No 14 July 13 2001

stating that shareholders should provide factual support for statements in proposal and

supporting statement



II The Proposal is Excludable under Rule l4a-8i7

Rule 14a-8i7 allows proposal to be excluded from companys proxy statement

if it deals with matter relating to the companys ordinary business operations Pursuant to Rule

14a-8i7 the Staff has consistently permitted the exclusion of proposals that require company to

prepare special report on particular aspect of the conduct of its ordinary business operations even

if the proposal would not require that the company take any particular action with respect to those

business operations

In Exchange Act Release No 34-20091 August 16 1983 the Commission

specifically addressed the issue of the excludability under Rule 14a-8i7 then Rule 14a-8c7 of

proposals requesting reports on matters which relate to companys ordinary business operations

Paragraph of the Release states

In the past the staff has taken the position that proposals requesting issuers to

prepare reports on specific aspects of their business or to form special committees to study

segment of their business would not be excludable under Rule 14a-8c7 Because this

interpretation raises form over substance and renders c7 largely nullity the Commission

has determined to adopt the interpretive change set forth in the Proposing Release

Henceforth the staff will consider whether the subject matter of the special report or the

committee involves matter of ordinary business where it does the proposal will be

excludable under Rule l4a-8c7

Cinergy is one of the countrys leading public utilities The types of emissions

referred to in the Proposal are an inherent aspect of Cinergys business as are Cinergys efforts to

minimize any resulting financial risks and maximize competitiveness and profitability In addition

emissions from Cinergys facilities are in compliance with all applicable state and federal permits

Thus the report contemplated by the Proposal is precisely the type of report contemplated by

Release No 34-20091 that the Staff indirectly analogous circumstances involving shareholder

proposals requesting reports on companies environmental matters has found to be excludable in

accordance with Rule 14a-8i7

In Duke Power Company March 1988 the Staff concurred in the omission under

Rule 14a-8i7 of shareholder proposal requesting that the company report on the environmental

impact of its power plant emissions as well as its environmental control and pollution protection

devices In Carolina Power Light Co March 30 1988 the Staff concurred in the omission under

Rule 14a-8i7 of shareholder proposal requesting that the company issue an annual report on the

release of waste and the companys environmental protection and control activities with regard to

such releases Similarly in Pacific Telesis Group February 21 1990 under Rule 14a-8i7 the

Staff concurred that the company could omit from its proxy statement shareholder proposal

requesting that the company seek improved ways of waste reduction and report on it And in

DuPont de Nemours and Company March 1991 the Staff concurred in the omission under Rule

14a-8i7 of shareholder proposal requesting that the company accelerate its plans to phase out

chiorofluorocarbon and halon production and prepare report showing the increase in research and

development expenditures to accomplish the plan



It is particularly noteworthy that when the DuPont shareholder proposal discussed

above resulted in litigation the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit

specifically upheld the exclusion pursuant to Rule 14a-8i7 of the requested report on the basis

that the proponent had not shown that the information sought implicated significant policy issues

Roosevelt E.I DuPont de Nemours Co 958 F.2d 416 D.C Cir 1992 opinion by Judge Ruth

Bader Ginsberg

Not only does the Proposal call for report on subject environmental matters that

is part of Cinergys ordinary business it requests report on the financial aspects of that subject

which also are part of Cinergys ordinary business

As previously indicated any known material information that would be covered by

the report already is required to be addressed in MDA which in addition to past and present costs

must discuss material commitments for capital expenditures known material trends in

capital resources and material events and uncertainties known to management that would cause

reported financial information not to be necessarily indicative of future operating results or of future

financial condition Regulation S-K Item 303a

Cinergys fiscal year MDA is furnished as required by Rule 14a-5ii to all

shareholders in its Annual Report The MDA and the Notes to Cinergys financial statements

which of course also are part of the information provided to shareholders in the Annual Report

discuss in great detail currently proposed legislative and regulatory actions which could affect the

company in the environmental area Shareholders are well aware that Cinergy is likely to incur costs

related to these issues However the extent of these costs will depend on what regulations ultimately

are adopted and on what costs are recovered from customers either through pricing in deregulated

environment or through the rate structure in regulated environment Similarly as required

Cinergys MDA and financial statement Notes discuss known material pending and threatened

legal risks Again however the eventual outcome of these matters is unknown

The Proposal has no time limit or parameters on its request for information on future

economic risks This is subject on which Cinergy certainly cannot provide information beyond

what is given in MDA Such information would be well beyond forward-looking information

and into the realm of speculation on future governmental policy and regulatory and legal actions

which at this time may not even be contemplated or feasible

The Staff has consistently taken the position that proposal relating to the

presentation of financial information in reports to shareholders is matter of ordinary business This

Proposal relates to financial information that is required both in the Notes to Cinergys financial

statements and in MDA which is an integral part of the financial package that must be furnished to

shareholders The Proposal is directly analogous to the proposals in J.P Morgan Chase Co

February 28 2001 and Willamette Industries Inc March 20 2001 In each case the Staff

concurred that the proposal was excludable under Rule 4a-8i7 because it related to an

evaluation of risk in report to shareholders

We do not believe that the Staffs positions on reports concerning ordinary business

matters in Cinergys case environmental issues and particularly on the financial aspects of those

matters are or should be affected by the Staffs recent determination not to treat proposals relating to



the expensing of stock options as ordinary business matters The decision to or not to expense

options has the potential to make material difference in companys reported income and on its

financial presentation Cinergy announced in July 2002 that it will expense stock options beginning

in 2003 Also the expensing decision is black or white there are no shades of gray On the other

hand as discussed at length above and below in this letter report
is simply report and when it

can only duplicate information already required or available is of no value Even more important

report on economic risks and benefits enters into the realm of risk evaluation and the balancing of

often highly uncertain detriments and benefits that is uniquely the province of management in its

ongoing operation of the business This is not proper subject for shareholder action

Therefore because the Proposal relates to inherent aspects of Cinergys ordinary

business operations it is excludable under Rule 14a-8i7

We also note that the Staff has consistent policy of not allowing revisions under

Rule 14a-8i7 Therefore if any portion of the Proposal is excludable under Rule 14a-8i7 the

entire Proposal may be excluded See Kniart Corporation March 12 1999 The Wamaco Group

Inc March 12 1999 and Chrysler Corporation February 18 1998

III The Proposal Is Excludable Under Rule 14a-8il0

Cinergy believes that the Proposal is moot within the meaning of Rule 14a-8il0

because it has been and is being substantially implemented To the extent possible Cinergy has

previously provided extensive information regarding the topics addressed by the Proposal and it will

continue to do so company need not have implemented shareholder proposal word-for-word to

avail itself of Rule 14a-8il0 See Exchange Act Release No 34-20091 August 16 1983

The Proponent asks Cinergy to report on the economic risks associated with the

companys emissions of carbon dioxide C02 sulfur dioxide S02 nitrogen oxide NOx and

mercury However Cinergy already provides pages of information on these topics in its quarterly

and annual SEC filings In addition to the Notes to the financial statements and MDA concerning

past present and anticipated future costs and regulatory and legal developments the 2001 Annual

Reports MDA section on Environmental Commitment and Contingency Issues sets out Cinergys

plan for managing the economic risks associated with environmental regulation The plan includes

implementing cost-effective greenhouse gas emission reduction and offsetting activities funding

research to better understand the causes and consequences of climate change encouraging global

discussion of the issues and how best to manage them and advocating comprehensive legislation for

fossil-fired power plants These filings also detail Cinergys ongoing expenditures to reduce

emissions including its current program of installing state-of-the-art NOx controls at its biggest coal

units This program involves capital expenditures in excess of $800 million

In addition to these disclosures Cinergy also provides extensive public information

regarding its air emissions and its efforts to reduce those emissions For instance last year Cinergy

published report on its environmental track record during the decade of the Nineties This report

Decade of Progress details Cinergys progress in addressing key air pollution emissions

including NOx S02 and C02 The report is readily available to both shareholders and the general

public on Cinergys website at www.cinergy.com In the report Cinergy details expenditures of over

$650 million in the last decade to reduce emissions of NOx and S02 along with its extensive



investments in combined heat and power projects integrated coal gasification IGCCfuel cells

and other new energy technologies and demand management

In addition Cinergy publishes an annual environmental report which also discloses

the companys emissions of S02 NOx mercury and C02 and discusses the companys present

efforts and future plans to reduce these emissions The 2001 Environmental Progress Report

released in April 2002 Environmental Report also is available to shareholders and the general

public on Ciriergys website at www.cinergy.com In the Environmental Reports Letter from the

Chairman Cinergys Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer James Rogers states that

it is Cinergys commitment to produce our essential product more efficiently and with an ever-

lessening impact on our environment The next environmental report covering 2002 is currently

being compiled and is slated to be released in the Spring of 2003

Beyond this disclosure Cinergy has also led the industry in seeking to create new

workable set of emission reduction targets for coal-fired power To this end Mr Rogers and

Cinergys Vice President for Environment have testified repeatedly before Congress seeking federal

multi-pollutant legislation for coal-fired power plants that will create road map for additional

reductions of NOx S02 and mercury In one such hearing held in 2001 Mr Rogers testified before

the Senate Environment and Public Works Committee in favor of including reasonable C02

component in multi-pollutant legislation breaking with the main-stream industry view In Cinergys

2001 Annual Report Letter to Stakeholders Mr Rogers discussed these efforts to secure long-term

environmental legislation and stated that If we succeed we will have taken steps to improve the

environment while removing much of the uncertainty that surrounds capital investment decisions

associated with coal-fired generation.li

These activities are representative of many other actions Cinergy has taken to address

the impact of its emissions ofNOx S02 mercury and C02 We can and will provide details of

these actions if the Commission so desires But the publications and other information discussed in

this letter demonstrate that Cinergy is already undertaking actions in reporting on risks and on its

public stance that meet both the spirit and letter of the proposed shareholder resolution

Finally the Proposal asks Cinergy to report on the economic benefits of committing

to substantial reduction of emissions As previously discussed this aspect of the Proposal

essentially is directed to future intangibles The future of deregulation is uncertain Customer

choice currently is not an option in two of the three states in which Cinergy operates and any

attempt to quantify the number of Ohio consumers who might select Cinergy over competitor

because Cinergys energy is cleaner would be pure speculation As indicated from the information

given above Cinergy devotes considerable time and resources to being good environmental citizen

As does the Proponent Cinergy hopes that its actions enhance its brand and indeed its bottom line

However this portion of the Proposal remains moot and substantially implemented because it cannot

be implemented further

In Houston Industries March 11 1985 shareholder proposal requested that the

company present stockholders with study of all major areas of risk of nuclear power project

including but not limited to decommissioning waste disposal potential licensing problems and

potential cost of cancellation At the time of the proposal studies addressing the shareholder

concerns were publicly available at relevant state and federal offices Further the company had



summarized information from one of the studies in previous quarterly report to shareholders and in

its letter to the Division the company stated that the shareholders will similarly be apprised in the

future The Staff took no-action position in this instance where the information sought by the

shareholder was already available in studies that were in the public realm and about which the

company had already communicated with shareholders and would continue to do so See also

McDonalds Corporation March 11 1991 and Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation February 16

1995

Because all the information that the Proposal seeks Cinergy to report to shareholders

already exists in the public domain or is communicated directly to shareholders Cinergy believes the

Proposal is moot and therefore excludable under Rule 14a-8i1O



In conclusion for the reasons set forth above Cinergy respectfully requests your

advice that no enforcement action will be recommended if the Proposal is omitted from the proxy

solicitation materials for the 2003 Meeting Should the Staff disagree with the conclusions reached

in this letter we would appreciate the opportunity to confer with you before the issuance of

response

If you have any questions or desire any further information please contact the

undersigned at 513 287-3023

Sincerely yours

Vennemann

General Counsel

Enclosure

cc Rev William Somplatsky-Jarrnan

Mission Responsibility Through Investment



Exhibit

2003 CINERGY SHAREHOLDER RESOLUTION

WHEREAS

In 2001 The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change concluded that there is new and stronger

evidence that most of the warming observed over the last 50
years

is attributable to human activities

In 2001 the National Academy of Sciences stated that the degree of confidence in the IPCC assessment

is higher today than it was 10 or even years ago.. there is general agreement that the observed

warming is real and particularly strong within the past 20 years

The United States governments Climate Action Report 2002 concluded that global climate change

may harm the country The report highlights risks to coastal communities in the Southeast due to sea

level rise water shortages throughout the West and increases in the heat index and frequency of heat

waves

In July 2002 eleven Attorneys General wrote President Bush outlining their concern over the U.S

Climate Action Reports failure to recommend mandatory reductions of greenhouse gas emissions They

declared that States are being forced to fill the federal regulatory void through state-by-state regulation

and litigation increasing the ultimate costs of addressing climate change They urged reconsideration of

his regulatory position and adoption of comprehensive policy that wilt protect
both our citizens and

our economy

U.S power plants are responsible for about two-thirds of the countrys sulfur dioxide emissions one-

quarter of its nitrogen oxides emissions one-third of its mercury emissions approximately 40 percent of

its carbon dioxide emissions and 10 percent of global carbon dioxide emissions

Scientific studies show that air pollution from U.S power plants causes tens of thousands of premature

deaths and hospitalizations hundreds of thousands of asthma attacks and several million lost workdays

nationwide every year
from pollution-related ailments

Standards for carbon dioxide emissions and other air pollutants are emerging across multiple fronts

Ninety-six countries have ratified the Kyoto Protocol requiring carbon dioxide reductions

Massachusetts and New Hampshire have enacted legislation capping power plants emissions of carbon

dioxide and other air pollutants In June 2002 the Senate Environment and Public Works Committee

passed bill seeking to cap emissions from the generation of electric and thermal energy

We believe that taking early action on reducing emissions and preparing for standards could better

position companies over their peers including being first to market with new high-efficiency and low-

emission technologies Changing consumer preferences particularly those relating to clean energy should

also be considered

Inaction and opposition to emissions control efforts could expose companies to reputation and brand

damage and regulatory and litigation risk

RESOLVED That the Board of Directors report at reasonable cost and omitting proprietary information

by August 2003 to shareholders on the economic risks associated with the Companys past present

and future emissions of carbon dioxide sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxide and mercury emissions and the

public stance of the company regarding ei1orts to reduce these emissions and the economic benefits of

committing to substantial reduction of those emissions related to its current business activities i.e

potential improvement in competitiveness and profitability
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PAUL NEUHAUSER
Atwrney at Law dmited New York and low

1253 North Basin Lanc

Siesta ley

Sarasota FL 34242

Tel 941 349-6164 Email roneuhA1useraotcom

February 2003

Secwities Exchange Conunission

450 Fifth Street NW
Washington D.C 20549

Art Gracc Lee sq
Office of the Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

Re Shareholder Proposal Subnincd to Cinergy Corporation

Via fax

Dear Sir/Madam

have been asked by The Presb$erian Church USA referred to hereinafter as

the Proponent which is beneficial owner of shares of common stock of Cinergy

Corporation hereinafter referred to either as Cinergy or the Company and which

has submitted shareholder proposal to Cinergy to respond to the letter dated December

232002 sent to the Securities Exchange Commission by the Company in which

Cinergy contends that the Pmponents shareholder proposal may be excluded from the

Cornpanys year 2003 proxy statement by virtue of Rules 14a4iX3 14a-SiX7 and

14a-8iX 10

have reviewed the Proponents shareholder proposal as well as the aforesaid

letter sent by the Compary and based upon the foregoing as well as upon teview of

Rule 14a-g it is my opinion that the Proponents shareholder proposal must be included

in Cinergys year 2003 proxy sralement and that it is not excludable by virtue of any of

the cited rules

The proposal calls for the Company to report on the production of global wanning

gases and toxic emissions by its operations

*** FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16 ***
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RULE 14a-8iX7

In order for shareholder proposal to be excludable by virtue of Rule 14a-8iXl
the proposal must not only pertain to iatter of oMinay company business bit it must
also fi1 to xaisc significant policy issue Thus Re 34-4001 May 21 1998 states

However proposals relating to such matters but focusing on sufficiently

significant siai policy issues generally would not be considered to be
excludable because the proposals would transcend the day-to-day buuiess
matters.attd raise policy issues so siguiflcattt that it would be appropriate for

shareholder vote

The Staff has consistently ruled that shareholder proposals relating to global

warming raise such important policy consideration that uie 14a-8iX7 is inapplicable to

them American Srandad Companier Inc March 18 2002 Occidental Petrolewn

Corxration March 2002 Ciligroup Inc February 272002 Er.xon Corporation

January 30 1990 Since in Chigup the regrstrant in sharp contrast to Company was
not company whose operations made major contribution to global warming aforriori
the Proponents shareholder proposal raises an important policy issue for Cincrgy

On the merits of why global winning is significant policy issue for registrants

we refer the Stalfto the extensive discussion oIthat topic in the letters by the

undersigned to the Stsft which appear in 2002 SEC No Act LEXIS 396 the American
Siwidard Comjxxnies Inc no-action letter of March 18 2O02 and in 2002 SEC No Act
LEXJS 352 the Occidental Petroleum Ccporation no-action letter of Mamh 2002

RULE 14a-8iX3

We do not believe that there is any ambiguity in the Proponents request In

answer to the question at the bottom of page of the Companys letter the proposal deals

not only with the types of matters which might be included in the Companys 10C but

also with the information which is described in the final two paragraphs of the whetcas

clause including for example reputation risk

Furthermore not all economic risks are quantifab1c and even those types of soft

information which the Company claims to be quaxxtifiablc are nor really quantifiable in

any real sense but rather simply best guesses Various other types of economic risks
such as reputation risk axe not so fax as we ate aware qua ifiable at all That not
make them any less real Nor arc shareholders unable to understand what is being asked

for when reiuest is made to the Company to discuss possible reputation risk resulting

from its course of action or inaction With respect to the reality and materiality of

reputation risk we draw the attention of the Staff to the letter dated May 2001 from
Acting Chairman Unger to Congressman Wolf

*** FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16 ***
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Lithe Staff were to believe that the Companys second point concerning
punctuztioi was well taken the Proponent would be willing to amend tbe resolution to

make it clear that the report is supposed to address the economic risks associated with
emissions and the public stance of Ciricrgy regarding the reduction of emissions

We do not bdievc that the shareholder proposal rule requires proponents
to include in the form of the proposal which appears in the proxy statement citations for

all factual slatemems mMtk instead it has been the Staff practice to require thai such

support be supplied to the regstrattt so that the registrant can check the accuraey of the

statement Nevertheless were the Staff to request that one or more of these citations be

placed in the loon of the proposal actually included in JJs proxy statement we vjld
of course be pleased to comply

The statistics in the fifth whereas clause are derived with respect to sulfur dioxide

and nitrogen oxides from information aaiIable from the EPA on its webtite see
w.etov/ajrtren airtreods quality reports 2001 with respect to carbon dioxide

emissions from information available from the Energy Infonnation Agency of the

Depaxtmcnt of Energy on its wcbsite sce www.e.egov/cmeu/a annual energy
review 2001 and for international comparisons International Energy Agency World

Energy Outlook 2002 paxt page 413 with respect to mercury emissions

Benchmarking Mr Emissions of the 100 Largest Electric Generation Owners in the U.S
2000 aailable at

The statements in the sixth whereas clause arc from The Particulate-Related

Realtb Bcne6ts of Reducing Power Plant Emission Abt Associates October 2000 or

its shottened versrnn iceth Disease Dirty Power Mortality and Health Damage Due
to Air PoHution from Powerlsnts October 2000 each available at www.clearthcair

.or or at ctapolicy.nfact/inoriality

RULE 14a-iX10

The Company has failed to carty its burden of proof to show that the Proponents
siweholder proposal is moot

The Proponent has requested information with respect to

past present and future emissions of four types of pollutants

the public stance of the company regarding efforts to reduce these four

pollutants

*** FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16 ***
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economic benefits which may accrue In competitiveness and

ofitabiity ftom sub5tantial rr4uciion in ilhitants

The Company makes no contention that it has provided any infonnatien with

respect item

As to item the only information cited by the Company as having been made
available to its eholders is the statement quoted in the first full paragraph at the top
of page that it is Cmciyscommitment to produce our essential product more

emciently and with an ever-lessening impact on our environment We do not helieve

that simple platitude constitutes compliance with the Proponents request for

information

With rest to item the Company has provided sonic information but by no

means all that has becit requested Although its 200 Environmental Progress Report

gives the actual quantities of emissions of the four pollulantg there is little in the way of

projecUons of future emissions nor is there is comperc discussion of the economic risks

associated with these emissions or attempts to reduce tmother than reference to

projected expenditures of $800 million over the next several years to comply with EPA
rules Furthermore the SEC filed documents do not provide the in1nnation requested

For example although the Company cites ira quarterly reports an examination its most

recent IOQ for the quarter enckd September 302002 reveals that it contains lurk of the

informalian requested by the Proponent ft has about nine pages of footnotes on

environmental matters However these pages 11k only about existing regulations and

litigation about the validity of these regulations There is almost no forward lookrng

information in the notes and there certainly is no discussion of the advantages and

disadvantages of going beyond the regulatory requirements Similarly the MDA has

three par3graphs under the beading Environmental issues all of which refer either to

actions by the EPA or to litigation over EPA rules In the MDA found in Cincrgy

10K for 2001 there are approximately two pages devoted to Environmental Commitment

and Contingency 1ssue but with one exception the 1DA talks only about regulatory

matters and lnwui1 about regulatory nrattexs The exception is short discussioti of the

Kyoto treaty which discussion is quoted in the Companys letter in the second paragraph

of its discussion of Rule 14a-XIXIO In the 10K fluancials oo1notc 13c thrut

contains much the same type of information found in the financials in the IOQ i.e the

ubcctions are entitled Ozone Transport Rulemakings New Sointe Review the

EPA Bcckfbrd Station Notice of Violation and EPA Agreement Once again the

locus is exclusively on regulatory compliance without any discussion of pto-ctive

possibilities available To the Company

As can be seen there is almost nothing of forward looking nature in response to

item of the Proponents shareholder proposal Similarly there is even less with

respect to item arid absolutely nothing with respect to item Since the Company

has made available but small ftaeiiott ofthe requested infotmation it cannot be deemed

to have substantially implemented the proposal

*** FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16 ***
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For the fofegoing reasons the Proponents shareholder proposal is not excludable

by vitue of Rule 14a-9iXlO

In conclusion we request the Staff to inform the Comxiny that the SEC oxy
rules require denial of the Comçtznys no action quest We uId appreciate your

tetepothng tbc undersigned at 941-349-6164 with respect to any queslions in connection

with this matter ocif the staff wishes any further mformatiori Faxes can be teceived at

the same number Please also note that the undersigned may be reached by mail or

erprcss delivery at the 1cttrhead address or via the email address

trulyy

Attorney at Law

cc Jerome Venneu2Znn Esq
Rev William Somplatsky-Jamaan

sterPat Wolf

*** FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16 ***
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DIVISION OF CORPORATION FINANCE

INFORMAL PROCEDURES REGARDING SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

The Division of Corporation Finance believes that its responsibility with respect to

matters arising under Rule 14a-8 CFR 240.14a-8J as with other matters under the proxy

rules is to aid those who must comply with the rule by offering informal advice and suggestions

and to determine initially
whether or not it may be appropriate in particular matter to

recommend enforcement action to the Commission In connection with shareholder proposal

under Rule 4a-8 the Divisions staff considers the information furnished to it by the Company

in support of its intention to exclude the proposals from the Companys proxy materials as well

as any information furnished by the proponent or the proponents representative

Although Rule l4a-8k does not require any communications from shareholders to the

Commissions staff the staff will always consider information concerning alleged violations of

the statutes administered by the Commission including argument as to whether or not activities

proposed to be taken would be violative of the statute or rule involved The receipt by the staff

of such information however should not be construed as changing the staffs informal

procedures and proxy review into formal or adversary procedure

It is important to note that the staffs and Commissions no-action responses to

Rule 14a-8j submissions reflect only informal views The determinations reached in these no

action letters do not and cannot adjudicate the merits of companys position with respect to the

proposal Only court such as U.S District Court can decide whether company is obligated

to include shareholder proposals in its proxy materials Accordingly discretionary

determination not to recommend or take Commission enforcement action does not preclude

proponent or any shareholder of company from pursuing any rights he or she may have

against the company in court should the management omit the proposal from the companys

proxy material



March 1996 OOJ

RESPONSE OF THE OFFICE OF CHIEF COUNSEL

pyJSIQN OF QOEPQRATQN FflThNCE

Re The Gap Inc the Company
Incoming letter dated February 1996

The proposal requests that the Board of Directors prepare
report which describes the Companys actions to ensure that its

foreign suppliers meet basic standards of conduct

There appears to be some basis for your view that the proposal
may be excluded under Rule 14a-8c 10 as moot Accordingly the
staff will not recommend enforcement action to the Commission if
the Company omits the proposal from its proxy materials in reliance
on Rule 14a-8c .O In reaching position the staff has not
found it necessary to address the alternative bases for omission

upon which the Company relies

Sincerely

Sephar.ie Marks
Attorney Advisor



VIA FEDERALEXPRESS

February 1996

Office o1 Chief Counsel

Division of Corooration Finance

Securities and Exchange Commission

450 Fifth Street N.W
.-o. \Vashington D.C 20549-1004

Re The Gap Inc.- Shareholder Proposal of ACTWU
1934 Act/Rule 14a-8

LiJie ..ind Gentlemen

The Gap Inc. Delaware corporation The Gap or the Company has reccied

shareholder proposal Proposal from the Southern Regional Joint Board of the

Amalgamated Clothing and Textile Workers Union ACTWU or Proponcnt by letter

dated November 22 1995 Pursuant to Rule 4a-8d Of the Securities Exchange Act as

amended we hereby give notice of the Companys intention to omit the Proposal from its

proxy statment and form of proxy collectively the 996 Proxy Materials for its 1996

Annual Meeting

For the reasons set forth in this letter we also respectfully request confirmation from

the staff of the Dvision of Corporation Finance the Division that no enforcement action

v.jll be recommended based upon The Gaps omission of the Proposal from its 1996 Proxy

Materials As our 1996 Proxy Materials must be in final form by April 19 1996 so that they

can be timely mailed to our shareholders we would very much appreciate the Divisions

response to this request as soon as possible but in any event prior to such date

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8d and by copy of this letter we are concurrently noti1ing

the ACTWU of The Gaps intention to omit the Proposal from its 1996 Proxy Materials

Enclosed are six copies of this letter and the Proponents letter to th Company which

sets forth the Froposal and statement in support thereof
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TI-fE PROPOSAL

The Proposal requests that the Companys Board of Directors commit the Company

to code of conduct with respect to the selection process for its overseas suppliers The

Proposal also requests that the Board of Directors prepare report to shareholders which

describes current and future policies relating to that code of conduct The Proposal seeks

to preclude the Company from doing business with suppliers that utilize forced or prison

labor employ children under compulsory school age or legal working age fail to

nijintain safe and healthy work environment fail to follow prevailing practice and local

laws regarding wages and hours or contribute to local environmental degradation The

Proposal also seeks to require compliance verification through monitoring processes

GROUNDS FOR OMISSION

The Gap believes that the Proposal may be properly omitted from its 1996 Proxy

Miterials for the following reasons

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8c1 the Proposal is not proper subject for

action by security-holders under Delaware law

ii Pursuant to Rule 14a-2c7 the Proposal deals with matter relating

to the conduct of the Companys ordinary business operations and

iii Pursuant to Rule 14a-8clO the Proposal has been rendered moot

The Proposal is Not Proper Subject for Action by Security-Holders Under

the Laws of the Companys Domicile and May Therefore Be Omitted Under

Rule 4a-8c

Rule 4a-8c permits the omission of proposal which under the laws of the

registraLits domicile is not proper subject for action by security-holders In fact Section

141a of the Delaware General Corporation Law provides that the power and duty to

manage the business of Delaware Corporation is vested in its board of directors unless

othervise specified in its certificate of incorporation As The Company has not modified its

certificate of incorporation in this respect the Proposal may be properly omitted

The rationale underlying Section 141a is based in part on the fact that corporation

would not be viable business entity if ordinary business decisions were the subject of
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shareholder deliberation Clearly the ongoing selection and versight of corporations

suppliers falls within the scope of its boards responsibility to manage the business of the

corporation Because the Proposal is directed at these very activities ii is not proper

subject for action by security-holders

The Proposal Deals With the Conduct of the Companys Ordinary Busincss

Operations and Therefore May be Omitted from the 1996 Proxy Materials

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8c7

Rule 14a-8c7 permits omission of proposal which deals with matter relating

to the conduct of the Companys ordinary business operations The Commission has stated

that the policy underlying Rule 14a-8c7 i.. is basically the same as the underlying policy

of most state corporation laws to confine the solution of ordinary husincss problems to the

board of directors and place such problems beyond the competence and direction of

shareholders The basic reason for this policy is that it is manifestly imraeticablc in most

cases for stockholders to decide management problems at corporate mceiings Commission

Release No 34-19135 47 October 14 1982 quoting the testimony of Commission

Chairman Armstrong at the Hearings on SEC Enforcement Problems Before the

Subeomminee of the Senate Committee on Bankint and Currency 5th Cone ct Sess. 11

195 71

As one of the nations leading clothing retailers The Gap purchases merchandise

from hundreds of suppliers located in over 50 countries The determination of whether

when and how to do business with particular supplier is matter routinely dealt with by

management as part
of the Companys day-to-day business operations The ongoing

selection and maintenance of its suppliers involves numerous business considerations and

decisions nging in scope from quality control to competitive pricing to internal and

governmental compliance issues

In series of no-action letters issued under Rule 14a-8d the Commissions Staff

the Staff has consistently confirmed its position that the selection of suppliers vendors

and independent contractors is an ordinary course matter and that shareholder proposals

relating to these issues may be omitted from registrants proxy materials For example thc

Staff allowed the omission of proposal that requested report from Wal-Mart Stores

regarding certain employment policies as well as description of Wal-Marts efforts to

See in Re Tw Services Inc Shareholders Litigation C.A 10298 Del Ch March

1989 While corporate democracy is pertinent concept corporation is not New England

town meeting directors not shareholders have responsibilities to mnagc the business and affairs

of the corporation subject however to fiduciary obligation
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publicize its policies to suppliers and to purchase goods from minority and female-owned

suppliers Wal-Mart Stores Inc available April 10 1991 and April 10 1992 The

tbllowing no-action letters also addressed in part the purchase of goods and services from

specified suppliers American Brands Inc available December 28 1995 Delta Air Lines

Inc available July 27 1995 LIV Corporation available November 22 1995

selection of audit firm Bank America Corp available February 27 1986 selection of

independent auditors Texas Air Corp available April 11 1984 employment of outside

tunscl

Moreover the fact that the ACTWU Proposal refers to broader social or public policy

issues should not impact the operation of Rule 14a-8cX7 where the clear goal of the

Proposal is to make shareholders directly responsible for the management of an inherently

ordrnary business operation In Cracker Barrel Old Country Store Inc Cracker Barrel
available October 13 1992 the Staff allowed Cracker Barrel to exclude shareholder

proposal relating to that companys employment policies arid practices even though the

proposal related to broader social issues The Staff specifically stated that the fact that such

proposal is tied to social issue will no longer be viewed as removing the proposal from

the realm of the ordinary business operations of the registrant In reaching this

determination the Staff noted that the line between includable and excludable employment
related proposals based on social policy considerations has become increasingly difficult to

draw and that the lines drawn are often seen as tenuous without substance and effectively

nullifying the application of the ordinary business exclusion to employment related

proposals

Thus the mere fact that the ACTWUs Proposal to regulate an ordinary business

operation of the Company also refers to social issues does not transform it into something

other than what it is proposal which can be properly omitted under Rule 14a-8c7

The Proposal May be Properly Omitted as Moot Under Rule 14a-8c10
Because it Has Already Been Substantially implemented by the Company

Rule 4a-8c 10 provides that any proposal which has been rendered moot may b.c

omitted from companys proxy materials In applying this Rule the Commission has

permitted omission of proposals that have been substantially implemented by an issuer

Commission Release No 34-20091 August 16 1983

The Gap currently has in place formal sourcing policies and procedures which govern

the operations and employment practices of its suppliers These standards are clearly

outlined in document entitled NGap Sourcing Principles and Guidelines copy of which

is attached hereto as Exhibit The Company developed these standards to ensure that all

of its suppliers fully understood the Companys expectations and requirements of them
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These sourcing principles also appear at the beginning of the Companys Vendor Handbook
which is used as an ongoing reference guide by all suppliers with which we do business

The Gap initially mailed this Handbook to its existing suppliers in 1993 and most recently

in 1995 and also mails it to each new supplier prior to submitting any orders for production

In fact The Gaps Sourcing Principles and Guidelines specifically address each and

every item requested in the Proposal The Forced Labor section satisfies the Proposals

request relating to forced or prison labor The Child Labor section satisfies the Proposals

request relating to the use of child labor The Wages and louts section satisfies the

Proposals request relating to compliance with prevailing practice and local laws regarding

wages and hours The Working Conditions section satisfies the Proposals request relating

to maintaining safe and healthy work environment Finally the Environment section

satisfies the Proposals request relating to environmental degradation

Moreover The Gaps purchase order terms exprcss1 require the manufacturer to

agree to comply with all wage and hour and other labor laws including child labor

minimum wage overtime and safety-related laws and provide that the Company may
terminate any order and withhold payment in the event of non-compliance copy of the

Companys purchase order is attached hereto as Exhibit

With respect to monitoring and enforcement issues the Company has adopted pre
contract review procedures which must be followed before any supplier is approved As part

of its internal approval process for example the Company performs an intensive on-site

factory evaluation of each prospective manufacturer This On-site interview not only affords

us the opportunity to evaluate each manufacturers facilities first-hand but to explain that our

business relationship is conditioned upon the suppliers strict and continuous compliance with

all labor laws and The Gaps Sourcing Principles and Guidelines The Gap also has several

ongoing mnitoring programs in place and regularly conducts on-site visits of its existing

suppliers In accordance with the Companys stated policy suppliers which fail to cooperate

and comply with our requirements will not receive future business and are taken off of our

list of approved contractors

Finally the Companys Board of Directors periodically reviews current sourcing

issues and is kept appraised of any new developments Furthermore last year at the express

request of the ACTWU The Gap also dctailcd its sourcing policies on page 16 of its 1994

annual report to shareholders copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit

Since The Gap has already acted to adopt implement enforce and report upon its

comprehensive code of conduct for suppliers each and every concern raised in the Proposal

has already been substantially implemented by the Company Therefore the Proposal may
be omitted as moot under Rule 14a-8cXlO
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III CONCLUSION

In light of the above The Gap believes that the Proposal may be omitted from the

996 Proxy Materials based on any one of the following grounds the Proposal is not

proper subject for action by stockholders under the law of The Gaps domicile Delaware

ii the Proposal relates to and seeks to govern the conduct of ordinary business operations

of the Company and iii the Proposal has already been substantially implemented and is

accordingly moot

Please address your response to this letter to my attention at Harrison Street San

Francisco California 94105 In the interim please also feel free to call me if you have any

questions or comments at 415 291-2515 Thank you in advance for your consideration of

these matters

Very truly yours

aki%nr
Anne Gust

Senior Vice President and

General Counsel

ABG cmc

Enclosures



Via Facsimile and Registered Mail RECEIVED

Jovember 22 1995 1995

COUNSEL
Ms Anne Gust Secretary

The Gap Inc

Harrison Street

San Francisco CA 94105

Dear Ms Gust

On behalf of the Southern Regional Joint Board of the Amaigamated Clothing and Textile

Workers Union ACTWU hereby submit the attached resolution which requests that the

Companys Board of Directors review its current sourcing code of conduct regarding its

relationships with both domestic and foreign contractors and report to shareholders on these

sourcing policies including implementation and enforcement We believe that the working

conditions of foreign and domestic manufacturing suppliers have become an even greater issue of

concern to shareholders U.S retailers and their customers over the past year

We would like to have the attache4 resolution included in the companys proxy statement for the

next annual meeting of shareholders pursuant to rule 14-a8 of the Securities and Exchange Act

Also attached is letter verifying ACTWU Southern Regions beneficial ownership of twenty-

eight t8 shares of The Gap inc common stock The Southern Region of ACTWU intends to

hold this stock through the date of the Companys annual meeting

tf you have any questions or require ftirther information please call me at 202785-5690

Sincerely

Michael Zucker

Director

enclosures

UNION OF NEEDLETRAPES INDUSTRIAL AND TEXTILE EMPLOYEES AFLCIO CLC

MY MAZUI Offlc of Corporate and flnanctel Attalrs

fl4UR LOcv 2100 Steel P.1W. Suite 210 Wahngtin D.C 20037

sauci
Telephone 202-785-S690 FAX 202-785-5499

tOGAS OMI4EY E.tcte ce vt



RESOLVED That the shareholders of The Gap Inc fCompanyu request that the Board of

Directors review our Companys code of conduct to ensure its domestic and overseas suppliers

meet basic standards of conduct and prepare report to shareholders at reasonable expense

which describes current policies for its relationships with suppliers and discusses the Companys

current and future compliance efforts and plans We request that our Companys code of conduct

include at minimum

that the Company will not do business with suppliers which

utilize forced or prison labor

employ cnildrcn under compulsory school age or legal working age

fail to maintain safe and healthy work environment

fail to follow prevailing practices and local laws regarding wages and hours

contribute to local environmental degradations and

that the Company will verif its suppliers compliance through certilication regular

inspections and other monitoring processes

As U.S companies increasingly import goods from overseas concern is growing about

working conditions in many countries which fall far below the most basic standards of fair arid

humane treatment The United Nations
reports that the use of child labor continuer to bt

serious international problem one which is increasing in Africa and Asia Human
rights groups

estimate that over 200 million people work under forced or prison labor conditions world wide

Revelations over the last several months concerning the use of workers held in slave-like

conditions in California apparel factories underscore the need for strong oversight of domestic

suppliers as well

Recently The Gap has been confronted with sourcing problems of its own The

York Times and other major periodicals have published reports of human rights violations

poverty level wages and management law-breaking at contractor of The Gaps in El Salvador

We believe the pervasive problems delineated by the news media speak to the real need for more

effective approach to sourcing policy and enforcement at The Gap In addition we feel the

negative publicity surrounding this situation is damaging the reputation of our Company

The U.S Congress has responded to concerns about goods made by overseas suppliers by

introducing legislation that would make it criminal oftŁnse to import goods made by child labor

The Department of Labor has taken on major initiatives to enforce wage and hour laws among
domestic contractors and to promote more vigorous sourcing practices by retailers

We believe it is important that The Gap which relies on foreign and domestic

manucturing contractors not only voice support for minimum supplier standards but also

maintain system of verification and enforcement that ensures the Company will only do business

with contractors who comply with these standards These standards must be strong enough to

protect the Company from legal and other problems caused by wrongful supplier conduct Our

Companys image and the activities which contribute to that image are of great concern to

shareholders and we believe efforts to adhere to high corporate standaixls make both moral and

economic sense



UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON D.C 20549-3010

OMSIONOF
CORPORATION FINANCE

PUBUC RE FE ECE COPuary 12 2006

Kevin Keogh
White Case LLP

1155 Avenue of the Americas

New York NY 10036-2787 Act ________________________

Section_______________________
Re Newmont Mining Corporation Rule____________________

incoming letter dated December 2005 Public

Availability
//c I2

DearMr Keogh

This is in response to your letter dated December 2005 concerning the

shareholder proposal submitted to Newmont by the New York City Employees
Retirement System the New York City Teachers Retirement System the New York City

Police Pension Fund the New York City Fire Department Pension Fund and the New
York City Board ofEducationRetirement System We also have received letter on the

proponents behalf datedJanuary 62006 Our response is attached to the enclosed

photocopy of your correspondence By doing this we avoid having to recite or

summarize the facts set forth in the correspondence Copies of all of the correspondence

also will be provided to the proponents

In connection with this matter your attention is directed to the enclosure which

sets forth brief discussion of the Divisions informal procedures regarding shareholder

proposals

Sincerely

Eric Finseth

Attorney-Adviser

Enclosures

cc Kenneth 13 Sylvester

Assistant Comptroller for Pension Policy

The City of New York

Office of the Comptroller

Bureau of Asset Management
Centre Street Room 736

NewThrk 100O72341



January 122006

Response of the Office of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

Re Newmont Mining Corporation

Incoming letter dated December 2005

The proposal urges management to review its operations in Indonesia with

particular reference to potential financial and reputational risks incurred by the company

as an outgrowth of these operations and to report its findings to shareholders

There appears to be some basis for your view that Newmont may exclude the

proposalunder rule 14a-8i7 as relating to Newmonts ordinary business operations

i.e evaluation of risk Accordingly we will not recommend enforcement action to the

Commission if Newmont omits the proposal from its proxy materials in reliance on

rule 14a-8i7

Sincerely

Mark Vilardo

Special Counsel
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Tel 12128198200

1155 Avenue of the Americas Fax 212 354 81137CT A9
New York New York 10036-2787 www.whitecase.com

-c NSEL
J1 ur-tl iU frt.

December 2005

HAND DELIVERY

Office of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

Securities and Exchange Commission

100 Street N.E

Washington D.C 20549

Re Newmont Mining Corporation

Statement of Reasons for Omission of Shareholder Proposal Pursuant to

Rule 14a-8j under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

Ladies and Gentlemen

This letter is being submitted by White Case LLP on behalf of our client Newmont
Mining Corporation Delaware corporation Newmont or the Company pursuant to Rule

14a-8j promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange
Act in reference to the Companys intention to omit the shareholder proposal attached hereto

as Exhibit the Proposal filed by the Office of the Comptroller of New York City on behalf

of the New York City Employees Retirement System the New York City Teachers Retirement

System the New York City Police Pension Fund the New York City Fire Department Pension

Fund and the New York City Board of Education Retirement System collectively the

Proponents The Proponents wish to have the Proposal included in Newmonts proxy
statement the Proxy Statement for its 2006 annual meeting of shareholders the 2006
Annual Meeting On behalf of Newmont we hereby submit this statement of reasons for

exclusion of the Proposal from the Proxy Statement for filing pursuant to Rule 14a-8j under the

Exchange Act and hereby request that the staff of the Division of Corporation Finance the
Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission the Commission confirm that it will not

recommend enforcement action against Newmont should Newmont omit the Proposal from the

Proxy Statement in reliance on one or more interpretations of Rule 4a-8 under the Exchange
Act set forth below

The Proposal

The Proposal states that shareholders urge management to review its operations in

Indonesia with particular reference to potential financial and reputational risks incurred by the

ALMATY ANKARA BANGKOK BEIJING BERLIN BRATISLAVA BRUSSELS BUDAPEsT DRESDEN OOSSELDORF FRANKFURT HAMBURG HELSINKI
HO CIII MINH CITY HONG KONG ISTANBUL JOHANNESBURG LONDON LOS ANGELES MEXICO CITY MIAMI MILAN MOSCOW MUMBAI NEW YORK PALO ALTOPARIS PRAGUE RIYADH ROME SAN FRANCISCO SˆO PAULO

--

SHANGHAI SINGAPORE STOCKHOLM TOKYO WARSAW WASHINGTON DC

NEWYOILK 5294131 2K
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company as an outgrowth of these operations and to report to shareholders on the findings of

this review

For the reasons set forth below the Company believes that the Proposal may be omitted

from the Proxy Statement

Discussion of Reasons for Omission

Ordinary Business Operations

The Proposal should be considered matter of ordinary business operations Rule 4a-

8i7 under the Exchange Act pennits registrant to omit shareholder proposal if it deals
with matter relating to the companys ordinary business operations In accordance with this

rule the Staff has
consistently permitted the exclusion of proposals that require company to

prepare special report on particular aspect of the conduct of its ordinary business operations

even in cases where such proposal would not require the taking of any particular action by the

company with respect to such business operations In Release No 34-20091 August 16 1983
the Commission specifically addressed the issue of the excludability under Rule 4a-8c7
under the Exchange Act the predecessor to the current Rule 4a-8i7of proposals requesting

reports on matters which relate to companys ordinary business operations According to this

Release proposal will be excludable pursuant to such rule if the subject matter of the special

report involves matter of ordinary business The general policy underlying the ordinary
business exclusion is to confine the resolution of ordinary business problems to management
and the board of directors since it is impracticable for shareholders to decide how to solve such

problems at an annual shareholders meeting Release No 34-40018 May 21 1998 This

general policy rests on two primary considerations that tasks are so fundamental to

managements ability to run company on day-to-day basis that they could not as practical

matter be subject todirect shareholder oversight and ii the degree to which the proposal

seeks to micro-manage the company by probing too deeply into matters of complex nature

upon which shareholders as group would not be in position to make an informed judgment
Release No 34-40018 May 21 1998

The Company believes that the Proposal fits squarely within the category of proposals

meant for exclusion pursuant to Rule 14a-8i7 under the Exchange Act because the Proposal

seeks an evaluation of the financial and reputational risks of the Companys business operations
The Proposals focus is the operations of the Company which are issues exclusively under the

aegis of the Board of Directors The Proponent does not request that the Company adhere to any
principles or policies Instead the Proposal seeks review of the Companys business activities

and in particular certain of the fmancial and repittational risks it faces The review or

evaluation of risks is fundamental
part of ordinary business operations and is best left to

management and the Board of Directors See e.g Dow Chemical Company available February

23 2005 excluding proposal requesting report describing the impact that certain outstanding

issues may reasonably pose on the company its reputation its finances and its expansion
Newmont Mining Corp available February 2005 reconsideration denied March 15 2005
excluding proposal requesting review of and report on the Companys policies concerning

iste 4csal atits gcperatiQnsin.IndQnesiawith particularreferenceto potential

4EWYORI 5294131 2K
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environmental and public health risks incurred by the Company by such policies Newrnont

Mining Corp available February 2004 excluding proposal requesting report on risk to the

companys operations profitability and reputation from its social and environmental liabilities

Xcel Energy Inc available April 2003 excluding proposal which urged that the conipanys
board of directors issue report disclosing the economic risks associated with the companys
past present and future emissions of certain gases and the public stance of the company
regarding efforts to reduce these emissions Mead Corporation available January 31 2001
excluding proposal related to request for report of the companys environmental risks in

financial terms The Proposal is similar to those in Dow Chemical Company Newmont Mining
Corp Xcel Energy Inc and Mead Corporation

Furthermore the Staff has consistently allowed omission of proposals seeking financial

disclosures beyond those that the registrant is required to make on the basis that such proposals
relate to the conduct of ordinary business See e.g WPS Resources Corp available January 23
1997 American Telephone and Telegraph Company available January 29 1993 American
Stores Company available April 1992 Potomac Electric Power Company March 1991
Pacjflc Gas and Electric Company available December 13 1989 Minnesota Mining and

Manufacturing Company available March 23 1988 Arizona Public Service Company
available February 22 1985 Moreover the Staff has not Objected to omission of such

proposals even though they did not specifically request that the financial information be included

in periodic report but rather sought disclosure of the information to shareholders

supplementally See e.g Mead Corporation available January 31 2001 American Telephone
and Telegraph Company available January 29 1993 Arizona Public Service Company
available February 22 1985 The Commission already regulates disclosure by companies to

ensure that shareholders and potential investors have sufficient information to make informed

decisions about such companies including any known risks and uncertainties that might have

future impact on such company The decision to disclose information in addition to that which is

required by the Commission is properly left to the judgment of the Companys Board of

Directors and management as matter relating to the conduct of ordinary business operations

Furthennore report on potential risks enters into the realm of risk evaluation that is uniquely
the responsibility of the Companys Board of Directors and management in their ongoing
operation of the business Therefore the Company believes that the Proposal is also excludable

based upon the above reasoning

While proposals involving business matters that are mundane in nature may be excluded

from companys proxy materials based upon Rule 14a-8i7 under the Exchange Act
proposals that raise social policy issues so significant that shareholder vote on the matter is

appropriate may not be excluded on such basis Release No 34-12999 November 22 1976
Release No 34-40018 May 21 1998 The Staff recently addressed this distinction relating to

shareholder proposals involving environmental and public health issues clarifying that

company may omit such shareholder proposals if the proposal focuses on the company
engaging in an internal assessment of the risks or liabilities that the company faces as result of

its operations that may adversely affect the environment or the publics health but not if the

proposal focuses on the company minimizing or eliminating operations that may adversely
affect the environment or the publics health Staff Legal Bulletin No 14C available June 28

2OO.S.inajf-LegalBulletinNo.14G.-theStaffeompared-the-proposa.l itpermittedto be

NEWORK 5294131 2K
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excluded in Xcel Energy Inc available April 2003 calling for report by the board of

directors on the economic risks associated with the Companys past present and future

emissions the public stance of the company regarding efforts to reduce these emissions and

the economic benefits of committing to substantial reduction of those emissions related to its

current business activities i.e potential improvement in competitiveness and profitability

with Exxon Mobil Corp available March 18 2005 calling for report on the potential

enviromnental damage that would result from the company drilling for oil and gas in protected

areas and the implications of policy of refraining from drilling in such areas Here unlike

Exxon Mobil Corp the Proposal neither requests that the Company minimize or eliminate

operations that may adversely affect the environment or the publics health nor requires that the

report focus on the Company minimizing or eliminating such operations Instead similarto the

proposal in Xcel Energy Inc the Proposal seeks
report merely assessing the potential risks that

the Company faces as result of certain aspects of its operations that may adversely affect the

environment or the publics health Furthermore although the preamble to the Proposal alludes

to certain environmental and public health issues in Indonesia the action requested by the

resolution in the Proposal is for report that focuses in particular on potential financial and

reputational risks incurred by the company as an outgrowth of these operations This language

in the Proposal indicates that the main objective of the Proposal is not to address any particular

social policy issue but instead to request report that focuses on financial aspects of the

Companys operations in Indonesia which as previously discussed fall within the purview of the

Companys ordinary business operations Accordingly the Proposal does notraise

sufficiently significant social policy issue so as to bring it outside of Rule 14a-8i7 under the

Exchange Act Release No 34-40018 May 21 1998 Instead the Proposal merely addresses

the ordinary business of the Company

Based on the foregoing the Company believes that the Proposal deals with matters that

involve the Companys ordinary business operations Accordingly and in view of the consistent

position of the Staff on prior proposals relating to substantially similar issues the Company
believes that the Proposal is excludable pursuant to Rule 14a-8i7 under the Exchange Act and

we respectfully request that the Staff concur that it will take no action if the Company excludes

the Proposal from its 2006 Proxy Statement

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8j2 under the Exchange Act filed herewith are six copies of this

letter as well as six copies of the Proposal We would very much appreciate response from the

Staff on this no-action request as soon as practicable so that the Company can meet its timetable

in preparing its proxy materials If you have any questions or require additional information

concerning this matter please call Kevin Keogh of White Case LLP at 212 819-8227

NEWYORK 5294131 2K
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Very truly yours

KKEY

cc Britt Banks Esq
Sharon Thomas Esq
Kenneth Sylvester Office of the Comptroller of New York City

NEWYORX 5294131 2K



FfCD NOV 212005

THE CITY OF NEW YORK TELEPHONE 212669-2013

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER FAX NUMBER 212 669-4072

BUREAU OF ASSET MANAGEMENT WWW.COMPTROLLER.NYC.GOV

CENTRE STREET ROOM 736
EMAIL KSYLVEScomptrollernyc.gov

NEW YORK N.Y 10007-2341

Ke.th Sylvester

WILLIAM THOMPSON JR
FOR PENSION POLICY COMPTROLLER

November 14 2005

Mr Britt Banks

Vice President General Counsel and

Secretary

Newmont Mining Corp

1700 Lincoln Street

Denver CO 80203

Dear Mr Banks

The Office of the Comptroller of New York City is the custodian and trustee of the New

York City Employees Retirement System the New York City Teachers Retirement System

the New York City Police Pension Fund and the New York City Fire Department Pension

Fund and custodian of the New York City Board of Education Retirement System the

funds The funds boards of trustees have authorized me to inform you of our intention to

offer the enclosed proposal for consideration of stockholders at the next annual meeting

Letters from Bank of New York certifying the funds ownership continually for over year

of shares of Newmont Mining common stock are enclosed The funds intend to continue to

hold at least $2000 worth of these securities through the date of the annual meeting

submit the attached proposal to you in accordance with rule 4a-8 of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and ask that it be included in your proxy statement

We would be happy to discuss this initiative with you Should the Companys board of

directors decide to endorse its provision the funds will ask that the proposal be

withdrawn from consideration at the annual meeting If you have any questions on this

matter please feel free to contact me at 212 669-2013

Ve truly yours

Kenneth Sylvester

Enclosures

Newinont Mining human rights hr 2005



NEWMONT MINING

WHEREAS we believe that transnational corporations operating in countries with repressive

governments ethnic conflict weak rule of law endemic corruption or poor labor and

environmental standards face serious risks to their reputation and share value if they are seen to

be responsible for or complicit in degradation of the environment or human rights violations

and

WHEREAS Newmont Mining has extensive mining operations on the islands of Sulawesi and

Sumbawa in Indonesia and

WhEREAS the company has employed submarine tailings disposal STD as method of

disposing of toxic mining waste generated by its Indonesian mining operations and

WHEREAS in September 2004 the New York Times reported that the STD method employed

by Newmont in Indonesia has been effectively banned in the United States under the provisions

of the Clean Water Act and

WHEREAS in August 2005 the Indonesian government filed criminal charges against the

company as well as $133 million civil law suit on the grounds that Newinonts Sulawesi

operations violated Indonesias toxic dumping laws and that the marine environment adjacent to

those operations was contaminated with unnatural levels of arsenic and mercury that posed

significant health risks to the local population and

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED shareholders urge management to review its operations in

Indonesia with particular reference to potential financial and reputational risks incurred by the

company as an outgrowth of these operations and to report to shareholders on the findings of

this review
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The Bank of New York

One Wall Screc

New York NY 10286

TheBANK

ofNEWYORK

November 14 2005

To Whom It May Concern

Re NEWMONT MINING CORP.- CUSIP 651639106

Dear Madame/Sir

The purpose of this letter is to provide you with the holdings for the above referenced asset

continuously held in custody from November 14 2004 through today at The Bank of New York in

the name of Cede and Company for the New York City Fire Department Pension Fund

the New York City Fire Department Pension Fund 96488 shares

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any specific concerns or questions

Sincerely

Alice Ruggiero

Vice President



Securkies Servicing

The Bank of New York

One Wall Sticet

Nw York NY 10286

The BANK
ofNEWYORK

November 14 2005

To Whom it May Concern

Re NEWMONT MINING CORP-NEWMONT MINING CORP-CUSIP 651639106

Dear Madame/Sir

The purpose of this letter is to provide you with the holdings for the above referenced asset

continuously held in custody from November 14 2004 through today at The Bank of New York in

the name of Cede and Company for the New York City Police Pension Fund

the New York City Police Pension Fund 294871 shares

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any specific concerns or questions

Sincerely

/fQ49J
Alice Ruggiero

Vice President



Sccurid Servicing

The Bank of Ncw York

Onc Wall Srrcer

Ncw York NY 10286

ofNEWYORK

November 14 2005

To Whom It May Concern

Re NEWMONT MINING CORP CUSIP 651639106

Dear Madame/Sir

The purpose of this letter is to provide you with the holdings for the above referenced asset

continuously held in custody from November 14 2004 through today at The Bank of New York in

the name of Cede and Company for the New York City Employees Retirement System

The New York City Employees Retirement System 457244 shares

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any specific concerns or questions

Sincerely

Alice Ruggiero

Vice President



Securities Servidng

The Bank of New York

One WnIl Street

New York NY 10286

BANK
ofNEWYORK

November 14 2005

To Whom It May Concern

Re NEWMONT MINING CORP- CUSIP 651639106

Dear Madame/Sir

The purpose of this letter is to provide you with the holdings for the above referenced asset

continuously held in custody from November 14 2004 through today at The Bank of New York in

the name of Cede and Company for the New York City Teacher Retirement System

the New York City Teachers Retirement System 395195 shares

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any specific concerns or questions

Sincerely

Alice Ruggiero

Vice President



Securities Servicing

The Bank of New York

One Wall Street

Ncw York NY 10286

The BANK
ofNEWYORK

November 14 2005

To Whom It May Concern

Re NEWMONT MINING CORP- CUSIP 651639106

Dear Madame/Sir

The purpose of this letter is to provide you with the holdings for the above referenced asset

continuously held in custody from November 14 2004 through today at The Bank of New York in

the name of Cede and Company for the New York City Board of Education Retirement System

the New York City Board of Education Retirement System 21202 shares

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any specific concerns or questions

Sincerely

Alice Rugdo
Vice President



THE CITY OF NEW YORK
OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER

GENERAL COUNSEL
CENTRE STREET ROOM 602 TELEPHONE212 669-3163

NEW YORK 10007-2341
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BY EXPRESS MAIL
January 2006

Securities and Exchange Commission

Division of Corporate Finance

Office of the Chief Counsel

100 FStreetN.E
Washington D.C 20549

Re Newmont Mining Corporation
Shareholder Proposal submitted by the New York City Pension Funds

To Whom It May Concern

write on behalf of the New York City Employees Retirement System the New
York City Teachers Retirement System the New York City Police Pension Fund the

New York City Fire Department Pension Fund and the New York City Board of

Education Retirement System the Funds in response to the December 2005

letter sent to the Securities and Exchange Commission the Commission by the

firm of White Case on behalf of Newmont Mining Corporation Newmont or the

Company In that letter the Company contends that the Funds shareholder

proposal the Proposal may be omitted from the Companys 2006 proxy statement

and form of proxy the Proxy Materials under Rule 14a-8i7 under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934

have reviewed the Proposal as well as the December 2005 letter Based

upon that review as well review of Rule 14a-8 it is my opinion that the Proposal

may not be omitted from the Companys 2006 Proxy Materials Accordingly the

Funds respectfully request that the Division of Corporate Finance the Division

deny the relief that Newmont seeks

The Proposal

The Proposal consists of series of whereas clauses followed by resolution

Among other things the whereas clauses note the serious risk to the reputation

and share value of transactional corporations operating in politically and socially

troubled countries if they are seen to be responsible for or complicit in degradation

of the environment or human rights violations the extensive mining operations of

Newmont on the Indonesian islands of Sulawesi and Sumbawa the use of

submarine tailingsdisposalSTDby-Newmont-to dispose-of waste

generated by its Indonesian mining operations an article in the New York Times



9/8/04 indicating that the STD method employed by Newmont in Indonesia has

been effectively banned in the United States under the provisions of the Clean Water

Act Ce that in August 2005 the Indonesian government filed criminal charges

against the company as well as $133 million civil law suit regarding the violation of

Indonesias toxic dumping laws and the contamination of the adjacent marine

environment with unnatural levels of arsenic and mercury thereby posing significant

health risk to the local population These clauses are followed by resolved clause

that states

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED shareholders urge management
to review its operations in Indonesia with particular reference to

potential financial and reputational risks incurred by the company
as an outgrowth of these operations and to report toshareholders on the

findings of this review

II The Companys Opposition and the Funds Response

In its letter of December 2005 the Company requested that the Division not
recommend enforcement action to the Commission if the Company omits the Proposal
under one provision of SEC Rule 14a-8 Rule 14a-8i7 relates to the conduct of the

companys ordinary business operations Pursuant to Rule 14a-8g the Company bears
the burden of proving that this exclusion applies As detailed below the Company has
failed to meet that burden and its request for no-action relief should accordingly be
denied

The Proposal Does Not Relate to the Conduct of the Companys Ordinary
Business Operations and So May Not Be Omitted under Rule 14a-8l7

Due to Newmonts global stature there has been extensive reporting of the

indictment of Newmonts Indonesian subsidiary and Newmonts top executive in Indonesia
an American citizen and the subsidiarys president an American over allegations of

dumping toxins into bay near its mine causing Illnesses in villagers The Newmont
criminal trial is being watched in the boardrooms around the world Rocky Mountain News
8/6/05 The trial sets precedent because no American company In recent history has

been indicted on criminal charges in any developing country Id The trial is an unusual

case of an American corporate giant facing criminal charges in developing country The
New York Times 8/6/05 The International Herald Tribune 8/6/05 That the head of

operations for major American company is being criminally prosecuted abroad is

exceptional enough But the case has also become test both of Indonesias legal system
and of the conduct of international corporations that operate in far-off lands where local

people often feel that foreign businesses keep laxer standards than at home The New
York Times Company 8/5/05 The International Herald Tribune 8/5/05 The case

against Newmont is being closely watched by investors and environmentalists who are

waiting to see whether the Indonesian government will be prepared to punish
multinational company for the first time in recent memory The Guardian 8/6/05
Asociated Press 8/5/05 guilty verdict would increase pressure on the Indonesian

government to withdraw the license it granted Newmont to dump waste at sea in 1999
It would also complicate company pans to use



mine it plans to open on Sumbawa in the next few years Associated Press Worldstream

8/6/05 Although Newmonts CEO Wayne Murdy stated that Newmont is determined

to win this case Murdys headache and perhaps that of many foreign investors in

Indonesia is that many influential Indonesians are just as determined to win Fortune

international 9/5/05

Indonesias criminal trial against Newmont received extensive coverage again during
November 2005 when an Indonesian court dropped the civil case referenced in the Proposal
on jurisdictional grounds At the time that news of the dismissal was disseminated the media

consistently discussed details of the criminal trial while pointing out that the separate criminal

trial had not been affected by the courts ruling For example it was reported in The Financial

Times London 11/18/05 in an article headlined Newmonts Legal Woes Remain in Spite

of Victory in Indonesia that the criminal hearing was unaffected and was expected to

continue well into 2006 UPI 11/15/05 reported that while the decision to dismiss the civil

suit would ease some of the U.S companys troubles it still faced charges of criminal

pollution and that the president of Newmonts Indonesian subsidiary faced possible 10-year

jail sentence if convicted.2

Notwithstanding this worldwide attention the focus of the international business

community and the readily apparent significant social significance the Company without

explanation chose to ignore completely the indictment and criminal trial in its December

2005 letter In so doing Newmont has demonstrated insensitivity and profound lack of

understanding of the significant social policy issues the Proposal raise Without acknowledging

these material facts the Company reached the erroneous and indeed preposterous
conclusion that because the Proposal does not address any significant social policy issue it

should be excluded as one falling within the realm of ordinary business That the Company
ignores its extraordinary predicament in Indonesia is arrogant and strongly conveys the

urgency for the Proposals conclusion

The fact that proposal relates to ordinary business

matters does not conclusively establish that

company may exclude the proposal from its proxy

materials As the Commission stated in Exchange
Act Release No 40018 proposals that relate to

ordinary business matters but that focus on

sufficiently significant social policy issues

See also Taipei Times 8/20/05 The Houston Chronicle 8/7/05 The Washington Post 8/6/05 Associated

Pica 8/6/05 Charleston Gazette 8/6/05 Pittsburgh Post-Gazette 8/6/05 Financial Times 8/5/05 Deutsche

Presse Agentur 8/5/05 Australian Associated Press Ply Ltd 8/5/05 Orlando Sentinel 8/5/05 Japan Economic

Newswjre 8/5/05 BBC 8/5/05 The Atlanta Journal-Constitution 8/5/05 Turkish Press 8/5/05 St .Paul Pioneer

Press 8/5/05

See a/so Thai Press Reports 11/17/05 The New York Times 11/16/05 St Paul Pioneer Press 11/16/05 Ih
Australian 11/16/05 Rocky Mountain News 11/16/05 BBC 11/15/05 Associated Press 11/15/05 Grand Forks

Herald North Dakota 11/15/05 The Miami Herald 11/15/05 Jakarta Post 11115/05 Deutsche Presse-Agentur

11/15/05



would not be considered to be excludable because

the proposals would transcend the day-to-day

business matters.u See Amendments to Rules on

Shareholder Proposals Exchange Act Release No
40018 May 21 1998

Staff Legal Bulletin SLB 14A July 12 2002footnotes omitted in citations to

Bulletin

The Bulletin then reviewed the SECs historical position of not permitting

exclusion on ordinary business grounds of proposals relating to significant policy

issues

The Commission has previously taken the position

that proposals relating to ordinary business matters

but focusing on sufficiently significant social policy

issues generally would not be considered to be

excludable because the proposals would transcend

the day-to-day business matters and raise policy

issues so significant that it would be appropriate for

shareholder vote The Division has noted many
times that the presence of widespread public

debate regarding an issue is among the factors to

be considered in determining whether proposals

concerning that issue transcend the day-to-day

business matters
Id

The extent to which the indictment and the prosecution for

alleged criminal pollution has attracted media attention reflects the degree

of public concern over the issue and supports finding that the Proposal is

not excludable The Proposal is concerned with the Companys indicted

environmental practices and the deep risks this poses not only to the

Companys finances but to Newmonts very reputation

In addition to its disregard of the facts the Company failed to support its position by

citing any persuasive no-action letters None of the no-action letters Newmont cited

present Proposal intertwined with grave state of affairs aki.n to the subject situation It

should be noted that Newmont did not address General Electric January 28 2005 which

provides the most analogous situation The factual circumstances surrounding the Proposal

in General Electric included conducting business with terrorist states Not surprisingly the

Staff rejected the Companys argument that the Proposal related only to ordinary

business Newmonts current situation in Indonesia i.e the criminal indictment of

subsidiary and its president based upon the Companys environmental practices and

continuing criminal trial may present an even more significant social policy issue and be

even less like ordinary business than was the case in General Electric



The Companys reliance on the Divisions Staff Legal Bulletin No 14C June 28 2005 is

misplaced Contrary to the Companys assertion the subject situation is more akin to Exxon

Mobil Corp March 18 2005 than to Xcel Energy Inc April 2003 As in Exxon the

Proposal is focused on significant social policy issue i.e alleged hazardous environmental

operations The Proposal seeks report on the potential financial and reputational risk to

continuing these operations that underlie the indictment and pending criminal trial and is not

seeking internal assessment as was the case in Xci review and risk analysis could result

in the recommendation that Newmont minimize or eliminate these operations given the

financial and reputational risk Whether to continue minimize or stop such mining operations
that underlie the indictment against the company represent significant social policy issue

Further the Proposal in Xcel did not seek report on the reputational risk unlike the subject

Proposal General Electric and Exxon

For all of those reasons the Company has failed to prove that the Proposal may be

excluded under Rule 14a-8i7

Conclusion

For the reasons stated above the Funds respectfully submit that the Companys
request for no-action relief should be denied Should you have any questions or require

any additional information please contact me

Thank you for your time and consideration

Very truly yours

Janice Silberstein

Associate General Counsel

cc Kevin Keogh Esq
White Case LLP

1155 Avenue of the Americas

New York New York 10036-2787



DIVISION OF CORFOR.TION FINANCE
INFORMAL PROCEDURES REGARDING SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

The DivisiOn of Corporation Finance believes that its responsibility with respect to

matters arising under Rule 14a-8 CFR 240 14a-8 as with other matters under the proxy

rules is to aid those whO must comply with the rule by offering informal advice and suggestions

and to determine in tially whether or not it may be appropriate in particular matter to

recommend enforcement action to the Commission In connection with asharehoidr proposal

wider Rule 14a-8 the Divisions staff considers.theinfonnation funiished to it by the Company
in support of its intentiQn to exclude the proposals from the Companfs proxy materials as well

as any information furnished by the proponent or the proponents representative

Although Rule .14a-8k does not require any coniinunicatiOns frotn shareholders to the

Commissions staft the staff will always consider information concerning alleged violations of

ihe statutes administered by the Commission including argument as to whether or not activities

proposed to bo taken would be violative of thestatute or nile ijivolved. The receipt by the staff

of suchinfoniiation however should not be construed as changing the staffs informal

procedures and proxy review into formal or adversary procedure

it is important to note that the staffs and Commissions no-action responses to

.Rtfle 14a-8j submissions reflect onlyinformal views The determinations reached in these no-

action letters do not and cannot adjudicate the merits of companys position with respect to the

prOposal Only court such as U.S District Coirt can decide whether company is obligated

to include shareholder proposats un its proxy mafeiials Accordii.gly discretionary

determination not to recommend or take Commission enforcement action does not preclude

proponent or any shareholder of company from pursuing any rights he or she may have against

the company iii couit shouki the management Omit the proposal from the conipanys proxy

materiaL
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NORDSTROM

January51995

VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL

Securities and Exchange Commission

Office of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

450 Fifth Street N.W
Washington D.C 20549

Re Nordstrom Inc Shaxtholdcr Proposal of Amalgamated Clothing Textile Workers
Union under Rule 14a-S

Dear Sir/Madam

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8d under the Securities Exchange Act as amended Nordstrom Inc the

Company hereby gives notice of its intention to omit from us proxy statement and form of

proxy collectively the 1995 Proxy Materials for its 1995 Annnal Meeting proposal the

Proposal submitted by Michael It 2aicker of the Amalgvnined Clothing Textile Workers
Union the Proponent by letter dated December 1994

Enclosed are six copies of each of the following

this letter

the Proponents letter to the Company including the Proposal and statement in

support thereof

An opinion the Legal Opinion of Lane ikwell Spears Lubersky counsel to

the Company in support of the Companys position that it may omit the Proposal

from its 1995 Proxy Materials and

Nordstrom Paxtnership Guidelines the Companys letter dated April 26
1994 to its vendors and press release by the Company dated May 121994

The Company believes that it may omit the Proposal from its 1995 Proxy Materials for the

reason set forth in the Legal Opinion i.e that it is moot under Rule 14a.-8c10

Accordingly the Company requests the concurrence of the staff of the Division of Corporation

Finance that no enforcement action will be recommended if the Company omits the Proposal

from its 1995 Proxy Materials

By copy of this letter and all enclosures the Company is concurrently notifying the Proponent

of its intention to omit the Proposal from its 1995 Proxy Materials

1i1i hnhnOR1fl1.1Afl q.2111
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Securities _______ Commission

Januaiy

Page

We wuld appreciate your earliest response to our position that the Proposal may be omitted

from the 1995 Proxy Materials in order for the Company to prepare and to mail its 1995 Proxy
Materials to shareholders in timely fashion

Please acknowledge your receipt of this letter and enclosures by date-stamping the enclosed

additional copy of this letter and returning it in the enelosed self-addressed envelope Should

you have any questions regarding this no-actioa request please call the undersigned at 206
628-1151 or if am unavailable Wayne Gittinger or Michael Morgan of Lane POwell

Spears Lubersky at 206 223-7000

Very truly yours

NOR9TROM INC

Co-President

RAJbjs
Enclosure

cc Wayne Gittinger
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REVISED PROPOSAL

RESOLVED That the shareholders of Nordstrom Jnc the Company request that the Board of

Directors
report to shareholders at reasonable expense which describes current policies for

its re alion with suppliers and discusses the Companys current and future compliance efforts and

plans The report should indude description of how the Companys policies efforts and plans

compare to the following minimum criteria

the Company will not do business with suppliers which

utilize forced or prison labor

employ children under compulsory school age or legal working age

fail to maintain safe and healthy work environment

fail to follow prevailing practice and local laws regarding wages and hours

contribute to local environmental degradation and

the Company will verifj its suppliers compliance through certification regular inspections

and/or other monitoring processes

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

As U.S companies increasingly import goods from overseas concern Is growing about working
conditions in many countries which fall far below the most basic standards of fair and human

treatment We believe our Company which relies heavily on imports hould be taking active steps

to ensure that its overseas suppliers meet certain minimum standards for the treatment and work

conditions of its employees

While it is illegal to knowingly import goods into the U.S made by forced or prison labor it is well-

documented that China has an extensive system of forced labor which produces goods for export

International human rights groups estimate that over 200 million people continue to work under

forced or prison labor conditions The United Nations reports that child labor continues to be

serious international problem and is increasing in Mica and Asia Widely publicized reports on child

labor in Bangladesh and unsafe working conditions in Thailand where goods were being

manufactured for export to the U.S have also brought home for American customers companies

and shareholders alike the need to ask questions about where and under what conditions U.S.-sold

goods are being made

number of U.S companies including leading retailers have adopted corporate codes of conduct in

recent years
tlsock to ensure goods they import do not come from suppliers where these kinds of

problems per The U.S Congress has responded to concerns about goods made by overseas

suppliers by introducing various measures including legislation that would make it criminal offense

to import goods made by child labor and that would require U.S businesses participating in joint

ventures in China to follow corporate code of conduct that would incorporate the standards

discussed here

We believe it is important that our Company not only voice support for minimum supplier standards

but also maintain system of verification that ensures the Company does business with only

complying suppliers and that protects the Company from legal and other implications of supplier

conduct Our Companys image and the actions behind that image are of great concern to

shareholders and we believe efforts to adhere to high corporate standards make both moral and

economic sense



LANE 000034
POWELL

January 1995

Nordstrom Inc

1501 Fifth Avenue

1420 Fl/thAw
Seattle WA 98101-1603

it410O

Re Nordstrom Inc Shareholder Proposal of Amalgamated Clothing Textile

Workers Union under Rule 14a-8

206 Zz700O

m.x
Gentlemen

FoctjjJe

206 223.7107 You have asked us to review the letter dated December l99 from Michael Zucker
of the Amalgamated Clothing and Textile Workers Union the UProponentU record

Ibciu holder of shares of the Companys common stock and an atlached resolution and

supporting statement collectively the resolution and supporting statement are referred

to herein as the Proposal for the purpose of determining whether the Proposal must
be included in the Companys 1995 proxy statement and form of proxy the Proxy
Materials

In rendering this opinion letter we have relied as to matters of material fact un the

representations of the Companys min2gement but we have no reason to beIiee that any
such representations are incorrect or incomplete Furthermore in our capity as general

counsel to the Company we have assisted the Company in cnec1ion with the

formulation adoption and distribution of The Nordstrom Partnership Guidelines

Subject to the foregoing and on our examination of such questions of law we have

deemecessary or appropriate for the purpose of this opinion it is our opinion that the

Prop.maybe properly omitted from the Companys Proxy Materials pursuant to the

provis5us of paragraph c10 of Rule 14a-8 as proposal that has been rendered moot
Rule 14a-8c10 provides that the registrant may omit proposal and any statement in

support thereof from its proxy statement and form of proxy. the proposal has

been rendered moot The Securities and Exchange Commission permits the omission

of proposals that have been substantially implemented by the issuer SEC Release

No 34-20091 August 16 1983

Abo AK
The Proposal requests that the Companys Board of Directors commit the Company to

code of conduct and prepare and submit report to shareholders describing the

Mow Vernon WA Companys supplier policy and compliance efforts Significantly the code of conduct
Olyrnpia WA

PotJand

Se.ttJe %s4

Lc.idon Lg1.and
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Nord Inc
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requested by the Proponent is nearly identical to The Nordstrom Partnership Guidelines

the uGuidelines which was adopted by the Company on April 26 1994 The
Guidelines were mailed to all of the Companys approximately 30000 vendors in April

and May of 1994 and took effect on June 1994 the Guidelines and the

Companys letter to vendors dated April 26 1994 copies of which are enclosed

comparison of the Proponents code of couductu and the Guidelines reveals that the

Guidelines include each form of prohibited supplier conduct listed in the Proposal and

include the means to verify compliance as requested in the Proposal The Proponent for

example requests that under the code of conduct the Company will not do business with

suppliers which

utilize forced or prison labor

employ children under compulsory school age or legal working age
fail to follow prevailing practice and local laws regarding wages and

hours

fail to maintain safe and healthy working envimnmcnt or

contribute to local environmental degradation

In addition the Proponent requests that the Company verify its suppliers compliance

through certification regular inspections and/or other monitoring processes

Under the Guidelines the Companys vendors are expected to refrain from

utilizing prison or forced labor

utilizing child labor

failing to offer wages hours and overtime consistent with prevailing local

industry standards

failing to provide safe and healthy work environments for their workers

failing to demonstrate commitment to the environment

failing to comply with all applicable legal requirements or

discriminating

Furthermore the Company continues to monitor compliance with the Guidelines and to

undertake random on-site inspections of vendor facilities We understand that

contemporaneously with the adoption of the Guidelines for example senior

representatives of the Company visited foreign manufacturers to conduct on-site

inspections of their facilities
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The Guidelines address each area of business conduct contained in the Proponents

suggested code of conduct We do not believe that the slight differences between the

Proposal and the Guidelines such as the use of regular or random inspections to ensure

compliance are significant enough to distinguish the Proposal from the Companys

ongoing program under the Guidelines It is weU recognized that the Company need not

adopt shareholdei proposal word-for-word to avail itself of Rule 14a-8c1O but needs

only to have substantial1y implementedu it In the Commissions view TMa determination

that the Company has substantially implemented the proposal depends upon whether its

particular policies practices and procedures compare favorably with the guidelines of the

proposaL Texaco Inc March 2S 1991

The Proponent also requested that the Company prepare report for its shareholders

describing its policies and compliance efforts The Company has previously provided

information regarding its supplier policy to the general public in press release dated

May 12 1994 in which it also offered copy of the Guidelines to interested persons

the Companys press release dated May 121994 copy of which is enclosed This

publication conforms to the Commissions position holding proposals that request the

disclosure of information to shareholders to be moot where the issuer has already

publicized the type of ir.formation requested by the proposaL e.g McDonalds

Corporation March 11 1991 Woolworth Corporation April 11 1991

For all of the above reasons we believe the Proposal is moot under Rule 14a-8c1O
and the Company can properly exclude the Proposal from its Proxy Materials

Veiy truly yours

LANE POWELL SPEARS LUBERSKY

MARsjg
cc .aymond Johnson

LPA1 \1MA1O2I9MALLTR
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February 1995

U.S Secuiities and Exchange Commission

Ofilce of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

450 Fifth Street N.W

Washington D.C 20549

Re Nordstrom Inc Shareholder Proposal Submitted by the Amalgamated Clothing and Textile

Workers Union

Proponrnts Rly to Nordstrom Ims Statement of Intent to Omit Proposaland Request for

NoActign Letter

Dear SirlMadam

On behalf of the Amalgamated Clothing and Textile Workers Union we hereby file this letter in

response to Nordstrom Inc.s
request

for No Action letter Pursuant to Rule 14a-8d enclosed

are five additional copies ofthis fetter and attachments

On Januaxy 1995 Nordstrom Inc the Company notified the Securities and Exchange

Commission the Commission of its intention toomit the shareholder proposal the Proposal
submitted to the Company by the Amalgamated Clothing and Textile Workers Union the

KPropo1entH under Rule 14a-8cXlO which states that an issuer may omit proposal if the issuer

has already substantially implemented the proposal and requested that the Commission issue No
Action letter of support of that intention The Proposal requests that the Company establish

set of standards for its suppliers which meets certain minimum criteiia and prepare report to

shareholders desciibing and reporting on its policies as well as its current and future compliance

efforts with
respect to those policies

K1 AL
AFLClO dC

Office at Corpoii F1nanclI At fIrs

1808 Swann Street N. 8.cond Floor Washington D.C 20009
Tel 202 745.1710 Fe fl2 4R3.5492

I2
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It is our position that the Company has failed to show it has made any serious attempt to implement

the reporting aspect of the Proposal which goes to the substance of the request that shareholders be

provided with information to allow them to assess the Companys position and actions in this policy

area In fact the Companys conduct in this matter is evidence of the Companys reluctance to

implement the request The previous Commission decisions cited by the Company only fi.irther

illuminate the gap between the standard of substantial implementation and the Companys actions

to date For these reasons as set forth in greater detail below we believe the Companys request for

UNO Action should be denied

Proponent is Prepared to Revise thc Proposal

The Proponent recognizes that the Company apparently previously took steps to implement the first

aspect
of the Proposal namely adopting set of standards for its suppliers which meet certain

minimum requirements The Proponent agrees
vith the Company that the policy statement provided

by the Company to the Proponent in response to the submission of the Proposal contains number

of the elements detailed in the first aspect of the request In order to distinguish for shareholders and

the Commissionthe actions taken by the Company to date from the actions requested which remain

to be taken the Proponent is willing to revise the Proposal to omit the aspect of the request asking

the Company to adopt policy of this type Attached is revised proposal for consideration by the

Commission and the Company which omits the portion of the Proposal requesting the Company to

adopt the policy in question If the Companys inclusion of the revised Proposal rather than the

Proposal would avoid confusion over the first aspect of the request the Proponent is amenable to

use of the modified Proposal

Rule l4a-8cL1

The Companys conduct in this matter namely its resistance even prior to receipt of the Proposal

to providing information about the existence and substance of any corporate policy on supplier

standards relates directly to the request that the Proponent seeks to put before shareholders and

to the failure by the Company to implement that request Over one month before the Companys

submission dedflne for shareholder proposals in letter dated October 20 1994 the Proponent

asked the Company fbr information about any corporate standards it had in place regarding its

suppliers and the Companys success in implementing and enforcing any such standards The letter

further informed the Company that the Proponent was considering filing shareholder proposals at

certain companies on the issue of supplier standards copy of this letter is attached as Exhibit

The Company did not respond to this communication before the proposal submission deadline

December 1994 on which date the Proposal was then submitted to the Company Three weeks

later on December 30 1994 the Company responded by providing the Proponent with three and
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half pages of information along with cover letter indicating it would seek to omit the Proposal in

six calendar days if it was not withdrawn The infbrmation provided by the Company consisted of

one-page policy statement double-spaced press
release announcing the adoption ofthe policy

and cover letter addressed to the Companys vendors copy of this communication from the

Company is attached as Exhibit

The Companys outside counsel spoke with member of our staff on Januaiy 61995 and indicated

that although the Company had filed its No Action request with the Commissionthe previous day

for scheduling reasons the Company was interested in whether the Proponent was satisfied with the

information provided Upon invitation the Proponent detailed in letter transmitted via facsimile the

same day the type of additional information sought copy ofthis letter is attached as Exhibit

On Januaiy 91995 the Company responded through its outside counsel by providing the Proponent

with additional copies of the Companys request for No Action and the minimal information

previously supplied by the Company Its cover letter does not acknowledge the request made for

additional information copy of this communication is attached as Exhibit It appears to us that

although the Company is highly interested in the Proponent withdrawing the Proposal it has no

interest in implementing the Proponents request

The Company has also failed to meet its burden of showing that the Proposal is moot under Rule 14a-

8cXIO The three Commission letters cited by the Company in support of its position in fact draw

out these shortcomings and instead make clear that the Company has not met the standards of

substantially implemented demonstrated in these other cases

The Company attempts to compare its position favorably with the position of Texaco by citing the

Commission letter Texaco Inc available March 28 1991 Proposal requesting that the company

adopt detailed set of environmental standards commonly known as the Valdez Principles In the

case cited the company clearly went beyond satisfing the shareholder proposal in question In

support of its position that it had already substantially implemented comprehensive environmental

policy that in fact went beyond the principles it was being asked to institute the company supplied

over one hundred pages from internal and external sources documenting its extensive environmental

policies and practis In rendering its opinion that the companys existing policy compared favorably

with the propoai in question the Conunission was able to note that extensive policies practices and

procedures with respect to the esiviromnent administered by the Company address the operational and

managerial programs as well as make provisions for periodic assessment and review as outlined by

the guidelines of the proposal We believe the scant infonnation provided by the Company in

support of its position that it has substantially implemented set of sourcing standards make it

dicu1t if not impossible to draw similar conclusion in this case

The volume of information provided aside however the other distinguishing factor here is that in the

case of Texaco the shareholder proposal involved only adopting set of standards while this
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Proposal also requests report to shareholders There is no basis for the Companys claim that the

reporting aspect of the Proposal has been satisfied

The Company asserts that it satisfied the reporting aspects of the Proposal when it released 362-

word press release over private business wire on May 12 1994 search of on-line indices of all

major national and regional newspapers magazines and business journals from that date to the date

of this letter however revealed not single reference to the Companys policy copy of the record

of the indices search is attached as Exhibit Far from having disseminated the type of

communication indicated by the Proposal to its shareholders or alternatively the public we believe

the Company instead has barely made the fact of the existence of its policy available

That the Company has failed to implement the reporting aspects of the Proposal is clearly drawn out

by the additional two Commission letters cited by the Company Woolworth Corporation available

April 11 1991 and McDonalds Corporation available March 11 1991 The shareholder proposal

in Wlworths had two parts
similar to the Proposal namely that the companys board of directors

create committee to examine the issue of mistreatment of animals in stores that sold pets and that

the committee prepare report to shareholders to be available in the following year 1992 The

company clearly met both these requests In its determination the Commission noted that the

company had both previously created an advisory board of the type and with at least the scope

requested by the shareholder proposal and had committed to having its advisory board produce

report to be available to shareholders sometime in 1992 In the situation here in contrast the

Company has proved reticent to demonstrate toi shareholders that it has even adopted policy and

totally unwilling to implement the second aspect
of the Proposal It is exactly the standard met in

Woolworths that the Company commit to the release of report to be available to shareholders

that the Company has ignored and by all appearances intends to continue to ignore

The Companys shortcomings in making information of the type requested available to shareholders

is similarly illuminated in the final Commission letter cited by the Company McDonalds Corooration

The proposal requests that the company provide infonnation to its shareholders and customers on

the environmental and health effects of producing and consuming one of its principle products

ground beef Nxwithstanding that the information requested in the proposal was generally publicly

available from sources other than the company the company was able to demonstrate as noted by

the Corrimissian in its letter that it had made wide variety of information available on regular

basis to customers and shareholders in its stores and in various shareholder communications The

information shared with these groups included the existence of entire company departments called

Nutrition and Environment which the company said dealt with company matters iii these areas

including providing information to shareholders and customers The Commission further noted that

the company intended to publicize the continued availability of this information in an upcoming

shareholder communication in expressing its view that the company had substantially implemented

the proponents request for information. The insubstantial three pages of information provided by the
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Company not upon request but upon the filing of the Proposal hardly meets the standard established

for providing information in the case of McDonalds The resistance by thc Company to providing

the information requested in the Proposal and the Companys attempts to compare its rththnal

communication to the public about its policies to the extensive and substantial information provided

by companies in the other cases cited can only make clear the Companys fiJure to address the

Proposal

The imubstantial proof of the existence of corporate policy at the Company is far from the goal of

the Proposal of having the Company communicate in substwtial way with shareholders about the

nature operation and success of corporate sourcing standards at our Company Eased on the

foregoing we believe that the Company has failed td show it has rendered the Proposal moot under

14a-8cXI We respectfully request that the Commission deny the Companys request for No
Action

copy of this letter and attachments has also been provided to the Company If the Commission has

questions or requires thrther information please contact me at 202 7I5-I7IO

Sincerely

4/
Michael Zucker

Director

Enclosure

cc Raymond Johnson Co-President Nordstrom Inc
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RESPONSE OFFICE OF CHIEF COtJNS
DIVISION RPORATIOL FINANCE

Re Nordstrom Inc the Company
Incoming letter dated January 1995

The proposal requests that the Board of Directors commit to
code of conduct to ensure its overseas suppliers meet basic

standards of conduct and prepare report which describes
current policies and discusses the Companys current and future
compliance efforts and plans

There appears to be some basis for your view that the

proposal may be excluded wider Rule 14a-8c 10 as moot
Accordingly the staff will not recommend enforcement action to
the Commission if the Company omits the proposal from its proxy
materials in reliance on Rule 14a-9clO In reaching
position the staff has not found it necessary to address the
alternative bases for omission upon which the Company relies

Sincerely

Andrew Gerber
Attorney -Advisor
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON DC 20549

March 20 2001

Mary Ann Frantz

Miller Nash LLP

3500 U.S Bancorp Tower

111 S.W Fifih Avenue

Portland OR 97204-3699

Re Willaniette Industries Inc

Incoming letter dated January 25 2001

Dear Ms Frantz

This is in response to your letter dated January 25 2001 concerning the shareholder

proposal submitted to Willamette by David Johnson Our response is attached to the enclosed

photocopy of your correspondence By doing this we avoid having to recite or summarize the

facts set forth in the correspondence Copies of all of the correspondence also will be provide4

to the proponent

In connection with this matter your attention is directed to the enclosure which sets forth

brief discussion of the Divisions informal procedures regarding shareholder proposals

Sincerely

Martin Dunn

Associate Director Legal

Enclosures

cc David Johnson

                               

                                    

DIVISION OF
CORPORATION FINANCE

L93c
1ub2U

iab11ity 2Q2OQ/

*** FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16 ***
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Response of the Office of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

Re Willamette Industries Inc

Incoming letter dated January 25 2001

The proposal provides that the board of directors shall create an independent committee

to prepare report of Willamettes environmental problems and efforts to resolve them
including an estimate of worst case financial exposure due to environmental issues for the next

ten years as well as other matters specified in the proposal

There appears to be some basis for your view that Willamette may exclude the proposal

under rule 4a-8i7 as relating to its ordinary business operations i.e evaluation of risk

Accordingly we will not recommend enforcement action to the Commission if Willamette omits

the proposal from its proxy materials in reliance on rule 14a-8i7 In reaching this position we
have not found it necessary to address the alternative bases for omission upon which Willamette

relies

Sincerely

Attorney-Advisor
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YLA FEDERAL EXPRESS

Securities and Exchange Commission

Division of Corporation Finance

Judiciary Plaza

450 Fifth Street NW
Washington D.C 20549

Subject Willamette Industries Inc

File No 1-12545

Shareholder Proposal of David Johnson

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8d under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as am.ended

the Exchange Act we enclose on behalf of our client Willamette Industries Inc the
Company six copies of this letter and proposal and supporting statement that have been

submitted to the Company for inclusion in the Companys proxy materials relating to its 2001

annual meeting of shareholders This proposal was submitted to the Company by
David Johnson the Proponent The proposal relates to report to shareholders on the

Companys environmental problems and efforts to resolve them

The Company intends to omit the Proponents proposal and supporting statement

from its proxy materials pursuant to Rules 14a-8i7 14a-8il0 14a-8i6 and 14a-8i3
under the Exchange Act Rule 14a-8i7 authorizes the omission of proposal if it deals with

matter relating to the companys ordinary business operations Rule 4a- 8i10 authorizes

the omission of proposal if it has been substantially implemented Rule 14a-8i6 authorizes

the omission of proposal ifthe company.. lack the power to implement the

proposal and Rule 14a-8i3 authorizes the omission of proposal if it is vague and

misleading
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Bases for Exclusion

The Proposal May Be Excluded under Rule 14a-8i7 Because the Proposal Relates

to the Companys Ordinary Business Operations

The proposal may be omitted pursuant to Rule 14a-8i7 because it deals with

compliance with federal state and local environmental laws and regulations matter that relates

to the Companys ordinary business operations

Excludability Under Rule 14a-8i7

proposal may be omitted under Rule 14a-8i7 if it deals with matter

relating to the companys ordinary business operations Rule 14a-8i7 is intended to exclude

proposals that involve business matters that are mundane in nature and do not involve any

substantial policy or other considerations Exchange Act Release No 12999 Nov 22 1976

As explained by the SEC the ordinary business exclusion under Rule 14a-8i7 rests on two

central considerations

The first relates to the subject matter of the proposal Certain tasks are so

fundamental to managements ability to run company on day-to-day basis that

they could not as practical matter be subject to direct shareholder oversight

Examples include the management of the workforce such as the hiring

promotion and termination of employees decision on production quality
and

quantity and the retention of suppliers However proposals relating to such

matters but focusing on sufficiently significant
social policy issues e.g

significant
discrimination matters generally would not be considered to be

excludable because the proposals would transcend the day-to-day business

matters and raise policy issues so significant that it would be appropriate for

shareholder vote

The second consideration relates to the degree to which the proposal seeks to

micro-manage the company by probing too deeply into matters of complex

nature upon which shareholders as group would not be in position to make an

informed judgment This consideration may come into play in number of

circumstances such as where the proposal involves intricate detail or seeks to

impose specific time-frames or methods for implementing complex policies

Exchange Act Release No 40-018 May 21 1998

Compliance with Environmental Regulations

The Proponents proposal is directed at what over the years has become

significant part of the ordinary business operations of forest products company The proposal

embodies request that the Board of Directors of the Company prepare each year an extremely
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detailed and technical report on the Companys ongoing day-to-day environmental protection

and pollution-control activities The proposal requests that the report set forth the following

the major challenges at Willamette facilities to comply with

environmental regulations

an explanation of assessed fines due to noncompliance with

environmental regulations

an assessment of any management culpability or responsibility for the

fines as addressed by regulatory agencies

an estimate of worst case financial exposure due to environmental

issues for the next ten years

an evaluation of company efforts to

reduce pollution by such methods as changes in management

or operational systems new capital expenditures and

application
of new technologies and

involve employees community organizations and

environmental groups in efforts to safeguard health and safety

For many years the Companys activities have been regulated by federal state

and local regulations in the environmental and safety areas Compliance with those laws and

regulations are part of the day-to-day business of the Company as it endeavors to operate its

facilities in clean safe efficient and environmentally acceptable manner The Company has

substantial staff devoted exclusively to the environmental component of its legal compliance

program This program includes the generation of literally hundreds of publicly available reports

required by the environmental laws and regulations that apply to the Companys daily operations

The program also involves stringent oversight of and improvements to the Companys

environmental practices

In numerous other instances the SEC staff has concluded that proposals related to

compliance with governmental statutes and regulations involve ordinary business and therefore

are excludable pursuant to Rule 14a-8i7 In Duke Power Company Duke Power

February 1988 for example the SEC staff concurred that proposal requiring an annual

report detailing Duke Powers environmental proteŁtion and pollution control activities could be

omitted from its proxy statement on Rule 14a-8i7 grounds because compliance with

government envioninental regulations was considered part
of Duke Powers ordinary business

operations This conclusion has been reached even when the subject matter of the report
in

question related to legal compliance issues For example in Allstate Corporation February 16
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1999 despite the subject matter of the report the SEC staff concluded that the proposal did not

raise significant policy considerations and did relate to Allstates ordinary business activities

even though the proposal concerned the creation of an independent committee to prepare report

on alleged illegal activity by Allstate other state actions against Allstate and recommendations

to control costs of actions The SEC staff should not be distracted by the Proponents references

to the recent consent decree negotiated by the Company which has been reported and instead

should focus on the fact that the Proponent is requesting report concerning the Companys

environmental legal complianóe program matter which is part of the Companys ordinary

business operations

The Proponents proposal also seeks to micro-manage the Companys

environmental program by probing deeply into the often technical as well as economic

challenges that may hamper the Companys ability to meet its environmental objectives The

relevant environmental regulations are extremely complex and their actual application to

companys operations confuse many people The average shareholder who presumably lacks

advanced training in environmental regulation
and compliance issues would have difficulty

evaluating the scientific data associated with compliance with environmental laws and

regulations and the suitability of relevant equipment and technologies designed to assist in that

goal The Company as responsible corporate citizen recognizes the highly technical and

scientific nature of this field and employs team of highly trained specialists to assist it with its

environmental compliance Meaningful decisions can not be made using translation of this

data in terms understood by the average shareholder

Supervision and Accountability of Employees

The Proponents proposal also seeks to encroach upon the Companys relations

with its employees by increas management accountability and assessing any management

responsibility for any fines imposed for noncompliance with environmental laws and

regulations There are no limits on the reach of this aspect of the proposal it applies to all

management regardless of the individuals position in the Company As highlighted above

management of the workforce falls squarely within one of the two central themes of the ordinary

business exclusion The SEC staff has consistently concluded that employment policies and

practices with respect
to non-executive workforce uniquely matters relating to the

conduct of the companys ordinary business operations See e.g United Technologies

Company February 19 1993 and Unisys Corporation February 19 1993

The Proposal Does not Raise Significant Social Policy Issues Directly Tied to the

Companys Operations Under the Ordinary Business Rule Analysis

Despfte the environmental theme and cursory references to safeguard health

and safety the froposa1 does not address significant social policy concerns Instead it focuses

on the fmancial consequences
of failure by the Company to comply with environmental laws

and regulations In the past the SEC staff has distinguished between proposals concerning
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matters relating to environmental reporting on ordinary business grounds see e.g Duke

Power February 1988 and Carolina Power and Light Company March 30 1988

concerning report addressing Carolina Power and Light Companys releases of hazardous

waste and its practices tocontrol and manage such releases and those that addressed significant

social policy concerns such as R.R Donnelly Sons Company January 26 1993 concerning

the adoption of the CERES Principles and Exxon Corp March 18 1999 concerning the

creation of committee of outside directors to review and report on Exxons contribution to

global warming and recommend changes to Exxons policies and practices to reduce carbon

dioxide emissions

Unlike the above referenced proposals that raise significant policy considerations

the Proponents proposal does not seek to transform the Companys environmental practices

rather it seeks to highlight the Companys environmental compliance problems identifi

responsible individuals and consider the impact of future fines for non-compliance with

environmental laws and regulations on the Company1s earnings all of which are connected to the

day-to-day operations of the Companys plants
and facilities None of these issues raise

significant policy considerations nor are they topic of widespread public debate The proposalj

is concerned with the financial impact on the Companys earnings and the value of its shares

both of which are matters associated with the daily operation of the Company Accordingly the

proposal may be properly omitted under Rule 14a-8i7

The Proposal May Be Excluded Under Rule 14a-8i1O Because the Proposal Has

Been Substantially Implemented by the Company

The proposal may be omitted pursuant to Rule 14a-8il0 because the Company

has substantially implemented the proposal

Excludability Under Rule 14a-8i1O

company need not implement proposal word-for-word to rely on

Rule 14a-8i10 SEC Exchange Act Release No 20091 August 16 1983 The Company

provides the majority of the requested information in legally mandated and voluntary

disclosures Any information requested by the proposal not covered by such disclosures

concerns the Companys ordinary business operations or proprietary information

Disclosures Under the Exchange Act

Item 103 of Regulation S-K requires disclosure of administrative and judicial

proceedings dealing with environmental matters Such disclosure must be made if the

proceeding is material to the business or financial condition of the Company the proceeding

involves claim-for damages or potentially involves monetary damages exceeding 10 percent of

the Companys or subsidiarys consolidated current assets or governmental authority is

party tO the proceeding and the monetary sanctions are likely to be $100000 or more Item 303
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of Regulation S-K requires Managements Discussion and Analysis in which companies are

required to disclose known future uncertainties and trends that may materially affect financial

performance The Company1s Exchange Act reports include the disclosure required by

Items 103 and 303 of Regulation S-K In addition the Companys Form 10-K reports such as

the one filed for the fiscal year ended December31 1999 attached hereto as Exhibit provide

under Item summaries of the federal state and local regulations governing the Companys

emission of various substances and its compliance with such regulations In essence the

Proponents proposal requests that the Board of Directors of the Company produce an additional

report on activities that the Company is already obligated to report on under the requirements of

the Exchange Act In the past the SEC staff has concurred that such duplicative reporting is

unnecessary when the subject matter of the additional
report concerns matter of ordinary

business which as discussed above the requested report does See e.g Eastman Kodak

Company Febmary 1991 concluding that proposal requiring disclosure of information

contained in SEC disclosures is moot and Johnson Controls Inc October 26 1999

concerning the presentation of financial statements in reports to sharehOlders

Disclosures Pursuant to Environmental Laws and Regulations

In order to comply with federal state and local environmental laws and

regulations the Company must record and report on much of its activities For example to

comply with laws and regulations relating to air emission and water discharges the Company

must report to governmental authorities on the levels of emissions discharged into the air or into

water from all manufacturing facilities Similarly before any trees may be harvested the

Company must file plan with the state forestiy department detailing the location to be

harvested the equipment to be used and the protective methods that will be implemented to

protect
the surrounding forest From these publicly available reports one could easily discover

information requested by the Proponent such as why particular fine was imposed

Disclosures Pursuant to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

The Companys annual reports to shareholders and the notes to its financial

statements discuss in great detail the regulatory acts that govern the Company in the

environmental arena As required for all registrants under the Exchange Act the Company

utilizes generally accepted accounting principles GAAP in preparing its financial statements

In accordance with GAAP the Company creates reserves for all likely contingent liabilities

including anticipated regulatory fines The report requested by the Proponent goes well beyond

the forward looking reserves created under GAAP and seeks predictions about future regulatory

actions which at this time may not even be contemplated or feasible As demonstrated by its

1999 Annual Report to Shareholders the 1999 Annual Repoft attached hereto as Exhibit

the Company ensures that its shareholders are informed of these anticipated costs in an

appropriate manner

Voluntary Disclosures in the Companys Annual Report
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The Company voluntarily discloses additional information in its annual reports to

shareholders As detailed in its 1999 Annual Report the Company participates in the

Sustainable Forestry Initiative Program has developed written environmental policy program

has hired Vice President for Environmental Affairs and has formed Corporate Compliance

Committee Similar to the proposed committee of outside independent directors the Corporate

Compliance Committee is responsible for implementing the Companys environmental policies

and procedures and reports to the board of directors annually on how the program is functioning

In addition designated managers throughout the Company are responsible for conducting

operations in way that minimizes environmental damage and maximizes environmental

protection Engineers legislative analysts and personnel from various departments are

responsible and accountable for the Companys environmental performance

In short the Company believes that it has already substantially implemented the

Proponents proposal through mandatory and voluntary public reporting and the development of

an internal network of staff who are accountable for the Companys environmental performance

There is precedent for concluding that the proposal has been substantially implemented because

of existing practices In International Business Machines Corporation January 31 1994 for

example the SEC staff concluded that proposal requiring the company to adopt an

environmental policy was moot because of the companys existing practices Therefore the

proposal properly may be omitted under Rule 14a-8i 10

The Proposal May Be Excluded Under Rule 14a-8i6 Because it Is Beyond the

Companys Power to Implement the Proposal

The proposal may be omitted pursuant to Rule 4a-8i6 because the Company

lacks the ability to implement the requested proposal to publish financial predictions concerning

future fines for noncompliance with environmental laws and regulations

The
report requested by the Proponent asks for an estimate of the worst case

financial exposure due to environmental issues for the next ten years In effect the proposal asks

the Company to quantify an uncertainty The Company has no means to accurately predict what

its financial exposure will be for the next ten years for noncompliance with environmental

regulations because the regulations themselves are evolving nearly as rapidly as the technologies

available to measure or capture contaminants discharged by companies In common with most

large manufacturing companies the Company would like to be able to predict that it will have no

future fmancial liabilities for environmental noncompliance However other than the

projections reflected by established reserves set out in its financial statements the Company has

no way of responsibly complying with the Proponents request Additionally as mentioned in

2D above the proposal requests the disclosure of information which is inconsistent with

GAAP AccordingI$ if the Company is required to prepare the requested report it would expose

the Company tollegations that its financial reports are inaccurate or misleading As the

Company is obligated under the Exchange Act and related regulations to use GAAP and ensure
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that there is reasonable basis for all forward looking statements it is beyond the Companys

power to implement the proposal and it may be omitted under Rule 4a-8i6

The Proposal May Be Excluded Under Rule 14a-8i3 Because the Proposal Is

Vague and Misleading

Lastly the Company believes that the Proponents proposal may properly be

omitted from its proxy materials under Rule 14a-8i3 as vague and misleading

The proposal seeks report setting forth among other things major challenges

at Willainette facilities with environmental regulations an assessment of management

culpability or responsibility for the fines an estimate of worst case financial exposure due to

environmental issues for the next ten years and an evaluation of efforts to reduce pollution

through changes in management new capital expenditures and the application of new

technologies The requested reports scope is extremely broad and receipt of such report is

likely to leave the Companys shareholders at loss as to how to respond to it particularly as the

proposal lacks any description of the intended use by the shareholders of the information to be

set out in the report

Rule 14a-8i3 allows company to exclude proposals that contain false or

misleading statements of material facts as defined in Rule 14a-9 As set forth in Rule 14a-9a

false and misleading statements include omissions of material facts necessary to make the

statements which are included not false or misleading The proposal omits facts that are needed

to give shareholders an accurate picture of the situation Additionally the proposal makes broad

assertions likely to lead the average shareholder to make erroneous conclusions Material may

be considered misleading within the meaning of Rule 4a-9 if it directly or indirectly impugns

character integrity or personal reputation or directly or indirectly makes charges concerning

improper illegal or immoral conduct or associations without factual foundation Note to

Rule 14a-9 Because the omitted facts and erroneous implications could influence how

reasonable shareholder might vote on this proposal they are clearly material See IS
Industries Northwav Inc 426 US 438 1978 an omitted fact is material when there is

substantial likelihood that reasonable shareholder would consider omitted fact important

in deciding how to vote on the proxy

As shown below the proposal and supporting statement are misleading in that

taken collectively they imply that the Company has failed to inform its shareholders about the

potential magnitude of the EPA fine and has not implemented effective systems to ensure future

environmental compliance

Paragraph one of the supporting statement addresses the fine levied against the

Company by theEPA The Proponent refers to an EPA estimate that the Company may need to

spend as much as $82 million to bring its facilities into compliance however he does not

reference the source of this information In its press
release dated July 2000 the EPA
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estimated that the Company would need to spend $74 million not $82 million to bring its

facilities into compliance with current Clean Air Act regulations More significantly the

Companys estimate of this cost is $28000000 as reflected in its press release dated

July 20 2000 and Part II Item of its Form l0-Q report for the quarter ended June 30 2000

Paragraph two of the supporting statement states that the magnitude of the fine

has shocked the shareholders No support for this conclusory statement is provided Its

alarmist tone is unwarranted because the Company has taken numerous steps to inform its

shareholders of the potential magnitude of the fine For example on page of its 1999 Annual

fteport Duane McDougall the Companys president and chief executive officer explained to

the shareholders that the Company was engaged in settlement talks with the EPA and that the

Company had established $10 millionreserve to cover the potential fines exclusive of the cost

of implementing environmental controls This paragraph also implies that the Company

intentionally and knowingly misled its shareholders when it stated that it believed it was in

substantial compliance with federal state and local laws regarding environmental quality

Contrary to this implication the statement accurately reflected the Companys belief

notwithstanding the Companys subsequent settlement of the matter by consent decree to avoid

litigation

Paragraph three of the supporting statement implies that the Company continues

to intentionally violate environmental regulations by stating if continued Willamettes

environmental performance could diminish shareholder value This paragraph also suggests

that the Company has failed to adopt any environmental compliance practices when it states

damage to Willamettes image and shareholder value caused by successive

environmental problems and attendant major fmes and liabilities could occur ifremedial action is

not taken As stated above the Company has implemented and continues to implement new

policies and procedures to ensure its compliance with environmental laws and regulations

Paragraph four of the supporting statement implies without providing any

supporting evidence that the corporate officers who sit on the Corporate Compliance Committee

do not perform their assigned tasks effectively since their lack of independence severely

compromises their ability to provide proper environmental oversight Additionally the

Proponent fails to support his conclusion that an outside independent director would be more

capable of ensuring compliance with existingand future environmental laws and regulations

As result of the foregoing misstatements and omissions the supporting

statement is vague and misleading in violation of Rule 14a-9 and is therefore excludable under

Rule 14a-8i3
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Conclusion

The Proponents proposal properly may be omitted from the Companys proxy
materials because it concerns matters relating to the Companys ordinary business operations the

Company has already substantially implemented the majority of the requested reporting and is

not capable of reporting other requested information and it contains false and misleading

statements

Pursuant to the provisions of Rule 14a-8d the Company by copy of this letter

with its exhibits is notifying the Proponent of its intention to omit his proposal and supporting
statement from its proxy materials relating to its 2001 annual meeting of shareholders

The Company respectfI.illy requests your review of this matter and your advice as

to your position with respect thereto as soon as possible As the Company is currently the

subject of tender offer and proxy contest by Weyerhaeuser Company the timing of its 2001

annual meeting is presently uncertain but the Company currently does not anticipate filing

definitive proxy materials before early March

Very truly yours

Mary Ann Frantz

cc via Federal Express Mr David Johnson

Mr Hawley
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effrta to safeguard healdi and safety the report ihaU be released at least four week pnor to the annual

innutiug otthatebolden and posted on the companys web page

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

Willamerte Indumies received $11.2 million fine in 2000 by the Eoviroamootal Proteedon Agency

EPA This was the largest
Indusalal air pollution tine ever levied by the EPA egh In

edditionto the floe it is cathosted that WiIlaraette may have to expend as nmc as Ui edilion eschsdlag

the fine ording to EPA estimates to hung it facilities into wpl1ance

The maguitude of the EPA fine is an embarnmcnt to ourCuajand baa shocked sher.boWer The

ne was paniailarty emrsling since WWanitte stated in 199 thaclone to the sbartholdan filed with the

Scoirities and Exchange CommissIon Less than two years before the EPA flue was impo that the

Company believes it is in substantial compliance with federal state and local laws regarding envimumanal

quality

Tfcontinuol Wiflamesres environmental performance uwld diminish hveholdvahae This onuld be In

part due to the nluifoa ofWmamaae stock from the portfolIos of many inveatces and fizedi who choose

nut to invest or are pmlubitul from investi in companies that pathn the environment and sun afoot of

enoumenral laws Also fines of this magnitude deprive the company ofneededteveaua and

hareboldai of rutwu on their uvantmem Further dg to Wlllzmettsa imegs and sbarslazldervÆa

caused by successIve environmeassi problems and ittendant major fine and liabilities enuld if

r1nctionisnoctiken

The Company currecüy conducts peilodic audits to evaluate the cctivcoesa of oitmenaf ptograma

end has established Coqcaie Compriinet Coemittee cuuistmp of six Inside ocers to

monitor ouzoplisane with Company cavironesenisl pofley However the indepenence of slas inside

committee Is .eaely ccmpctniiet Clesrly comautte cousi e.jtnde independent drectors is

opposed to inside Company msnagcmcer is needed to ovlde prop envicatraceini oversIght

The establishment oft committee made up nfl dqendesut direcnts So ow and pr.p.e rapoit as

Companys environmental cxzsnpiisme ihould incew nin marniIity to the Boerd of

Dfrectw reduce regulatory fines promote sound eitvimnmetul ud pcatticca eal rrove

companys image financial perfounsace and iIoe to sbesthMdest Moicover such report aheuld

demonstrate to die poblic sod the investment camauuuLy that Company is moving in the d.oti of

grester disclosure on environmental matters and is attempting an aolvs enviromsassital pseblems Ins

9O/0d 9980 3t1 0080AON
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dolur anroun95 ecept per shar amourds in ruisarcs

CHANGE

10.2%

192.7%

191.3%

9-5%

9.4%

2.1%

10.1%

1998

0.21 0.16 40lr29j

0.07 046

1999 and 1998 Financial Highlights

Net Sales

6llna ofdaWa

Dividends Paid

per Share

do4ta

0080 55110

0.60

9996909293949596979809

Diluted Earnings

per Share

doUrs

400

j1111 11
9096919203949596979899

Net sales

Net earnings

Per share-diluted

Cash dividends paid

Per share

Total assets

Stockholders equity

Return on stockholders equity

Number of outstanding shares

Number of stockholders benefsciol

Nuniber of employees

0.40

0.20

890091 9293949590979899

1999

4077969

260475

233

77984

0.70

4797861

2203712

13.0%

111587000

23000

14250

1998

3700282

88983

0.80

71227

0.64

4697.668

2002431

4.5%

110981000

22000

14000.

16.56%

15.49%

18.51%

16.35%

17.86%

Total annualized return to shareholdcrs

Last years

Last loyears

Last t5years

Last 20 years

Last years

The following shows quarterly earnings
and dividends per sharealongwith

the range of closing prices The company expects
to continue paying regu

larcash dividends although there is no assurance as to future dividends as

they are dependent upon earnings capital requirements and hnancial

condition The companys common stock trades on th New York Stock

Exchange NTSE under the symbol WLL
1999

Diluted Dd aagI-io

Eansings
Paid94 H6gh-Low

0.16 39Vu31

0.57 032 49Y-37Ao

0J3 0.18 5lVu-3954

0J5 032 46Y-38h

is quarter

zndquarter

3rdquartet

4thqua



To Our Shareholders

The year 1999 was good one for Willamette Industries

Our 1999 earnings were nearlytripte those of 1998 sales

were over $4 bi1Iio for the first time

As result of our excellent earningS the board voted at

its February meeting to increase dividends substantially

from $72 per year to $.84 annually

Almost all of our product lines ended 1999 with results

substantially above those of 1998.Our corrugated con

tainer volumes continued their steady incremental

climb growing at rate that was more than double that

of the industry as whole

Uncoated free sheet markets strengthened substantially during
the last

half of the year
Our t998 addition of an uncoated free sheet machine at

Hawesville Kentucky gave us the opportunity
to take advantage of these

market moves with volume and efficiency improvements

Building
materials markets continued their strong performance Housing

starts remain strong
home size is increasing and remodeling demand

continues at brisk pace.We begin zooo with prices
in most of our corn

inodity lines at higher
level than last year

at the same time

We launched or completed
several capitalpXoeCtS

in 1999 designed
to

expand markets in our core businesses and improve our utilization of

available fiber resources

We announced plans for new particleboard plant
and began construc

tion of new sawmill in South Carolina in 1999 The sawmill will use

the abundant supply of small pine logs
available in the Ghester area to make

narrow dimension lumber when it goes
on-line in zooo The particle-

board plant near Bennettsville will have continuous press
line and will use

existing residual fiber from local processing plants
as its raw material

This strengthens our vertical integration in the Carolinas and puts our

manufacturing facilities close to the end users of our products

Also during
the company acquired aparticleboard plant in Linxe

France and announced plans to nearly double its capacity
The plant

is

located in fiber-rich portion
of France near our medium density fther

board plantS This efficient facility will allow us to expand our marketing

of composite panels
in Europe

In Febniaiy
the board announced plans for modernization of our saw

millin Dodson Louisiana to increase efficiency
and fiber utilizatiorL

Our sixth cut sheet plant opened inWashington Court House Ohio near

the end of i999 Our other cut sheet plants are at capaciIy
and the new

facility
allowed us to meet increased market demand and to provide an

additional outlet for the production
of the new uncoated free sheet

machine in Hawesville
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We announced plans to shut down the 19405-vintage Un-

coated free sheet machine at the Johnsonburg Pennsylvania

paper
mill when modernization of the machine at that facil

ity
is completed While the

change
will not result in capacity

irjcrease it will
provide production c.ost efficiencies We also

shut down the machine in Kingsprnt Tennessee This

machine which made o.ooo tons of coated-one-side paper

and forms bond
annually was too small to effectively compete

in shrinking market

On the brown paper side of our business we are in the start

up phase
of the new recovery boiler at the Albany Oregon

linerboard mill This new boiler will improve our environmen

tal performance and our ability to efficiently recycle pulping

liquors
Further upgrades to the

causticizing area the lime kiln

and associated equipment were approved by the board at its

February meeting

Turbine generators are being installed at the Albany mill and

the Kentucky complex to reduce costs improve energy efficiency

and increase self-sufficiency

We also began construction of box plant in the Phoenix

Arizona area arid completed modernization of the Compton
California plant These projects enhance our ability to serve the

growing
market in the Southwest

Relocation of the Elk Grove Illinois corrugated container

plant
also began during the year The expansion will allow the

plant to take
advantage

of additional demand in the Chicago

area At its February meeting the board approved the relocation

of our Tigard Oregon preprint plant as well as the purchase

of new press This will increase production of this specialty

corrugated product improving our ability to produce high

cjuality graphics for boxes destined for warehouse store shelves

where the box rather than salesperson sells the product

We continued settlement talks with the U.S Environmental

Protection Agency EPA concerning our panel plants.We have

strong commitment to environmental protection but we

dont have crystal ball Decisions that we made in good faith

with state agencies up to 20 years ago have been reviewed

by the EPA under new interpretations of the regulations We are

cooperatively working through this
process with the EPA

and have opened our mills and records to them for their review

These cooperative discussions are still ongoing but we hope to

reach conclusion by the end of 2ooo We have established

$io million reserve as an approximation of the potential non-

tax deductible penalties based on the size of settlements made
with other companies in our industry

There were several changes in the board and officer group Sam

Wheeler announced his retirement at the February board

meeting He will be replaced by Mike Thorne executive direc

tor of the Port of Portland Retiring during 1999 were Jerry

Parsons executive vice president and chief financial officer

Ron Stover who was vice president in charge of the Commu
nication Papers Division Dave Hill vice president in charge

of the Southern Building Material Giup Daryl Burke

vice president in charge of national-accounts for the Corrugated

Container Division We will miss the benefit of their
experience

and expertise and wish them each happy healthy retirement

Added to our officer group were Mike Bacon 32-year

employee who replaced Ron Stover Richard Thomas who

has been with Willamette in various marketing positions since

1992 and who became vice president in charge of business

and converting papers Wayne Parker 6-year employee with

the company who replaced Dave Hill Doug Leland also

26-year employee of the company who became vice president

in charge of bags preprint and specialty products and Jeff

Murray 35-year employee of the company who became divi

sion vice president in charge of Western corrugated plants

Greg Hawley vice president-controller was named to replace

Jerry Parsons All of these promotions were internal Our

philosophy of promoting from within helps us retain talented

experienced employees who know the company and its mar
kets and manufacturing operations Our active management

training programs ensure that we have well-trained candidates

for advancement

We were pleased during 1999 to have our Oregon timberlands

certified by PricewaterhouseCoopers as sustainably managed
under the American Forest and PaperAssociations Sustainable

Forestry Initiativesu This years annual
report details the rigor

ous verification audit done on our Western timberlands and

our plans for future audits want to recognize the professional

isni and enthusiasm that our foresters wildlife biologists and

other resource-related workers displayed during the audit and

during their preparations for this years audit There was

evidence of high level of technical skills real love of and

dedication to our forests and sincere deserved pride in their

collective forestry accomplishments

In dosing Id like to note that the outlook for the next sevetal

years is promising Improvements in paper markets stable

building materials market and our recent capital expenditures

designed to improve efficiencies should result in several good

years We are well positioned for future growth Weve reduced

our debt and were one of the few companies in our industry

to have an ratingfromcredit-reportingagencies The pros

pects for the future of
your company look excellent

Sincerely

DUANE MCDOVaALL

President and C7iiefExecutue Officer

Februalylo2000
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SustainableForestry

At Willamette Industries we define sustainable forestry as

managing our forests in manner that providesto future

generations all the benefits of the forestwe enjoy today

Benefits include wood and paper products fish and wildlife

habitat clean water and airbeautiful scenery recreational

experienceshealthy forests and communityand job stability

Projects Cooperative management programs

and preservatroll
of special places

Willamette leases 1060 acres to the Oregon Depart

ment of Fish and Wildlife for Roosevelt elk habitat at

the Jewell Meadows Wildlife Area in NorthweSt Oregon

The objective
of the wildlife area is to provide diverse

habitatfor45O elk and year-round viewing and educa

tional opportunities
for the public The lease allows

the department to control public access to the wildlife

area and helps compensate Willamette for the expense

of protecting newly planted seedlings inside the bound

aryotthe refuge

In partnership with the Nature Conservancy

Willamette protects
the 167-acre Fanno Meadows

Complex in the mid-WillametteValleY Fanno Meadows

consists of four large meadows and wetlands thatcon

tam two rare plants the elegant lawn lily
and the bog

anemone.Willamette also uses these meadows as

site to study pond-breeding amphibians such as the red-

legged frog rough-skinned newts and Pacific giant and

Northwest salamanderS

Over 2000 special places are preserved in

Willamettes Western forests.These include nesting

sites for bald eagles osprey marbled murrelet

spotted owls great blue herons and gosliawks pioneer

cemeteries Ponds swimming holes natural springs

and waterfalls viewpoints communication sites

caves municipal water supply intakes and geological

lormations
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Taken from Goat Mountafn

Laukust in i52andagain in

1997.ThiS area was the prod

uct of clearcuts from i97-

l95LToday the area supports

Stealthy 47-year-old forest

that Willarnette acquired in

1996 from Cavenhaw Forest

Industries As this forest near

Mulalla Oregon becomes

ready for harvest it wttt be re

placed in the meat three

decades with landscape con

taininga diversity olapet

How do you manage forests sustainably

Our foresters have spent years developing set of principles to guide
them

in the practice
of sustainable forestry on our 1.7

million acres of U.S tim

berland These principles have been named Sustainable Management for

Timber Water Quality and Wildlife

George Cerlinger founder of Willamette Industries was the architect of

our first sustainable management program Prior to 1939 we logged lands

in the Oregon Coast Range by means of railroad logging allowing nature

to reforest the resulting large
clearcuts In 1938 Gerlinger purchased our

first land in the Cascades with the intent of building permanent all-weather

truck roads to access the forest He called his new programThe Staggered

Setting Harvest System because permanent logging roads allowed the

company to log in spots across the owiership creating checkerboard

pattern of harvests ineffect creating diversity of ages and forest

conditions across the landscape Leaving green forest
expanses

between

clearcuts resulted in smaller accumulations of slash and thus less fire

hazard The system also left nearby
seed source for reforestation

Aerial seeding of forests became part of our forest management program

in 1946 after i3oooacre firewest of Dallas Oregon burned the area

so thoroughly that few seed trees were left see frtside coer.Ini 949 the

area was re-seeded by hand and later planted
after hand planting of seed

lings became the preferred reforestation method on company lands in

As scientists and foresters learned more about non-timber values of

the forest these lessons were incorporated into forestry plans This evo

lutionaxy process
resulted in what we now call Sustainable Management

for Timber Water Quality
and Wildlife It emphasizes continuous

improvement of management practices as the science of forest manage

ment advances

The principles of WIllainettes Spstainable Management Program SM

are based on long-term observation of natural ecosystems and decades of

scientific research on forests wildlife and water resources

Weve used the word sustainable because of our 93-year history with

the forest and the strength and length of our plans for the future Our

forests are our future so we manage them with long-termview

Weve pinpointednianagementas the tool for main

taining forest health and productivity
The

objective

of Willamettes SMP is to sustainably manage our

forests while creating diversity for forest health and

productivity protecting special sites or resources

and enhancing water quality and wildlife habitat while

harvesting
timber to make products that enrich the

lives of American families

How the SMP carried out on the landscape

The old clearcut harvest wherein logger removes all

the trees inahuge area and walks away was abandoned

long ago
for modern harvests designed to protect

wildlife and fish resources and to permit prompt re

forestation Today Willamettes clearcut harvests

take place after
surveys

have identified unique
features

deserving special protection
These harvests which

averaged 6i acres in 1999 inthe West remove trees for

making products while retaining some live trees

snags
and downed logs

for wildlife habitat stream

protection
and soil replenishment Replantingwith

native tree species
in our conifer forests quickly fol

lows harvest restarting the forest Careful attention

to forest health and competition
in the early years

of the forest keeps the area productive Thinning and

fertilization improve growth

The forest pictured on pages i3- i6 shows what the

SM looks like on the landscape It is the
picture

of the

future of Villamettes private forests inthe West
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The SMP has resulted in the following on Willamettes Western timberlands

Harvest levels do not exceed forest growth

More trees are growing more volume per acre today than 10 years ago

Project Coho salmon habitat improvement in

Seeley Creek near Alsea Oregon

Workd one Seeley Creek was identified by the Oregon

Department of Fish and Wildlife as priority stream

or salmon habitat enhancement logs and boulders

structure were added to the stream in 1996 to create

slow deep pools to allowfish to rest An adjacent aban

doned log pond was connected to the stream to provide

off-channel habitat for young native coho salmon

Results ofwork The stream channel work done in

1996 was reviewed with state biologists Some of the

structure added to the stream is working exceptionally

well.The remainder of the areas were improved with

additional structure in 1999 and larger-sized culvert

was added to expand fish passage State biologists

have found heavy use of the abandoned log pond by

young native cutthroat trout and coho Coho live in

fresh water for the first half of their lives then move to

the ocean for the next 18 months.The first fish that

used habitat provided by the project
returned in the fall

and winter of 1999 but no data are available yet on

improved returns

Award The Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife

civ gave Willamette its Fish and Wildlife

Steward Award saying Willamette Industries has set

the standard for cooperative action in the mid-coast

on behalf of fish and wildlife If other industrial timber

companies do as well our chances of recovering

coastal coho populations will be much improved

Futurework SeeleyCreekisoneof 55 salmonand

steelhead habitat enhancement projects that have

been completed by Willamette at total cost of $473000

Tea more improvement projects have been identified

for completion in 2000 Others will be added in the

future through cooperative effort with oorw and the

Wildlife Heritage Foundation

The Klootchy Creek and Seeley Creek stream rehabilita

tion programs demonstrate strong commitment to

fisheryconservation practicesicwvutthwCoopers

Within the first planting season after harvest 85 percent of our harvest areas are successfully replant

ed.The remaining 15 percent are reforested as soon as conditions allow but always within two years

All fish-bearing streams and domestic water supplies are protected with streamside management

areas that remain in permanent forest cover

Currently 50000 acres are managed as protected habitat for threatened or endangered species

and for fish domestic water quality and preservation of 2000 speciaI places In the forest

How do you determine whether the SMP results iii sustainable forestry

As member of the American Forest and Paper Association we must complywith its

Sustainable Forestry lnitiative Fl Scientists conservationists and professional

foresters developed sri It specifies comprehensive system of principles objectives

and performance measures to sustain forest values including the conservation of soil

air water andvisual quality biodiversity
and fish andwildlife habitat seep.i sri cre

ates framework for each company to continually imp rove its management system and

environmental performance toward the goal of sustainable forestry

An independent Expert Review Panel made up of environmental and conservation

organizations public agencies and academics critically reviews SF1 annual progress

reports
and data and provides input on how the program can more effectively achieve

forest sustainability The SF1 program has received statements of support
from nearly

two dozen conservation groups
and other organizations

and eight state legislatures

During 1999 Wiliamette Industries Western forests were audited by an independent

third
party

to certify that our forest management meets SF1 standards

Why did you decide to have independent third-party certification

We chose to have an independent third party PricewaterhouseCoopeis certify our

forests because we believe certification adds value to our products
without adding sub

stantial costs to our customers We also feel we have an obligationto our employees

shareholders and customers to use the most credible verification process
available to

certifywe are operating our forests in the manner we report

Why did you choose PricewaterhouseCoopers

We looked at several options and determined that the best approach would be to aska

recognized public accounting firm with strong background in forest auditIng to certify

that our forest practices meet the standards of the Sustainable Forestry
Initiative

PricewaterbouseCoopers audited our forest practices
withthesame thoroughness

used by KPMG LLP to audit our financial statements

How was the audit conducted

The first phase consisting
of an audit of the companys 6ioooo acres in Oregon

was completed in 1999 The remaining million acres in the South and East will

be audited in 2ooo

The audit team consisted of two registered professional foresterswho are accredited

lead auditors in forestry standards former head of the department of forest manage

ment at Oregon State I.Jniversily forest engineer
and wildlife biologist

They audited our forest management policies and records but spent most of their

time in our forests at random sites selected by the auditors themselves making certain

that our practices in the forest match our policies

What were the results of the audit

PricewaterhouseCoopers has certified thatwe meet the standards for forest sustainahil

ity
of the Sustainable Forestry

Initiative Their opinion appears on page
of this report

PricewaterhouseCoopers coxnmendedWlllamette for exceeding required
standardØ

inseveral area stream rehahffitation programs to enhance fish survival and passage

interactionwith citizens groups
in watershed and visual pialitymariagernent

reforesta

tion success providing additional wildlife trees beyond requirements
and strategically

positioningthemto support protection of unip.ie habitats providing
habitat for forest

hat species engaging
in wildlife research and playing leadership role in industry

committees that affect forest management policy

jh fry
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Project Worldng with citizens advisory board

to improve visual and watershed management
in the coastal town of Cannon Beach Oregon

Workdone The Cannon Beach-Willamette Commu

nication Committee consisting of the mayoi city

council representative two other local residents and

Willamette foresters meets regularly to review

forest management and road coOstruction plans.The

group has identified five view-sensitive areas which

have been mapped in the companys computerized

geographic information system ncsThe is combines

layers of information such as elevation and topogra

phy to predict which harvest areas will be visible from

view-sensitive areas allowing the group to see
what the years harvest plans will look like unique

form of harvest called strip cutting has been used

in view-sensitiveareas Itinvolvescutting stripóOfeet

wide bordered by 120 feet of mature trees perpendic

ular to the views from the town.The harvest is nearly

invisible from the town As the young replanted trees

hemlock and Sitka spruce in the strip grow taller the

mature trees can be cut ri two separate harvests with

out disturbing the view

Willamette also owns the Ecola Creek watershed

Ecola Creek is an important supplementary source for

domesticwater for Cannon Beach during periods of

peak usage- Agreements exist on the management tools

that will be used in the area

The non-Willamette residents on the committee are

responsible for explaining Will amettes viewshed

and watershed plans to others in the community.While

the cooperative effort is time consuming and the

strip cutting is more expensive than traditional togging

there are literally no complaints about Willamettes

harvests in the area

The Seaside operation should be commended for its

effort to better model viewsheds and its interaction

with watershed committees to assess visual quality

concerns ThcewuerhouseCoopers

Project Four-year study of neotropical nuuran

and resident birds inWifianiettes Oregon ast

Range forests

Findings Breeding season surveys found 53 bird

species thatare active in the early morning Forty-

two percent of these preferyoung forests especiaUy

those between five and nine years of age.Ths prefer

ence is probably due to the mix of shrubs deciduous

trees and growing conifer seedlings which provide

habitat for nesting feeding and hiding As the toress

age habitat diversity changes and fewer birds use

10- to 40-year-old forests Bird activity increases as

the forest reaches age 40 when openings once again

provide diversity About 40 percent of species prefer

conditions typicallyfound in olderforests

Futurework Studies in Willamettes Cascade

forestswill compare the practice of leaving specially

chosen trees around the edge eta harvest area to

the practice of leaving trees within the harvest unit

either clumped or scattered Data from this research

will show the effectof various leave-tree strategies

on bird species and help refinefuture activities aimed

at providing foreststructure and habitat

Other surveys and joint research projects include

marbled murrelet northern goshawk spotted

owls amphibiansmitosis batsbarred owls pigmy

owls deer and elk

The region should be commended for its ettorts in

support of research to better understand habital

relationships of various priority species that occur on

Willamette Industries ownership for their efforl

to place bat boxes to enhance habitat conditions for

priorityspeciesofbat...for strategically poslionIng

wildlife trees to support protection of unigue habitats

and.. far providing additional wildhfe trees above

that required by state law tcewatethou..-

1cunc

PæcewaterhoseCoopers also made suggestions to help Willamette maintain its lead

ership role in forest management through continuous improvement These included

implementing more detailedprocess
for

pre-harvest planning enlarging programs to

identify rare or uncormnon habitats for plants and wikilife and expanding the com

panys current visual na emeEtprogram.Willamettewffl show substantial progress

in these areas when the Western region is re-audited in the future

Is this type of certification typically done in the industry

No Several companies have had verification audits on portions
of their land but only

few have been certified under the
stringent requirements of
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Sources and Uses of Fiber

Scraps from

non-company wood

facilities

Post-consumer

urban wood waste

7% Ouraflake

30% Eugene

Contaminants

to landfill

100%

Bark to energy

Ash for farm potting soil amendment

remainder to landfill

Sludge to farmers

for soil enrichment

animal bedding

remainder landflhled

Willamette IndustresWestern Operations

Bark to energy
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Wood scraps from

non-company

facilities 13%

Short fibers to

farmers for soil

enrichment

White softwood

and hardwood pulp

/0

Does this mean Willarnette products have green certification

There has been
great

confusion about the issue of

certificatiotf and what it means Part of this confusion sterns

from the fact that product certification arid forest ceitifica

tion are sometimes assumed to be the sante They are not

Forest certification verifies that we are managing our lands

in responsible sustainable manner using scientific

principles and meeting regulatory requirements However

not all of Willamettes fiber supply comes from our own

forestlands Other privately owned forests provide per
cent of our fiber supply

nationwide

Product certification would require us to dictate our osrn

land management approach to other private forest land

owners from whom we purchase logs In the US there are

150 rtiilhion acres of private timberland owned by io mil

lion private forest landowners Our responsibility is to help

educate these small landowners in how forestlands should

be managed for sustainabiity ratherthan dictate their

responsibilities to them All
parties selling logs directly to

Willamette receive information on the environmental

benefits of the sri program

What happens next

Willamette has hired sustainable forestry coordinator

Marvin Brown Brown was most recently state forester

of Missouri and had beenwith the Missouri Department

of Forestry for zz years He was also on the sri indepen

dent Expert Review Panel for its first four years
and was

co-chair of the Society of American Foresters Forest

Certification Policy study Brown wilibe helprngWillamettes

Southern and Eastern foresters
prepare

for their audits

and helping Wifiamettes Western foresters maintain their

leadership role in forest management by implementing

suggestions from PricewaterhouseCoopers Sustainable

forestry is an evolutionary process

But forest certification is only part of the picture Do you effectively

use all of the fiber that comes from the certified forest

Full utilization is process
weve been working to perfect-

since the Great Depression when we found markets for

our scrap
fiber and products from trees then considered

trash We began to internalize our use of these fiber left

overs in i955 with the construction of the Albany Oregon

paper mill one of the first paper mills to rely exclusively

on scrap fiber for its raw material and further in 1960 when

we built our first particleboard plant We began using post

consumer recycled paper
for fiber in i961

Our company structurevertical integrationgives us an

exceptional opportunity to use the forests fiber to the

fullest as our Western fiber flow chart to the left shows

We are constantly working to improve fiber utilization

such as making boxes with linerboard that contains less

fiber and reduce our operations impact on the envi

ronment Programs to find uses for the small amount of

remaining waste continue such as our efforts to provide

ash as soil amendment and our transfer of plastics
and

other contaminants found in bales of post-consumer paper

to facility to process
it for fuel to provide energy Similar

to sustainable forestiy complete utilization of the resource

for its highest
and best use is an evolutionary process that

allows opportunities for continuous improvement

Post-consumer

recycled fiber

66%

Fibers trapped in plastic contaminants

from recycled fiber are made into cattle

bedding or landfllled

WtLLMUTE INDUSTRIES 199 ANNUAL REPORT 09



What about the environmental impact of your manufacturing operations

Continuous improvement is the rule there as well We are completing

construction of recovery
boiler at the Albany Paper Mill to replace an

older boiler to improve air quality
and allow for efficient recycling

of pulp

ing liquors Over the next several years we will install emission control

equipment in certainplYWood particleboard
and medium density

fiberboard

or plants in Oregon and in the South

The black and wbite photo was

taken by Crown Zeilerbacli Corp in

1952This area was harsestedby

them In 1148 aiid hand planted in

1949 with Douglas-fir and Port

Ortoid cedat.Today this area Is part

of WiliametteS Molahla ForesL

The stump ml the left hand side still

retains an aluminum tag placed

there byline photograPiler
in 192

EiglsttresPeCle5Camb
loundwithl

in 100 feetotthe tag

Smaller projects
are continuous replacement of solvent-based pants

with water-based paints at our particleboard plants development of

recovery system
for sap stain treatment at our Dallas Orsgon sawmill and

installation of wet scrubbers on press
vents to improve opacity

at our

particleboard plant in Bend Oregon

Some environmental projects
are effective and efficient Others dont

turn out that way Our Albany Oregon Custom Products plant was major

source ofvoc emissions from the solvent-based paint
used to manufac

ture MOP drawer sides.We installed systems
tIiat use water-based paint

thereby dramatically reducingvoc emissions But the resulting product

proved too expensive to compete with those of others in the iridustay

still using solvent-based paint The drawer side production line is now

closed its business having gone to competitors
that continue to use the

old technology

Our job is to use every
ounce of creativitywe

can niusterto find cost-

effective solutions that will allow us to maintain our progress
in treading

lightly on the environment while providing necessary products sustain

able jobs
and an adequate

return to our shareholders
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Project Improve fish passage
and water quality

by bringing lecy roads up
to todays road con

struction standards

The South Santiam Watershed Council one of 85

cooperative citizen and industry groups in Oregon

identified Hamilton Creek and its tributaries in

the foothills of the Cascades as priority for stream

restoration work.Toifliprove fish habitat Willamette

replaced six-f oct span pipe-arch culvertwith an

18-foot span open-bottom arch culvert that allows

water to pass through the natural streanibed opening

Concrete weirs wore poured on the bedrock bottom

inside the bottomless culvert to slow the velocity of the

stream flow and provide higher level of water year-

round deep pool was created in bedrock at the outlet

The weirs and pool give
the fish good resting places

as they travel up and downstream and make passage

easier during all levels of stream flow.The project

was designed to meet state requirementsf or a50-year

flood event

In separate project115 logs were added to two

Hamilton Creek tributaries at 25 different sites to

provide refuge shelter and decrease water velocity

during high flows.The log structures are designed

to mimic naturally occurring logjams which create

gravelly pools for spawning beds

The projects completed in the summer of 1999 cost

$57000 and opened two miles of stream for steelhead

and cutthroattrout passage

Similar Projects
There is no legal requirement to

replace sub-standard stream crossings that do nOt

allow fish passage but Willamette plans to dso long

before its legacy road program is completed in 2006

Willaniette has spent nearly $6 million in Oregon on

priority road improvement prolects of $20 million

legacy road repair estimate

There is clearindication of using oversized and baffled

water conveyances in orderto maintain/enhance fish

passage woiweCooper

Project Willamettes Western timberlands are

reforested as soon as possible after harvest

percent within the first plantingseason
and

the remainder in the second with seven

species of trees common to Oregon Douglas-fir

6o percent
Western hemlock percent

Western red cedar noble for grand firponderosa

pine and Sitka spruce percent

Workdone Prompt reforestation is critical to re

starting healthy forest Willamette-maintaifls seed

orchard and other seed sources to help ensurethat

harvested lands can be replanted with tree species

adapted to the site In many areas multiple species are

plantedto add diversityto
the landscape

The seed orchard established in 1973 allowsfor

consistent availability of seed In the wild trees

produce seed infrequently often in response to stress

In seed orchard artificial stress can be applied

to the trees providing more reliable seed crops By test

ing and selecting well-adaptedfaStlrOWirig better-

formed parentsfor the seed orchard and using the seed

produced for reforestation we can expect growth 1ev-

elsto improve 10 to 20 percent over the life of the stand

Willamette produces 85 percent of its own seed for

reforestation

The commitment and performance on regeneration of

harvested stands deserves recognition

1ceiLwerhouCoopeI1

IFdterH

ThttlIul
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Sustainable Forestiy Initiative Program

Report of Independent Accountants

Th Board ofDirectors and Manogement of WIUamette Industries Inc

We have examined the following nianagement assertion

To promote the protection ofAinencas forests the American Forest athPaperAssociation

formed The Sustainable Forestzy Initiative sri Independent Expert Review PaneL

which includes representatives from the forest industiy government conservation

ennmentalorganizations and other interested parties This paxici eontribute8to

the development of the Sustainable Forestiy Imtiatwe Program the Pzgrarn fopa

menting maintiillilng afldimpraVflg sustainable forest ning met The Pr

mchtdes sustainable fores ectives the Objectives and crderia

Cntena for meetmt es In furtherance of its

inent babeforestinanagenicn

stumpag tiathe onoWil1aniette Industziee

bsadoied13cr tedonpage.t
whether the Obje

opininofzn onisincoipPm
Manageme te Regions cor

responsibi ernents

compliedi rnination

.Our mwithattestati

Ameri ntsand
onat Roncomplm

Lnessu

prov
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Objectives and CriteriaforSustainable Forestry Initiative Program
The American Forest PaperAssociation has developed general indicators to meet the SF1 objectives These general indicators include

General Indicators of MeetingProgram Objectives

Written policy and programs for achieving the Program Objectives

Training programs as appropriate for staff andior logging contractors

Implementation of state Best Management Practices BMPS

Compliance with state laws and regulations

Financial or in- kind
support of forest research

system
for momtoring attainment of Program Objectives

Willamet-te has developed several criteria and indicators bywhich to assess confonnarice with the Sri objectives The SF1 program
objectives along with the companys primarycriteria used to assess conformance with these objectives are listed below

Objectivei Broaden the practice of sustainable forestiy by employing an array of scientifically environmentally and economically
sound practices in the growth harvest and use of forests

Long-term resource analysis leading to written forest management plan

Reporting to senior management on meeting Program Objectives

Objective Promptly reforest harvested areas to ensure long term forest productivity and conservation of forest resources

All management units designated for reforestation

Clear criteria to judgeadequate regeneration

Protect long-term soil productivity during site preparation

Appropriately deploy genetically improved stock

Objective Protect the water quality in streams lakes and other waterbodies by establishing riparian protection measures based

on soil type terrain vegetation and other applicable factors and by using sPA approved Best Management Practices

EMPs in all forest management operations

Field staff are trained in water quality laws and state BMPS

Map and mark strearnaide management areas on the ground
Field audits documenting protection of streams lakes and

riparian zones

Objective Enhance the quality of wildlife habitat by developing
and implementing measures that promote habitat diversity and

the conservation of plant and animal
populations found in forest communities

Inventoiy and map unique habitats and special species

Silvicultural management to improve habitats and promote wildlife habitat diversity

Objective Minimize the visual impact by designing harvests to blend into the terrain by restricting
clearcut size and/or by using

harvest methOds age classes and judicious placement of hawest units to promote diversity in forest cover

Incorporate aesthetic considerations into harvesting and road design

Implement the greenup requirement in policies and plans

Objective Manage company lands of ecologic geologic or historic
significance in manner that accounts for theirspecial qualities

Identifyand manage special sites

Workwith internal and external groups to address the protection of important sites and rare threatened or

endangered species

Maintain public access for recreation and education as appropriate

Objective7 Contribute to hiodiversityby enhancing landscape diversity and providing an array
of habitats

Manage company lands to achieve diversity of forest
age classes

Implement land classthcation systembased on management imeisi yandlor ecological objectives

Objective Continue to improve forest utilizationto help ensure the most efficient use of fàrest renirc
Workftinill mgrsto better utilize species and low-grade material

Mereude harvested material to ensure highest and best use

Objective Continuel use of forest chemicals to improve forest health and growth while protecting employecs

neighbors J4dic and sensithre areas including sireamcourses and adjacent lands

Supthon of forest chemical applications by designated state tr dorcerthedamtor
Implement plans for appropriate

handli ng of forest themicals Inc agextspil1sdrift sig

nageandpublicnotification L1vi
Objectiveio Broaden the

practice
of sustainable forestiy by further involving.a citia

foresters and company employees whe are active mwood procurement
Staff positions devotedto natural resource education

Support deveibpnlent of educational materials for use with nonlnt

Use onlrofessionallytinined Ioers onWlllamette operatic

Objective ii Publicly report Program Participants progress infulfillingthØir conmi
Track all categories of information needed for annual reports

Promptly respOnd to the nnnal si survey questionnaire

Objectheii Prvidec orunities

rtSt ehia
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BtsinessOverview

tllamette Industries Inc the company was founded in

1906 as the Willamette Valley Lumber Co in Dallas Oregon

In 1967 illamette Valley and several related firms merged to

form Willamette Industries Inc Our stock has been publicly

traded since 1968.Wlllamette is diversified integrated forest

products company with xo3 manufacturing facilities in

states France Ireland and Mexico

We
operate

in
very competitive industry consisting of

thousands of companies some larger and more diversified

others much smaller producing only one or two products

Very competitive conditions existin
every industry segment in

which the company operates The company competes in its

markets primarily through price quality and service.We feel our

strengths are our vertical integration our geographically

diverse modem fiber-and enerjr-effithent facilities our en
neering and construction capabilitiŁs our concentration on

________related product range our balancennongbuilding

________ftc and brown paper produs our g834

self-sufhciency and anorpnlzstSi4 ucththt.
sicouragesteatwork as well as indwfdInittSn

Building Materials

Lumber Nine sawmills manufacture z% of the nations Ium-

her production Lumber products are marketed through

independent wholesalers and distributors throughout the u.s

Structural Panels Plywood panels manufactured at nine plants

and oriented strand board os manufactured at one plant

account for 9% and 3% respectively of the nations productioa

Both products are marketed nationwide
through independent

wholesalers and distributors

Composite Panels Four particleboard plants manufacture 13W
of the nations particleboard In addition the company has

particleboard plant in France that produces r% of Eurt

production.Three medium denaityfiberhoanl is

produce zz% of the nations MDL MDP is also mann

facilitie8 In Ireland and France account for 6% of

Europàan pitionThe cm

tM4 dflI

-t

il

is t.s Ir..tlSI

wI 44115

15

IL

rrFWbTrd4kt4

M-
5-

22

4LrSL
Ii

tie--
______

-..- -r-1c-

tfl %.4$

-i

-.5 .-.2 1---



Supplementaiy Busines8 Segment Information

Brow-n Paper

Packaging

Other

Total Brown Paper

Gpn

177486 16 116

326990 22 24

312.191 21

816667 20

.S 118955

225283

253910

4779

550269lQ1W
12284

4U7S

124IJ61
106.IN

4.71$

30371

62$

161344

64.426

2.IQ1

1349.lfl

179323 14

380977 11

zoq

Sales to outside cuMomeI

White Paper

Communication papers
and cut sheets

Market pulp and fine paper

Total White Paper

1999 qi 1998 199 1996

814464 20

327847

1142311 28

1996 .b

725866 20

340657

1066523 29

683435 19

346214 10

1029.649 29

1229548 30

722881 21 829472

238892

1468440 36

.9.264

11.51366 31

227644

1379010 37

1007765 29

201270

1209035 35

1077892 31 127i

226756 2994

1304648 38

Building Materials

Lumber

Stictural
COmpOStepaneIS

Otherwooprothzct

TotltaI

290233

4.65967 11

383296 10

327722

1467218 36

4077969 100

233997 220822

36195810 36624610

367072 10 362A

48279



Mariagenients Discussion Analysis OF FINANCIAL CONDITION RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The companys three basic businesses white paper brown

paper
and building materialsare affected by changes in

general
economic conditions White and brown paper sales and

earnings tend to follow the general economy The sales and

earnings of the building materials business are closely related

to new housing starts remodelingactMty and the availability

and terms of financing for construction All
industry segments

are influenced by global economic factors of supply and

demand In addition the costs of wood arid recycled fiber basic

raw materials for the companys three segments are

sensitive to various supply and demand factors including

environmental issues

Results of Operations 1999 VS 1998
Consolidated net sales increased lo.2% and operating earn

ings increased 109.4% in compared to 1998 Improved

performances from all three segments contributed to the

increase over the pnoryear Also contributing to the improve
ment in earnings was change in estimate for the depreciable

lives of
property plant and equipment The change was based

on study performed by the companys engineering depart

ment comparisons to typical industry practices and the effect

of the companys extensive capital investments which have

resulted in mix of etswithlongerproductive lives due to

technological advances The change in estimate increased

1999 operating earnings by $82.4 miffion and net income by

$51.9 million or $0.46 perdiluted share

White paper sthled in the early part of
1.999 as markets

continued to be depressed from the Asian turmoil of 1998
However by the third quarter markets were rebounding and

the upswing continued into the fourthquarter Net sales

increased .i% and operating earnings were up 102.8% 4o.3%
before the effect of the depreciation change when compared

to the prior year The improvement was due to increased unit

shipments which offset average sales price declines Forms

shipments increased 11.2% as result of increasmgour market

share Cut sheetvolumes improved 20.0% primarilydueto

our continued focus on sales to office
auperatorea Ad4itionaily

999 induded fillyear of operation from our Brownsville

Tennessee cut sheet plant which came online In Februazy 1998
and new cut sheet plant in shingrcu CourtHouse ho
which came on line in November Hardwcxdmarket pulp

unit shipnents increased 15 9C mpaiwas ahieto

take advantage of pulp rnark
While unit shipments wer ii average

sales

prices remained below 199u1ous forms average

sales prices declined 2.3% ct 4.8% and fine paper
1.1% The only product lineto exee 1998 levels was hardwood

market pulp which increased i8.i%.Wbile.prieesere down

year- over-year third and fourth quarter trends were positive

As result fourth
quarter average

sales
prices were

above 1998 yearly averages
Raw mateiial costs slightly reduced

operatingmargina duringthe aschip cosi sod

i.5% over 1998 The
grosap megmkrwbite pape increased

to 15.5%m1999 from 10.9% lfl 199

Brown paper sales and earnings were solid throughout

as we once again out-performed the
industry in

percentage
of volume growth for the year Net sales increased 6.5% and

earnings increased 35.2% 21.o% before the effects of the

depreciation change compared to 1998 Unit shipments for

corrugated containers improved 3% and
grocery bags

increased 5.1% over 1998 levels The increased volume in cor

rugated containers resulted from additional
converting capacity

from capital improvements and strong demand from our

expanding customer base Bag unit shipments increased for

the first time since 1994 due to the continued growth of the

handle bag which is recapturing market share from plastics

Average sales
prices

increased for all product lines in 1999
corrugated containers were up 2.9Io and

grocery bags were up
over the prioryear

Raw material costs reduced brown paper earnings as old

corrugated container oce prices increased 6.3% from 1998

levels The gross profit margin for brown paperwas g.3% in

1999 compared to 19.1% in 1998

Building materials posted strong year in i999 as net sales

improved 16.9% and operating earnings increased 215.0%

i8%before the effect of the depredation change compared
to 1998 Average sales prices were up in

every product line

Ifl 1999 except
for our international products Oriented strand

board osa showed the greatest improvement as average
sales

Opersting amingi p18 increased 3o.i% over 1998 Other

product lines showed increases of 17.4%

for plywood i6.3% for lumber 2.6% for

partideboard.and4.a%frdomestic

mediunidensityhberboard unr The

320
only decline in sales

price realizations

came fromour international It DF line

whicherperiencedadeclineofl7.2%

.Unbipmntsinrxcased in 1999 aB

deandimnim.d
strong Plywood

inproveth14%andO83uicreased74%

95

The ntrna plywoedhinie partially

I11ction at

the Zwolle osedimoths 111 1998
due to fire damage bimha pnenta were ongas well

improving 8.6% over 1998levlaVoIume inreaaes were the

result of
strong u.s hausiigl ioQgblte fall and

full year of operation at our smalHogaaviziilHn Taylor

Louisiana The companys composite panel markets also

saw growth in 1999 as paitideboerd increased 12.0% and unr

increased 6.z% These improvimentawere the result of the

acquisition of an MD in March1998

and particleboard

result of the favorable
gross profit

marginforb91idingm lytO21.3%
fl 1999 from 10.8% mi99

SeUngandadininistz 3.9rn11-

lionor5%in1999ductQL eompany
operationsSeilingaa apientagc
of sales decreased tà 6%jj4 1998

.i ..



Other income expense of $11.7 mJlliOfl was primarily

related to the reserve set up to approximate potential non-tar

deductible penalties
from federal Clean Air Act assessment

Interest expense decreased $6.7 nullion or i% 111 i99 to

$z.3 million The reduction occurred despite decrease in

capitahaed interest to $4.0 million from $i3.6 million in 1998

Interest expense
declined afl result of reducing total debt in

1999 by $231.8 million The companys effective interest rate

increased to i6Io from 7.o6% in the prioryear

Results of Operations 1998 VS 1997

Consolidated net sales improved 5.7% and operating earnings

increased 16.2% in 1998 coxnparedto Astrongperfor

mance from the brown paper segment aM increases in unit

shipments for many product lines conirihuted to the results

Whitt paper net sales improved 3.6% over the prior year

as increases in unit shipments more thanoffset decreases in

averagesalespricet Whiltsaleswereupcomparedto 1997

priniarilyas

While prices declined for most product lines stroi

housing starts and low interest rates helped fuel unii

increases for most product lines in 1998 Lumber was the

primary benefactor as unit shipments improved z1.o%

the
prioryear

In addition the start-up of our new sin

sawmill in Taylor Louisiana inAugust

project completions helped increase unit shipments

unit shipment improvements included particleboard

and MOP of 15.7% overtheprioryear MOP shipments

due to capital projects and the acçuisition of facili

Moreenx France in Marchi998 Decreased___________

of 7.7% were the result of the closure of the
___

mill in July 9w and downtime at our ZwoIle

due to fire that haltedproductioninAprilx8
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CapStaJ
Expenditures Major capital projects underway at Decem- Other Matters

udoU.wi her 3i 19 include The company believes it is in substantial compliance with fed

eral state and local laws regarding environmental
cuality

Construction and installation of new In early 1998 the U.S Environmental ProtectionAgenr EPA
recovery boiler and steam tuthine released the final rules regarding air and water quality known as

gen..eraorat theAlbany Oregon the cluster rules Compliance with the cluster rules is required

paper milL by 2001 however certain exceptions to the rules extend the

Construction of new corrugated box time period for specific compliance requirements up to eight

plant in Phoenix Arizona years from adoption The company through previously corn-

Relocation of the Elk Grove Illinois cor- pleted and future projects has made significant progress
toward

rugated facility upgrading our mills and plans to have all mills in compliance

In.stallation of steam turbine generator with the duster rules by the required deadlines

at Kentucky Mills The companys other operations are faced with
increasingly

Upgrade of the papermathine at Johnsonburg Pennryleanks stringent environmental regulations In the fourth quarter

Construction of new partideboard plant nearBerinettsville of 1997 the company received series of requests for informa

South Carolina tionfromthe aPAunder Section
114

of the CleanAirAct the

Construction of new U-logsawmill near Otester South Act with
respect to the companys building materials

operations

Camlira The requests have focused on compliance with regulations

Capacity increase at our parlici eboard plant in Lfrlze Fnince under the Prevention of Significant Deterioration sn Pro-

The cost of all major projects in
progress at December 3a gramimdertheAct On Ma17 1998 the EPA issued Notice

i999is estimated to he approximately $4z.9 millionof of Violation Nov allegingviolations of the Act and related

which $179.4 million has already been spent These projects state regulations and on December 111998 issued second

will be funded with internally generated cash flows and ester- NOV supplementing and clarifying the first xov The company

nal borrowings if needed has responded to the allegutidna and has had many meetings

In December1998 the company sold 117000 acres of and extensive correspondence with the EPA and the U.S

southwest Washington timberland for $23.o million The Department of Justice to negotiate resolution of the issues

company acquired the land in 1996 as part of the purchase of raised by the Nova Settlements by other companies in the

Cavenham Forest Industries The forestlands were sold as wood products industzy that have received NOVS under the Act

they were not critical to the long-term fiber supply needs of have involved the payment of substantial penalties and agre
the companys operations Proceeds of the sale were used to merits to install emission control equipment and undertake

pay down debt during 1998 supplemental environmental projects The company has estab

In June 1998 the company initiated medium-term note liaised $io.o million reserve as an estimate of the potential

program and issued $100.2 million of notes as of December Si non-tax deductible penalties resulting from these proceedings

1998 The medium-term notes cany interest rates ranging
In Ncwember 1998 the company received from the EPA

from 6.45% to 6.6o% and maturities from 11 to i5yeaxs In request forinformatlonunderctlonn4 oftheActrequesting

addition in Januaiy 1998 the company issued $200.0 million inforinationwith respect to the coanysJohnsonburg
in debentures $ioo.o million at 6.45% due 2005 and $1ooo Pennsylvania pulp and papernsill This

request
also focusedon

million at 7.00% due 2018 Proceeds from both issuances compliance with PSD regplationa SubsezdlyronAprih9
were used to replace notes maturing in 1998 and reduce other the company received an ov relatizigto its Johnsonltrg

bank borrowing mill The NOV asserts violations of tbeAct rilatingtotwà alleged

The total debt-to-capital ratio dechnedto .z8% at Decem- major modifications to the plsnt without proper PED

ber3i from 48.3% at December permits and without complying with applicable sn requiw

TothDelto-CpitRaUo 3I1998 ments.Thecompanyisreriegthealetionaoonttinedin

reprej.debt reduction of $231.8 this NOV and has been meetthgwith federal and state officials

60 mil1oàmpany believes it has to discuss the issues raised bythe xcv InAugust the corn-

the riivlable to meet its
long- pany received another Section u4infenuation request from

term uirementsResources the EPA relatmg to the companys paper mill in Campti

in..Jd generated funds and Louisians Also in November 999 the copanyreceiveasec-

borrowing agreements tion information requireinen$frotn the EPA rt4a tothe

In 1998 the companys hoard of direc- companys paper mill in flawesv entucky

tore authonzed the repurchase of $.o Based upon either en orpmpoisdrguations the

5%
million of the company common stock company estimates that ovvatbene4fiveyears additional aaii-

The company reBurchased 4ooo shares tal expenditures to coinplywitnmeniatrsguLitioaww
for $i3.o million duringthethixd ndf thqlarters of a8 not exceed $ioo.o.milliom.A

OnApril 20 i99the cotnpans board of directors voted to ital expenditures cannoti

raise the quarterlycashdividend from $o.i6 to $o.i8 pershaxe ocontinvgcbangs.iflb

which was 12.5% increae however there is no assuranoeaato plianao with such

future dividends athedepend onearcr mata
msnts and fnsne1lcin4ttion
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1111996 the company began addressing the possible effects of

the issue on its information fmancial and
manufacturing

systems These efforts included inventory assessment modifi

cation and testing
of these key systems

Modification testing
and implementation of all critical sys

tems was completed early in tile fourth quarter of t999With

the passing of Januaxy ooc the company has experienced

no significant problems As of December 3i r999 the

company had spent 8.3 million on Y2K compliance These costs

were expensed as incurred No further significant expenditures

are expected

Over the years inflation has resulted in replacement costs

higher than those originally needed to purchase existing plant

and equipment Mvances in technolor and environmental

concerns also contribute to higher costs Productivity gains
be

cause of technological improvements may partially offset

these increased costs Our use of LIPO to value inventories allows

us to include these attônaxy-eosts in the cost of sales

ForwrdIooktng Statement

Statements contained in thireport that are not historical in

nature including without limitation the discussion of

forecasted 8ales and productionvolwne. the impact of emwi

ronmŁntàl regulatiom the iapct.ofcwripliance arid

the adequr of the omp liquiyresources are foiward

looldngstatcmenwithinthe-meaniithe-Prlvate Securities

Litigation BelbrmAetof 19% Fo7war4oobigätemen1a
are subject risks and uucrtatthatyeauseactUal
future retó diffezuatsrW hr Fbei1ain

wthresptoth.m ofueco
nonucconhtions therevethfparWandteznodehzig
activityi the

tioncoapettivef Bt.th800st-

and.ailaily-àfe

onthe-oothpanyat1nb of non-

perrnanaekthtMpartii

regulations
andtbconai iedw.---

compgwithsuthnk
investórsare cautioned

forwarI4oouig1oN
atthn any

forwxd-1othgsatez
events deIogni

-.pi-1 ..
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CONSOliDATED Balance Sheets
dolar arnount eceptpe olare amoaa thousinds

Current aaset8

382763

5110

36160

889590

1057529

2751210

99532

$4797861

3256

212222

77043

38525

65256

22200

432119

491.374

41813

Lj.628843

Assete

DECEMBER Si 1999

25557

Accounta receivable less allowance for

doubtfulaccountof3z 19984300
hwentoriesnote3

Prcpaidezpen8esandthnberdeposits

Tota1currentassets

Timber thatherlands and related facilitiee rtnote

mpepIantandquipment.netnotn4
Otherass

liabilides and SekhoIders Eq
CUabUi

Nopable6ot
Acspbookowrdi

.Ae

Ot



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 0i-Earnings
dotlar nd snare amounts nocept per share amounts thousands

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Seffing and administrative expense

Operating earnings

Other income expense

Interest
expense

Earnings before provision for meome taxes

Provision for income taxes note

Net earnings

Earningspersbarebasic

Earnings per share diluted

Weightedaverage shares outstandingbasic

Weighted average sEared outstandingdiluted

Prst.are earnie both bas4cnd dIute arebasedw12d5verBgeof5outstndin
ORged bled amoco roubtaodinnoudijsingtMtramury snck nettod and asslinle all stock

attons one exerosed See note

1999 1998 1997

$4077969 3700282 3501376

3261302 3185028 3029892

816667 515254 471484

216398 252510 245319

550269 262744 226165

11710 2029 2088

538559 264773 228253

125284 131990 116990

413275 132733 111263

152800 43800 38300

260475 88983 72963

2.34 0.80 0.66

2.33 0.80 0.65

111375 111302 110975

112001 111747 111550

See occonipetedeS netasto nsobdatedtlnanaal statements

SELECTED QUARTERLY Financial

UNAIJDI TED

Per Shnre

thirsted

LUaI11IU$tUU AJIItt4ALROT 27

1999

1998

1997

Net $iea Cnn as Profrt
Arm otar4

1st Quarter 923453 145158 31594 .28

2nd Quarter 1007369 198961 63314 .57

3rd Quarter 1087899 242919 81958 .73

4th Quarter 1059248 229629 83609 .75

Total 4077969 816667 260475 2.33

ist Quarter 900075 124252 22081 .20

2nd Quarter 946390 128947 24014 .21

3rd Quarter 956794 151308 35735 32

4th Quarter 897023 110747 7153 .07

Total 3700282 515254 88983 .80

ast Quarter 855192 109296 U317 .12

2nd Quarter 879348 U883 17750 .16

3rd Quarter 88879 122668 20697 .18

4th Quarter 878041 120705 21199 .19

Total 3501376 471484 72963 .65



CONSOLIDATED STATE ENTS of
Stockholder8 EquityQ

amunt except pershaie amountsin thousds

POa TH YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 11

Common Sdo
Balance at beginning of

year

2-for-I stock split

Sham issuedropins exeieised

Stockrepurthased and canceled

Balanceat end of year

77984

1.844292

1999 1998

1.661801

55490 55675

304

55794

Bale gnnwgofyear 285140

ShafeiUkoptiorjnexerciaed 18 486

303626

1On
997çect _________



CONSOLIDATED STATE ME NTS of Cash F1Ow8
1ramounts exceptpershareamountz in thosads

1999 1998 99

260475 88983 72963

240374

46197

17148

86938

69760

31015

23224

23159

6126

602866

296466

54376

20299

7683

4.161

14623

7778

26381

122S0

435442

268030

52649

18270

28650

34293

28646

1463

23568

13276

389378

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

Cash Flows front
OperaiingAetivftics

Net earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net earning

to net cash from operating activities

Depreciation

Coat of fee timber harvested

Other amortization

Increase in deferred income taxes

Changes in working capital items

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and timber deposits

Accounts payable and accrued
expenses

Accrued income taxes

Net cash from operating activities

Cash FmshngAcdvie
Proceeds from sale of assets

Expenditures for property plant and equipment

Expenditures for timber and timberlands

Expenditures for roads and reforestation

Other

Net cash from investing activities

C1ash Flows from FinnndngAthvitie

Net change in opesBtinglines of credit

Debt borrowing

Proceeds front saleof common stock

Repurchased common stock

Cash dMdenda paid

Paymentondtht

Net cash from ftniinthrgactitviies

_ghining of year

Sup eaOf cash flOw hormation

fngtheydcie
Incos ..

Stanyag caisoHdats4 ftssacsI statements

5965

267856

8026

14364

33329

317610

162711

506348

7782

13778

9624

035573

237422

417.772

876
15300

9582

21W

33.635 V.630 W85
27770 175415

18725 3.117

12979
77984 71227

225934 14 1931
291058 217.684 28427

5802 3J59 5373

31359 276000 22222

25557 31359 V.600

t.0.

126292 r-
52916

c4



NOTE tare of Operatkms

Willamette Industries Inc is diversified1 integrated forest

products company with io3 manufacturing facilities inz
states France Ireland and Mexico The companys principal

lines of business are white papeClmwn paper and building

materials The company produces hardwood market pulp fine

paper specialty printing papers business forms cut sheets

kraft linerboard corrugating medium bag paper corrugated

containers paper bags inks lumber plywood partieleboard

MD szlaimnated beams LVL I-joists and othervalue-added

wood products Based on 1999 sales the companys business

is comprised of 28% white paper 36% brown paper and 36%

building materials.The company sells approximately 91% of

its products inthe United States its primazy foreign markets

are Axia and Europe

NOTE SwyofSigniAth$AceongThUa

______

-owned

Swae

Business Segments The companys various product jj
have been

aggregated into three segmentswhite paper br0

paper and building materialsbased on the similarnatu

the products the ecomonic conditions
affecting those

and the management and reporting of those pro
the company Information with respect to the segments is

included in the Supplementaiy Business Segment ____
onpagezo

Use of Estimates Generally accepted ______
require management to make estimates and____
affect the reported amount of assets _____________
des at the date of the financial statements and ____
of revenues and expenses

differ from those estimates

Reelassiftcalions _____________
to pzioryears data to conformwith the

NOTE Inventories

Notes to CONSOUDATED FT NANCIAL STATEMENTS lecqnsqrjl 1999 1998and1997dollaraincunts csptpirshare amountsi 5cusanc

81

ma

of costar

ma
ties

The major components of InnukSies are

DECZMBfl Si

Wbthinprçgresr

RawmS ____
_____

ii

.1

1999

139385

7fli

198S

$170

Ia.

.r.gpi u$sT

t1itii

tfflTtItrnirs pi
it

1t-.

___ Iii TMfl

as
.1

4a _____ ____
_________ ___ --

ç... .-Th. ..-
fl ________

ce

____
.t4C./ Ifr1$.Lp1 tad tWe It44 fl4 ac4i

__________rta tkci4h1Vt ___ if wt
st-i z4tb Th4

trY
.s n-iç ______

________

ot a-rr at_________rr
.r

ttSc ii

_________-

74r1qr Wt

.q tarr

at
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NOTE Igterm Debt NOTE Income Taxes

Long-term debt consists of the following

DECEMSER 31

Notes payable to public

9.625% due in 2000

7.75% due in 2002

9.125% due in 9003

645% due in Oo5

7.000/c due in 9018

9.00% due in 2021

7.35% due in9o26

7.85% due in 2026

Medium-term notes withinterest rates ranging

from 645% to7.20% due in varying

amounts through 2013

Bank loans with interest rates averaging

6.ao% and 5.52% due in varying amounts

through 2006

Revenue bonds with interest rates averaging

5.04% and 4.59% due invarying amounts

through 2026

Other long-term debt with interest rates

averaging 8.62% and 7.43% due in varying

amounts through soo6 12334 88S0

1632099 1.823350

3256 2267

1628843 1821.083

Principal payment requirements on the alove debt for the four Other

years subsequent to 2000 are zoot 3oo88 goo $117503

2003 $6985 Z004 $10458
The company has revolving loan with group of banks that

provides for borrowings up to $450000 in principal amount

and provides backup for master note prograni.At
Decembe

3i 1999 the outstanding balance covered under the revolving

loan was zz5ooó Al December 311999 $i5oooo of notes

payable due inooo were classified as long-term debt as the

company plans to refmance the notes in ooo
The company utilized short-term borrowings with number

ofbanksatvarioustimesduringi999 andi998ofwhich

$13617 was outstanding at December 3i i999.The weighted

average interest rate on short-termborrowings at Dmber
311999 and 1998 was 5.65% 4$4% respectively Interest

is based upon pre linshotàrates in effect at the time

of the transaction

The fair value of the compaCyg-term debt is estimat

ed to be apprnnmately $i6o6ooo based on the quoted

market prices for the same or ainiilar issues or on the current

rates offered to the company for debt with the same remaining

maturities

The provision for income taxes includes the following

1999 1998 1997

85563 26018 43501

19700 10100 14000

65863 36118 9650

81667 26974 23395

5270 19292 5255

86937 7682 28650

152800 43800 38300

135343 3666.4 31600

17457 7136 6700

152800 43800 38300

1999 1998 i99
35.051 35.094 35094

2.596 2.394 13
0.591 3.6% 39

1.061

1.091 0.7% L6941 ..

34.49437.091 33fl4

The companys consolidated federal income tax renui

through have bei enrnind by the Internal eesw
viceandwhilefmalsettleuieutbasnotbeenm

believes that the company has provided for anyi

uItimamibeassessed
1Tax Reform.Ast1986 epandedth

mininmna tax uiT UnderthiaActecompanysi
is the greater of its regulartax ortheAwr Totheett

compar8AMT liabthty exceeds Its regular tax lalihiy

liabilitymqbeappliedagsmstfuture regiilactaxthflH

AtDecber3la999ompauyhÆd$44OiA....

ContoqIi The companyc

eesandsOmeIouzreipIayeesw1der4o1
amounts contxihuieby the company vaiyf

plan expenses mere $u4I $ui aii$i

and respec
DefiedBTbecauyc
ployer retLruutpaLl

csrbou4

1999 1998

Payable receivable from

150000 150000 taxable earnings

100000 100000 Payable receivable due to AlIT

50000 50000 Currently payable

100000 100000 Deferred taxes due to temporary

100000 100000 differences for

150000 150000 Accelerated depreciation

200000 200000 Other

200000 200000 Total deferred

Total provision

Federal income taxes

205700 205700 Other income taxes

Less Current installments

250625 445000 The companys deferred income tax liability is mainly due to

depreciation Differences between the effective tax rate and

the federal statutoly rate are shown in the following table as

113440 113800 percentage of pretax income

Federal statutory rate

State income taxes net of

Federal tax effect

Benefit from foreign taxes

Estimated non-deductihie

EPA penalty

NOTE Piiinn oiidirneilns



342065

15401

24585

1671

274

U36

35407 37348

Theco sic

the Plnes
stock appTedatkm1

to directornndk

prices nk
dsteofgrx.Optf

yriii33%ix$Ixi
dfnLThO

___

1999

17431

27748

199

3859

As advised by its actuaries the company makes contributions

to provide for benefits attributed to past service and for those

benefits expected to be earned in the future

Postretirement Benefit Plans The company has contributory

postretirement health plan primarily covering its salaried

employees Employees become eligible for these benefits if they

meet minimum age
and service quirements

The following table sets forth reconciliatioris of the benefit

obligation plan assets funded status and disclosure of assump
tions utilized in the December3i calculations

Lkfnl Ben Lus Postrstrmc Beiefo
Ita.ia

1999 1996 1999 1998

decrease the ao by 3141 and decrease the service ancj

cost by $3o6 Various pension plans have benefit
oblig

excess of plan assets The following table sets forth the

status of those plans

Benefit obligation

Plan assets fair value

1999

2238i

The components of net periodic benefit cost are as

Bftt Posos
1998 1999

15401 1203

24585

40754 313

3194

37348

1203

2426

783

2078

4275

34277

1182

2428

680

3072

4291

Service coSt

Interest cost

Expected return on

plan assets

Amortization of prior

service cost

Amortization of net

transition obligation

Recodac
gain loss 3901

Net periodic benefit cost $3406630

NOTE SoILIss

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation

Beginning of year 386108

Service cost. 17431

Interest cost 27748

Ameiidxieiin 17186

Other 821

Actuarialgain ices 24965

BeiiŁfits paid
._

16057

obligation

Eodciyear.$

QiMseta
Fafrvaluecfaasetur

BeginnigoLyes 528456

AetUsirsturnon

plaiiauet 77218

4819

Oth 1194

Bnºffti1iaid 16057

Falusó
gnofyea

Status

186612

Unreco

11

Uæree

3381

894

211453

29029 Li

r.1

730%

cmi

Eeidu.ed

.inri4d urendered

Outstandjber3i
Sbar

Mr



The company has shareholder
rights plan providing for the

distribution of rights to shareholders ten days after person
or group becomes the owner of o% or more of the companys

common stock or makes tender or exchange offer which

would result in the ownership of 3o% or more of the common
stock Once the

rights are distributed.each right becomes

exercisable to purchase for $280 /foth of share of new
series of company preferred stock which /iooth share is

intended to equal four common shares in market value Each

right is exercisable to purchase for $28ocommon shares with

market value of $560 The rights will
expire in Februaiy 2ooo

The board of directors has
approved new shareholder

iights

plan thatwill extend the benefits of the cxistingplan.The new
plan lowers the

percentage of the companys common stock that

person can own and the threshold for tender or exchange
offer that would trigger the plan to i5%The new stock purchase

rights will have an exercise price of $aoo
In September 1998 the board of directors authorized the

repurchase of up to $ooo of the companyscominon stock

The company repurebased 470900 shares of common stock for

$i3ooo inthethird arid fourth quarters of

NOT9 Dispositions

In Decemberi998 the
company sol4 117000 acres of timber

land in southwestern Washington for $234.000.Thethnberland

was acquired 1996 as part oftheCaeuhauacquisiUon The

timberland was sold as it was not critlØal toI1.Iig-termsupp1y
needs of the companys Northwestopatio.Pmeeetj of the

sale were used to pay down.existing4ebt

NOTEContmgeneies

The company has established a$io oooreesaneliinatc
of non-tax deductible penalties re aIaeau
Air Ant assessment of the building matenalot1o

There are various otherlawsuits cdnd
matters pendingagainsttheco.Whieding
or litigatIon has anelement

oluncertainty nnmeathe1ievee
that the outcome of any lawsuit or 3gOY
threatened or all of them combined riaI
adverse

effetOflthmpafly8ftnan

Ys .4 --

----
.--

S.--
fr

5-



ManufacturingFaciitic81
Building Materials

Ptywood Poductlon

9pZans
2.5

1.0

03

Lumbur Pnaduction

njbdfrm

2000 0RECAST

Chester Sc

Sqor 3/u

Dallasos

246000

Dodson LA

156000

Emerson A.R

227000

Foster os

241.000

Moncure

Ruston LA

115000

9I9293949S06970899

SpringeIoa

148000

Zwolle LA

122000

Oriented Strand Boar1

238000

ptans

Arcadia LA

1641000

Lumber
Total Sthzctural Panels

miUa
24mJi

Daflae oa

Dodaoii

Pith1eboard



Brown Paper

müls

2000 FORECAST 1999 PRODUCTION
Brown Paper Production

2.0

L6

.1

oc%919299l9s%97%c9

Carnigated Produoe

Albany

Campti

Hawesville

Ojnard CA

Total Brown Paper

Corrugited Container and Sheets

Aurora IL

Beaverton OR

Bellevue VA

Bellxnawr NJ

Bowling Green

Cerrotos CA

Compton c.t

Dallas rx

Delaware OR

EGrOVCIL
Fort Smith Al

Fridle ii

Golden co

GriffinGA

Huntsville At

Indianapolis

Kansas Qtyca

Lincoln ix

I4wisville.rY

I.unhertonw

Maryland Heights

MattheWs Na

Memphinc

Mencoity Mexico

MosesLake

Newtonjo

PhoenixAz2

Portland.ox

Srnn1u.
LMsfl

04

KraftBapandSadw

TotalrBap8a

2J7fltt

ndSpePmdud

567000

93000

176000

202000

1881000 1839000

uSqurF

1201000

860000

704000

718000

933000

866000

825000

1.042000

666000

542000

1020000

1032000

743000

1.107000

987000

781000

869000

506000

608000

881000

740000

385000

40000

434000

769000

593000

265000

834000

256000

826000

U8600I

zooo

840000

634000

43000

860000

26538000

Th

33000

n0.
200O

00

5260

5I

8.gSask

.5.



Hawesville

Market Pulp

Fine Paper

Johnsonburg PA

Klngsport.rN

Marlboro se

Total Market Pulp and Fine Paper

Cerritos CA

Dallasrx

Indianapolis IN

Inghonie PA

PtockHill sc

WestChlcago.XL

Total Communication Papers

CutSheets and Other Converting

6pon1a BrownsviJie

DuBois

KingportTN

Oweusboro

Tatwn se

Washington Court House

Total Cut Sheets

2000 FORECAST

To

136000

563000

406000

167000

322000

1596000

59000

43000

61000

60000

53000

66000

342000

...

Cut Suet
PToductl.1

40

303

White Paper

Market Pulp and Fine Paper

milLs

Communication Paperu

pl ants

1999 PRODiJCTXON

White Papei Production

1.6

L2

1593000

89% 9191939489% 978989

Fonns Production

thistca
334000

122000

159000

126000

203000

108000

69000

787000 697000 8950919293949SL.

e89919294949584g

.. s.



Geographic Locations
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ELEVEN-YEAR Selected Financial Data
doIar uflteCeptM thare anowits in tinusandn

ic

4.0Net saIe

Cost expene

Depreciation amortization and cost of fee timber harvested

Materials labor and other operating expenses

Sutivpe
ngrniT

Inteatpesise 1252

Other j11
Earzii 4L3

ts/_

--
Mccs

Neteirs



1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 1989

3700282 3501376 3425173 3873575 3007949 2622237 2.372396 2004501 1904853 1891824

371141 338949 302937 249165 217252 194202 173784 151258 107654 104250

2813887 2690943 2495345 2528570 2239185 1997246 1833919 1563939 1421241 1332692

515254 471484 626891 1095840 551512 430789 364693 289304 375958 448822

252510 245319 231862 201784 184699 174413 167094 145329 136624 114029

262744 226165 395029 894056 366813 256376 197599 143975 239334 334853

131990 116990 92804 71050 71513 63290 66422 63263 29899 28836

2029 2088 3861 798 6377 3918 1725 7103 764 2039

132783 111263 306086 823804 288923 189168 129452 73609 208671 308056

43800 38300 114000 309000 111300 78500 47900 27800 79100 U7000

88983 72963 192086 514804 177623 110668 81552 45809 129571 191056

26364

88983 72963 192086 514804 177623 137032 8155a 45809 129571 191056

71.227 71005 68520 62874 52807 48213 45200 40715 40676 36853

17756 1958 123566 451930 124816 88819 36352 5094 38895 154203

441839 527908 485769 453523 393161 386364 367173 244373 34661 279958

366 846 308 093 289 134 359 258 138 523 157576 157322 147194 1.56477 131297

1821083 1916001 1766917 79UZ1O 915797 941710 843618 746622- 5652Z 387444

2002431 1994480 1976281 384439$ 1387845- 1257870 1164828 99444 9871439H 991042

4697668 4811055 4720681 -341355k 3fl_33399 2804553 2527416 21947

22000 20000 20 000 19000 17V 14000 11500 10500

110 981 111350 110 707 U044 U0W2 109794 10954a 101924 1016k-

080 065 173 L62 101 076 045
..---

0.24

080 065 L73 lit 125 0.74 04

064 064 062 0.57 U.4$ 044 042 040 1LI-
18 04 1791 17.85 1622 1241. 11.46 10.64 9J B.9
3350 32.188 34.813 24.75 20.625 437

40s
1f

4.5% 3795 3.43t- 8.295 4i
2.4% 2.1% 42% 3435 2.3%

._
14000 13800 12- 12040 12000 11.3SO..-- -.-

734 068 717493 Sfr1 551172 507 469 45177

-1
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

Xi ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15D OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31 1999 Commission file number 1-12545

WILLAMETTE INDUSTRIES INC
Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

OREGON 93-0312940

State of incorporation I.R.S Employer
Identification NO.1

1300 SW FIFTH AVENUE SUITE 3800

PORTLAND OREGON 97201

Address of principal executive offices Zip Code

REGISTRANTS TELEPHONE NUMBER INCLUDING AP.EA CODE 503 227-5581

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 128 OF THE ACT

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common stock $.SO par value New York Stock Exchange
Preferred stock purchase rights New York Stock Exchange

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE ACT None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports

required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the

registrant was required to file such reports and has been subject to such

filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes -X No---

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to
Item 40S of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not be contained

to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information

statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K

State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by
non-affiliates of the registrant

$3219380103 at February 29 2000

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrants
classes of common stock as of the latest practicable date

Class Outstanding at February 29 2000

Common Stock $.S0 par value 111299146 shares

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED ST REFERENCE

Portions ofthe registrants definitive proxy statement for its 2000 annual

meeting of shareholders are incorporated by reference into Part III hereof
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PART

Item Business

GENERAL

Willamette Industries Inc the company was founded in 1906 as the

Willamette Valley Lumber Co in Dallas Oregon In 1967 Willamette Valley and

several related firms merged to fozin Willamette Industries Inc Our stock has

been ptthlicly traded since 1968 Willamette is diversified integrated forest

products company with 103 manufacturing facilities in 24 states France Ireland

and Mexico
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We operate in very competitive industry consisting of thousands of

companies somelarger and more diversified others much smaller producing oniy

one or two products Very competitive conditions exist in every industry segment
in which the company operates The company competes in its markets primarily

through price quality and service We feel our strengths are our vertical

integration our geographically diverse modern fiber-and energy-efficient

facilities our engineering and construction capabilities our concentration on

focused related range of products our balance among building materials and

white and brown paper products our 58s sawlog self-sufficiency and an

organizational structure that encourages teamwork as well as individual

initiative

BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORHATION

The company operates in three business segments white paper brown paper and

building materials Sales and operating data for the three segments for the past
five years are set forth in the five-year comparison captioned Supplementary
Business Segment Information located on page 30 The company is not dependent

on any one significant customer or group of customers Approximately 91% of the

companys total output is sold domestically

WHITE PAPER

Market Pulp and Fine Paper

Four fine paper mills manufacture 11% of the nations uncoated free sheet

production The companys pulp mills produce pulp primarily for consumption at

our fine paper mills but we also produce 5% of the nations bleached hardwood

market pulp which is sold to outside customers Chips from nearby wood

converting facilities serve as the primary fiber source for our white paper

products

Communication Papers and Cut Sheets

Six business forms plants manufacture 22% of the nations production of

continuous forms Additionally six cut sheet facilities make private brand and

Willamette brand WillcopyR photocopy and cut sheet printer paper Our cut

sheets represent 14% of the nations production Business forms and Cut sheets

are marketed by our own sales force to variety of consumers and distributors

BROWN PAPER

Brown Paper
Four paper mills manufacture 5% of the nations production of linerboard

corrugating medium and bag paper Nearly all of the product is used by or

traded for the needs of Willamettes box and bag manufacturing plants In

Louisiana and Oregon our sawmills plywood plants and timberlands can provide

nearly all of our chip needs for our linerboard mills Recycled fiber in the

form of old corrugated containers provides 58% of our total fiber needs

Corrugated Containers and Sheets

Thirty.six corrugated container and sheet plants manufacture E% of the

nations corrugated box production Products range rota colorful store displays

to eye-catching preprinted boxes from sturdy wax-coated shipping containers to

the plain brown box Corrugated containers are marketed by our own sales force

to variety of industrial and agricultural customers

Bags
Four bag plants make 13% of the nations paper bags marketed by our sales

force to grocery department drug and hardware stores in the West Midwest and

South

BIJILBING MPTERIALS

Lumber
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Nine sawmills manufacture 2% of the nations lumber production Lumber

products are marketed through independent wholesalers and distributors

throughout the u.S

Structural Panels

Plywood panels manufactured at nine plants and oriented strand board OSS
manufactured at one plant account for 9% and 3% respectively of the nations
production Both products are marketed nationwide through independent
wholesalers and distributors

Composite Panels

Four parci.cleboard plants manufacture 13% of the nations particleboard In

addition the company has particleboard plant in France that produces 1% of

European production Three medium density fiberboard MDF plants produce 22% of

the nations MDF MDF is also manufactured at facilities in Ireland and France
which account for 61 of European production The composite panel plants produce

value-added products including color-coated laminated fire-rated and

moisture-resistant boards Composite panel products are sold nationwide through

independent wholesalers and distributors

Engineered Wood Products

Two laminated beam plants account for 26% of the nations production Three

laminated veneer lumber LVL plants and two I-joist plants manufacture 9% of

the nations total production for each product

Engineered wood products are sold in both the domestic and international

markets

TIMBERLMJDS

Willamettes 1728000 acres of timberland supply approximately 58% of our

long-tern sawlog needs The remainder is purchased through private timber sales

and open market purchases Our timberlands are comprised of 734000 acres in

Louisiana Axkansas and Texas 610000 acres in Oregon and 384000 acres in

Tennessee Missouri and the Carolinas We continually look for opportunities to

expand our fee timber base and make purchases when it is profitable to do so

ENERGY

Through cogeneration the burning of waste materials and the recycling of

spent pulping liquors Willametces manufacturing facilities are able to

generate 61% of our total energy needs

EMPLOYEES

Willamette employs approximately 14250 people of whom about 48% are

represented by labor unions with collective bargaining agreements Agreements

covering approximately 1295 employees expired in 1999 Agreements involving

about 1550 hourly employees are subject to renewsi in 2000 Approximately 47%

of all salaried employees have been yith the compsny for irre than twelve years

ENVIRONMENTAL MTrEP.S

See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations--Other Matters for discussion the effect on the

company of laws relating to environmental matters

Item Properties

Copyright 200 EDGAR Online Inc 1.01/2.003 PageS



W1LLAMETrE INDUSTRIES INC l0K Annual Report Dose Filed 3/22/2000

MANUFACTURflG FACILITIES

The fo1lowin table sets forth information regarding the companys 103

manufacturing facilities at December 31 1999

Facility 2000 Forecast 1999 Production

Building Materials

Plywood Plants Square Ft 3/8 Basis
Chester South Carolina 246000
Dallas Oregon 156000
Dodson Louisiana 227000
Emerson Arkansas 241000
Foster Oregon 148.000

Moncure otth Carolina 115000
Ruston Louisiana 148000
Springfield Oregon 122000
Zwolle Louisiana 238000

Total Plywood 1641000

Oriented Strand Board Plant
Arcadia Louisiana 307000

Total Structural Panels 1948000 1900000

Lumber Mills Board Ft
Chester South Carolinal 24000
Coburg Oregon 180000
Dallas Oregon 154000
Dodson Louisiana 59000
Lebanon Oregon Mills 167000
Taylor Louisiana 51000
Warreaton Oregon 166000
Zwolle Louisiana 68000

Total Lumber 669000 820000

Particleboarci Plants Square Ft 3/4 Basis
Albany Oregon 221000
Bend Oregon 180000
Lillie Louisiana 120000
Linxe France 169000
Simsboro Louisiana 110000

Total Particleboard 800000 689000

Production to begin in the second quarter of 2000

Facility 2000 Forecast 1999 Production

Medium Density iberboard Plants square Ft 3/4 Basis
Bennettaville South Carolina 130000
Clonmel Ireland 181000
Eugene Oregon 65.000

Malvern Arkansas 145000
Morcenx France 82000
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Total MDF 603000 573000

Engineered Wood Products Plants Board Ft
Laminated Beams

Simsboro Louisiana 28000

Vaughn Oregon 59000

Total Laminated Beams 87000 83000

Laminated Veneer Lumber Hundred Cubic Ft
Albany Oregon 18800

Simaboro Louisiana 20300

Winston Oregon 16200

Total LVL 55300 46400

IJOiStS Lineal Ft
Simsboro Louisiana 33000
Woodburn Oregon 47000

Total I-Joists 80000 55000

Other Divisions Facilities

Coburg Veneer Coburg Oregon

Custom Products Albany Oregon

Brown Paper

Brown Paper mills Tons

Albany Oregon 567000

Cautpti Louisiana 936000

Hawesville Kentucky 176000
Oxnard California 202000

Total Rrown Paper 1881000 1639000

Facility 2000 Forecast 1999 Production

Corrugated Container and Sheets 36 Plants Square Ft

Aurora Illinois 1201000
Beaverton Oregon 860000

Bellevue WashingtOn 704000

Belltnawr New Jersey 718000

Bowling Green Kentucky 933000

Cerritos California 866000

Compton California 825000

Dallas Texas 1042000

Delaware Ohio 666000
Elk Grove Illinois 542000
Fort Smith Arkansas 1020000
Fridley-_Minnesota 1032000
Golden Colorado 743.000

Griffin Georgia 1107000
Huntsville Alabama 987000

Indianapolis Xndiana 781000
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Kansas City Kansas 869000
Lincoln Illinois 506000
Louisville. Kentucky 608000
Lumberton rorth Carolina 881000

Maryland Heights Missouri 740.000

Matthews North Carolina 385000

Meniphis Tennessee 40000
Mexico City Mexico 434000

Moses Lake Washington 769000

Newton North Carolina 593000

Phoenix Arizona2 265000
Plant City Florida 834000

Portland Oregon 256000
Sacramento California 826.000

San Leandro California 1186000

Sanger California 942000

Sealy Texas 840000
St Paul Minnesota 634000

Tulsa Oklahoma 43000
West Memphis Arkansas 860000

Total Corrugated Containers 26538000 25709000

Production to begin in the third quarter of 2000

Facility 2000 Forecast 1999 Production

Kraft Bags and Sacks Plants Tons

Beavertort Oregon 36000

Buena Park California 38000

Dallas Texas 22000

iCansas City Missouri 20000

Total Kraft Sags and Sacks 116000 111000

Preprinted Linerboard Plants Square Ft

Richwood KentuCky 526000

Tigard Oregon 857000

Total Preprinted Linerboard 1383000 1328000

Inks and Specialty Products plants Tons

Beaverton Oregon 5000

Delaware Ohio 3000

Total Inks 8000 8000

White Paper

Market Pulp and Fine Paper Mills Tons

Hawesville Kentucky

Market Pulp 136000
Fine Paper 563000

JobnsonbtirgT Pennsylvania 408000

Kingspor Tennessee 167000

Marlboro South Carolina 322000

Total Market Pulp and Fine Paper 1596000 1593000
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COmmunicatiOn Papers Plants Tons

Cerritos Clifornia 59000
Dallas Texas 43000
Indianapolis Indiana 61000
Langharne Pennsylvania 60000
Rock Hill South Carolina 53000
West Chicago Illinois 66000

Total Communication Papers 342000 334000

Cut Sheets and Other Converting Plants Tons

Srownsville Tennessee 122000
DuBois Pennsylvania 159000

Kingaport Tennessee 126000
Owensboro Kentucky 203000

Tatuni South Carolina 108000

Washington Court House Ohio 69000

Total Cut Sheets 787000 697000

.7

TIMBERLNWS

See Item Business--TimberlandS for information with respect to the

company timberlands

Item Legal Proceedings

See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations -- Other Matters for discussion of the effect on the

company of laws relating to environmental matters arid pending proceedings

brought thereunder

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of -Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to vote of security holders during the

fourth quarter of the year ended December 31 1999

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive officers of the company are elected annually by the board of

directors At February 10 2000 the executive officers of the company their

ages at December 31 1999 and their positions with the company were as follows

Name Age Position

Duane McDougall 47 President and Chief

Executive Officer

Marvin Cooper 56 Executive Vice President

Pulp and paper mills

Greg Hawley 39 Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial

officer Secretary and
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Eddie McMillan 54

Michael Onustock 60

Treasurer

Executive Vice President-

Corrugated containers and

bags

Executive Vice President

Building materials group

Executive Vice President-

Pulp and fine paper
market jog

Each executive officer excluding Mr Hawley has been employed by the company

in his present or in another senior management capacity for more than five

years Mr Hawley was employed by the company as Vice President Controller for

the pastfour years until his promotion to his present position effective

December 1999 The previous five years he was Vice President for Nosler

Inc. private manufacturing company in Oregon

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The companys common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE under

the symbol WLL At December 31 1999 there were approximately 23000 holders

beneficial of the companys common stock The following table shows quarterly

earnings and dividends per share along with the range of closing prices for 1998

and 1999 The company expects to continue paying regular cash dividends

although there is no assurance as to future dividends as they are dependent upon

earnings capital requiremefltB and financial condition

1999 1998

The quarterly dividend was increased to $0.21 per share commencing in the

first quarter of 2000

Item Selected Financial Data

10

The following table shows selected financial data for the company for the

periods indicated

Financial Results

dollar amounts except per share amounts in thousands

1999 1998 1997 1996 199S

William Kinnpe 60

Closing

Diluted Dividends Price

Earnings Paida High-Low

1st Quarter 0.28 0.16 39 1/16 31 3/4

2nd Quarter 0.57 0.18 49 1/16 37 13/16

3rd Quarter 0.73 018 51 3/16 39 5/8

4th Quarter 0.75 0.18 46 9/16 38 7/8

Closing

Diluted Dividends Price

Earnings Paid High-Low

0.20 0.16

0.21 0.16

0.32 0.16

0.07 0.16

39 3/4 30 13/16

40 7/16 29 7/8

32 231/4

36 26 1/4
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Net Sales 4077969 3700282 3501376 3425173 3873575

Costs and Expensea

Depreciation amortization and cost

fee timber harvested 303719 371141 338949 302937 249165

Materials labor md other

operating expenses 2957563 2813887 2690943 2495345 2526570

Gross profit 816.667 515254 471484 626891 1059840

Selling and administrative expenses 266398 252510 245.319 231862 201784

operating earnings 550269 262744 226.165 395.029 894056

Interest expense 125284 131990 116990 92804 73.050

Other income expense 11.710 2.029 2088 3861 798

Earnings before provision for

income taxes 413.275 132783 111263 306086 823804

Provision for income taxes 152.800 43800 38.300 114.000 309.000

Net earnings 260475 88.983 72.963 192.086 514.804

CaSh dividend paid 77984 71227 71.005 68.520 62874

Earnirlgs retain8d in the business 182.491 17.756 1.958 123.566 451930

Capital expenditures 290246 441839 527908 485769 453.523

Financial Condition

4orking capital 457471 366.846 308091 289134 359.258

Long-term debt noncurrent portion 1628643 1821083 1916.001 1766917 790210

Stockholders equity 2203.712 2002431 1994480 1.976281 1846890

rotal assetS 4797661 4697666 4811055 4720.681 3413.555

Cosnon Siocic

Number of stockholders 23000 22000 20000 20.000 19000

Shares outstanding in thousandS 111587 110981 111350 110701 110440

Per Share

Net earnings-dilu.ted 2.33 0.80 0.65 1.73 4.65

Cash dividends paid 0.70 0.64 0.64 0.62 0.57

Stockholders equity 19.75 18.04 17.91 17.65 16.72

Year-end stock price 46.438 33.50 32.186 34.813 26.125

Financial Keturrtsi

Percent retu.rn on equity 13.0% 4.5% 3.7% 10.4% 37.1%

Percent return on net Bales 6.4% 2.4% 2.1% 5.6% 13.3%

ErnploymeAt
Number of employees 14250 14000 13600 13700 13.180

Wages salaries and cost of

employee benefits 781392 734068 717.693 672280 627.835

Al share and per share amounts have been adjusted for stock splits

Calculated on stockholders equity at the beginning of the year

OBJECT OMITTED

11

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations

The companys three basic businesses white paper brown paper and building

materials are affected by changes in general economic conthtions White and

brown paper sales and earnings tend to follow the general economy The sales and

earnings of the building materials business are closely related to new housing

starts remodeling activity and the availability and terms of financing for

construction Afi industry segments are influenced by global economic factors of

supply and demand In addition the costs of wood and recycled fiber basic raw

materials for the companys three segments are sensitive to various supply and

demand factors including environmental issues

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 1999 VS 1998
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Consolidated et sales increased 10.2% and operating earnings increased 109.4%

in 1999 compared to 1998 Improved performances from all three segments

contributed to the increase over the prior year Also contributing to the

improvement in earnings was change in estimate for the depreciable lives of

property plant and equipment The change was based on study performed by the

companys engineering department comparisons to typical industry practices and

the effect of the companys extensive capital investments which have resulted in

mix of assets with longer productive lives due to technological advances The

change in estimate increased 1999 operating earnings by $82.4 million and net

income by $51.9 million or $0.46 per diluted share

White paper struggled in the early part of 1999 as markets continued to be

depressed from the Asian turmoil of 1998 However by the third quarter markets

were rebounding and the upswing continued into the fourth quarter Uet sales

increased 7.1% and operating earnings were up 102.8% 40.3% before the effect of

the depreciation change when compared to the prior year The improvement was

due to increased unit shipments which offset average sales price declines Forms

shipments increased 11.2% as result of increasing market share Cut sheet

volumes improved 20.0% primarily due to continued focus on sales to office

superstores Additionally 1999 included full year of operation from the

Brownsville Tennessee cut sheet plant which came on line in February 1998
and new cut sheet plant in Washington Court Rouse Ohio which came on line in

November 1999 itardwood market pulp unit shipments increased 15.9% as the

company was able to take advantage of pulp markets in 1999

While unit shipments were strong in 1999 average sales prices remained below

1998 levels Continuous forms average sales prices declined 2.3% cut sheets

4.8% and fine paper 1.1% The only product line to exceed 1998 levels was

hardwood market pulp which increased 18.1% While prices were down

year-over-year third and fourth quarter trends were positive As result 1999

fourth quarter average sales prices were above 1998 yearly averages Raw

material costs slightly reduced operating margins during the period as chip

costs increased 1.5% over 1998 The gross profit margin for white paper

increased-to 15.5% in 1999 from 10.9% in 1998

12

Brown paper sales and earnings were soUd throughout 1999 as we once again

out-performed the industry in percentage of volume growth for the year et
sales increased 6.5% and earnings increased 35.2% 21.0% before the effects of

the depreciation change compared to 1998 Unit shipments for corrugated

containers improved 4.3% and grocery bags increased 5.1% over 1998 levels The

increased volume in corrugated containers resulted from additional converting

capacity from capital improvements and strong demand from our expanding customer

base Bag unit shipments increased for the first time since 1994 due to the

continued growth of the handle bag which is recapturing market share from

plastics Average sales prices increased for all product lines in 1999

corrugated containers were up 2.9% and grocery bags were up 1.4% over the prior

year

Raw material costs reduced brown paper earnings as old corrugated container

0CC prices increased 6.3% from 1998 levels The gross profit margin for brown

paper was 22.3% in 1999 compared to 19.1%- in 1998

Building materials posted strong year in 1999 as net sales improved 16.9%

and operating earnings increased 215.0% 187.5% before the effect of the

depreciation change compared to 1998 Average sales prices were up in every

product line in 1999 except for our international proiucts Oriented strand

board OSB showed the greatest -improvement as average sales prices increased

30.1% over 1998 Other product lines showed increases of 17.4% for plywood

16.3% for lumber 2.6% for particleboard and 4.1% for domestic medium density

fiberboard MDF The only decline in sales price realizations came from the

international MDF line which experienced decline of 17.2%
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Unit shipments increased in 1999 as demand remained strong Plywood improved

11.4% and OSB increased 7.4% The increased plywood volume partially resulted

from full yeaj of production at the Zwolle Louisiana plant which closed for

six months in 1998 due to fire damage Lumber shipments were strong as well

improving 8.6% over 1998 levels Volume increases were the result of strong

U.S housing market through late fall and full year of operation at new

small-log sawmill in Taylor Louisiana The companys composite panel markets

also saw growth in 1999 as particleboard increased 12.0% and ML3F increased

6.2% These improvements were the result of the acquisition of an MDF plant in

Morcenx France in March 1998 and part icleboard plant in Linxe France in June

1999 As result of the favorable price and volume changes the gross profit

margin for building materials increased significantly to 21.3% in 1999 from

10.8% in 1998

selling and administrative expenses increased $13.9 million or 5.5% in 1999

due to the continued expansion of company operations Selling and administrative

expenses as percentage of sales decreased to 6.5% in 1999 from 6.8% iti 1998

Other income expense of $11.7 million was primarily related to the reserve

set up to approximate potential non-tax deductible penalties from federal

Clean Air Act assessment

13

Interest expense decreased $6.7 million or 5.1% in 1999 to $125.3 million.- The

reduction occurred despite decrease in capitalized interest to $4.0 million

from $13.6 million iii 1998 Interest expense declined as result of reducing

total debt in 1999 by $231.8 million The companys effective interest rate

increased to 7.16% from 7.06% in the prior year

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 1998 VS 1997

Consolidated net -sales increased 5.7% and operating earnings improved 1.2% in

1998 compared to 1997 strong performance from the brown paper segment azid

increases in unit shipments for many product lines contributed to the results

White paper net sales improved 3.6% over the prior year am increase8 in unit

shipments more than offset decreases in average sales prices While sales were

up compared to 1997 operating earnings declined 20.0% in 1998 primarily as

result of pricing pressures on market pulp and fine paper Average sales prices

or cut sheet and continuous forms showed slight increases over the prior year

while hardwood market pulp arid fine paper declined 9.0% and 9.6% respectively

from 1997 The price decline resulted from difficulties in Asian economies Also

negatively affecting white paper -results were increased chip costs of 6.6% and

start-up costs for the new paper machine at Kentucky Mills in 1998

White paper unit shipments were mixed in 1998 as cut sheets increased 12.7%

while continuous forms decreased 55% The increased cut sheet volume was the

result of our new Brownsville Tennessee cut sheet plant which came on line in

February 1998 RardwoOd market pulp decreased 6.9% while fine paper unit

shipments increased 12.7% The fine paper improvement was the result of our new

Kentucky paper machine

Brown paper was the top performing segment in 1998 ae operating earnings

improved 141.5% when compared to 1997 Net sales increased 14.1% as average

sales prices improved 7.3% for corrugated container and 4.8% for grocery bags

over the prior year Unit shipment fluctuations also played significant role

in increasing sales and earnings in 1998 as corrugated container unit shipments

improved 7.9% over the prior year while grocery bag unit shipments declined

73% ApproximatelY 50.0% of the improvement in corrugated container shipments

was due to -increased internal converting capacity from capital projects The

remainder of the increase was result of full year of operation at box

plant in Plant City Florida and sheet plant in Portland Oregon both of

which came on line in the second quarter of 1997
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Raw material Costs had positive impact on operating earnings during 1998 as

0CC costs declined 16.5% from the prior year

Building materials operating earnings decressed 35.4% in 1998 and net sales

dropped slightly from the prior year as average sales prices declined for most

products Lumber reflected the most dramatic erosion as average sales prices

dropped 18.7% Other price declines included 4.9% in particleboard and 2.4% in

MDF The difficulties in Asian economies created supply and demand imbalances

keeping prices depressed

14

for these products in 1998 The pricing exception in 1998 was OSB which

realized price increase of 38.3% over the prior year

While prices declined for most product lines strong housing starts and low

interest rates helped fuel unit shipment increases for most product lines in

1998 Lumber was the primary benefactor as unit shipments improved 21.0% over

the prior year In addition the start-up of our new small-log sawmill in

Taylor Louisiana in AuguSt 1998 and other capital project completions helped

increase unit shipments Other unit shipment improvements included particleboard

of 3.8% and MDF of 15.7% over the prior year. MDP shipments increased due to

capital projects and the acquisition of facility in Morcenx France in arch

1998 Decreased plywood shipments of 7.7% were the result of the closure of the

Taylor Louisiana mill in July 1997 and downtime at our Zwolle Louisiana

mill due to fire that halted production in April 1998

Selling and administrative expenses increased 2.9% in 1998 due to assimilation

of acquisitions and expansions during the year Selling and administrative

expense as percentage of sales however declined to 6.8% for 1998 compared to

7.0% for 1997

Interest expense was $132.0 million in 1998 compared to $117.0 million in

1997 12.8% increase The weighted average interest rate remained stable at

7.1% in both years The increase in expense was primarily due to an increase of

$166.0 million in average outstanding debt and decrease in capitalized

interest to $13.6 million in 1998 from $19.9 million in 1997 resulting from the

completion of the Kentucky expansion in June 1998

LIQUIDITY AND ChPITAL RESOURCES

willamette generates funds internally via net earnings adjusted for non-caeb

charges against earnings such as depreciation amortization cost of fee timber

harvested and deferred income taxes Punds generated externally have usually

been through debt financing

In 1999 cash flows from operating activities were $602.9 million compared to

$435.4 million in 1998 an increase of 38.4% The improvement was primarily

achieved tbrougti increased earnings Internally generated cash flows funded all

of the companys capital expenditure program in 1999 Excess cash from

operations was used to pay dividends and reduce debt outstanding by $231.8

million during the year

tet working capital increased to $457.5 million at December 31 1999 from

$366.8 million at December 31 1998 The increase was mainly due to increases in

receivables and inventories

The company is continually making capital expenditures at its manufacturing

facilities tO improve fiber utilization achieve labor efficiency and to expand

production In l99 the company incurred $267.9 million in capital expenditures

for property plant and equipment

15

During 1999 the following major capital projects were completed
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Upgrade of the $41 paper machine at Johnsonburg Pennsylvania

Construction of mew cut sheet plant in Washington Court House

Ohi
Expansion of secondary fiber capacity at the paper mill

in Campti Louisiana

Major capital projects unaerway at December 31 1999 include

Construction and installation of new recovery boiler and steam

turbine generator at the Albany Oregon paper mill

Construction of new corrugated box plant in Phoenix Arizona

Relocation of the Elk Grove Illinois corrugated facility

Installation of steam turbine generator at Kentucky Mills

Upgrade of the 15 paper machine at Johnsonburg Pennsylvania

Construction of new part icleboard plant near Benriettsville South

Carolina

Construction of new small-log sawmill near Chester South

Carolina

Capacity increase at our particleboard plant in Liaxe France

The cost of all major projects in progress at December 31 1999 is estimated

to be approximately $422.9 million of which $179.4 million has already been

spent These projects will be funded with internally generated cash flows and

external borrowings if needed

In December 1998 the company sold 117000 acres of southwest Washington

timberland for $234.0 million The company acquired the land in 1996 as part of

the purchase of Cavenham Forest Industries The forestlands were sold as they

were not critical to the long-term fiber supply needs of the companys

operations Proceeds of the sale were used to pay down debt during 1998

In June 1998 the company initiated medium-term note program and issued

$1002 million of notes as of December 31 1998 The medium-term notes carry

interest rates ranging from 6.45% to 6.60% and maturities from 11 to 15 years

In addition in January 1998 the company issued $200.0 million in debentures

$100.0 million at 6.45% due 2005 and $100.0 million at 7.00% due 2018 Proceeds

from both issuances were used to replace notes maturing in 1998 and reduce other

bank borrowing

The total debt-to-capital ratio declined to 42.8% at December 31 1999 from

48.3% at December 31 1998 representing debt reduction of $231.8 million The

company believes it has the resources available to meet its long-term liquidity

requirements Resources include internally generated funds and borrowing

agreements

In 1998 the companys board of directors authorized the repurchase of $25.0

million of the companys common stock The company repurchased 470.900 shares

for $13.0 million during the third and fourth quarters of 1998

16

on April 20 1999 the companys board of directors voted to raise the

quarterly cash dividend from $0.16 to $0.18 per share which was 12.5

increase however there is no assurance as to future dividends as they depend

on earnings capital requirements and financial condition

OTHER MATTERS

The company believes it is in substantial compliance with federal state and

local laws regarding environmental quality

In early i998 the U.S Environmental Protection Agency EPA released the

final rules regarding air and water quality known as the cluster rules

Compliance with the cluster rules is required by 2001 however certain

exceptions to the rules extend the time period for specific compliance

CopyrIght 200 EDGAR OnlineJn ver 1.01/2.003
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requirements up to eight years from adoption The company through previously

completed and future projects has made significant progress toward upgrading

the mills and p.lans to have all mills in compliance with the cluster rules by

the required deadlines

The companys other operations are faced with increasingly stringent

environmental regulations In the fourth quarter of 1997 the company received

series of requests for information from the EPA under Section 114 of the Clean

Air Act the Act with respect to the companys building materials operations-

The requests have focused on compliance with regulations under the Prevention of

Significant Deterioration PSD Program under the Act On May 1998 the EPA

issued Notice of Violation NOV alleging violations of the Act and related

state regulations and on December 11 1999 issued second NOV supplementing

and clarifying the first NOV The company has responded to the allegations and

has had many meetings and extensive correspondence with -the EPA and the U.S

Department of Justice to negotiate resolution of the issues raised by the

NOVS Settlements by other companies in the wood products industry that have

received NOVS under the Act have involved the payment of substantial penalties

and agreements to install emission control equipment and undertake supplemental

environmental projects The company has established $10.0 million reserve as

an estimate of the potential non-tax deductible penalties resulting from these

proceedings

In November 1998 the company received from the EPA request for information

under Section 114 of the Act requesting information with respect to the

companys Johnsonburg Pennsylvania pulp and paper mill This request also

focused on compliance with PSD regulations Subsequently on April 19 1999 the

company received an NOV relating to its Johnsonburg nill The NOV asserts

violations of the Act relating to two alleged major modifications to the plant

allegedly without proper PSD permits and without complying with applicable PSD

requirements The company is reviewing the allegations contained in this NOV and

has been meeting with federal and state officials to discuss the issues raised

by the NOV In August 1999 the company received another Section 114 informatiOn

request from the EPA relating to the companys paper mill in Casipti Louisiana

Also in March and November 1999 the company received Section 114 information

requests from the EPA relating to the companys paper mill in Haweaville

Kentucky

17

Based upon either enacted or proposed regulations the company estimates that

over the next five years additional capital expenditures to comply with

environmental regulations will not exceed $100.0 million Although future

environmental capital expenditures cannot be predicted with any certainty

because of continuing changes in laws the company believes that compliance with

such environmental regulations will not have material adverse effect upon the

companys financial position

In 1996 the-company began addressing the possible effects of the Y2K issue on

its information financial and manufacturing systems These efforts included

inventory assessment modification and testing of these key systems

Modification testing and implementation of all critical systems was completed

early in the fourth quarter of 1999 With the passing of January 2000 the

company has experienced no significant Y2K problems As of December 31 1999

the company had spent $8.3 million on Y2K compliance These Costs were expensed

as incurred wo further significant expenditures are expected-

Over the years inflation has resulted in replacement costs higher than those

originally needed to purchase existing plant and equipment Advances in

technology and.- environmental concerns also contribute to higher costs

Productivity- gains because of technological improvements may partially offset

these iücreBed costs Our use of LIFO to value inventories allows us to include

these inflationary costs in the cost of sales

FORWARD-LOOING STATEMTS
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Statements contained in this report that are not historical in nature

including without limitation the discussion of forecasted sales and production

volumes the inact of environmental regulations the impact of Y2K compliance

and the adequacy of the companys liquidity resources are forward-looking

statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation aeform Act of

1995 Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that may

cause actual future results to differ materially Such risks and uncertainties

with respect to the company include the effect of general economLc conditions

the level of new housing starts and remodeling activity the availability and

terms of financing for construction competitive factors including pricing

pressures the cost and availability of wood fiber the effect of natural

disasters on the companys timberlands construction delays risk of

non-performance by third parties and the impact of environmental regulations

and the construction and other costs associated with complying with such

regulations In view of these uncertainties investors are cautioned not to

place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements The company disclaims

any obligation to publicly announce the results of any revisions to any

forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect future events or

developments

18

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

No disclosure is required under this item

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary data filed as part of this report

follow the signature pages of this report

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Aconunting and

Financial Disclosure

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information regarding directors of the company is set forth in the

companys definitive proxy statement the Proxy Statement for its 2000 annual

meeting of shareholders under the heading Election of Directors and ii
Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is set forth under

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Proxy

Statement which information is incorporated herein by reference Information

regarding the executive officers of the company is set forth under the heading

Executive Officers of the Registrant in Part of this report

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Information regarding compensation of directors and executive officers of the

company is set forth in the Proxy Statement under the headings Executive

Compensation Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Compensation of Directors and Employment Agreements Such information in

incorporated herein by reference

Item 12 Seurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Information regarding security ownership of management and certain other

beneficial owners is in the Proxy Statement under the heading Holders of Common
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Stock which information is incorporated herein by reference

item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions is set

forth in the Proxy Statement under the heading Compensation Committee

Interlocks and Insider Participation which information is incorporated herein

by reference
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PART IV

Item 14 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on

Form 8-IC

and For lime of the financial statements filed herewith see the

index to consolidated financial statements following the

signature pages of this report

For list of the exhibits filed herewith see the index to

exhibits following the financial statements filed with this

report Each management contract or compensatory plan or

arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report

is identified in the list

Reports on Forts 8-K

No reports on Form 8-1 were tiled during the last quarter of

the period covered by this report

21

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its

behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

WILLAI4ETTE INDUSTRIES INC

Registrant

By 1sf GREG HAWLEY

Dated February 10 2000 Greg Hawley
Executive Vice President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities change Act of 1934 this

report has been signed below on February 10 2000 by the following persons on

behalf of the registrant in the capacities indicated

Signature Title

Principal Executive Officer

IS DUANE MOUCALL president end Chief Executive Officer

Duane McDougall

Principal Financial Officer
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/5/ GREG HAWL1 Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer Secretary and

Greg ijawley Treasurer

Principal Accounting Officer

/S/ DONALD 1ADDELL Corporate Controller

Donald Waddeil

/S/ WILLIAM SWINDELLS Chairman of the Board

William Swindells

/5/ WINSLOW BUXTON Director

Winslow Buxton

/5/ GERARD DRJI4MOND Director

Gerard Drummond

1Sf KENNETH HERGENHAN Director

Kenneth Hergenhari
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/5/ PAUL MCcRACKEN Director

Paul McCracken

/5/ JOSEPH PRENDERGAST Director

Joseph Prendergast

/S/ STUART SHELK JR Director

Stuart Sheik Jr

.15/ ROBERT 14 SMELICK Director

Robert 14 Smelick

/5/ MICHAEL THORNS Director

Michael Thorns

/5/ BENThMI WHITELEY Director

Benjamin Whiteley
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Independent Auditors Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Willamette Industries Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Willamette

Industries Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 1999 and 1998 and the

related consolidated statements of earnings stockholders equity and cash flows

for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 1999 These

consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing

standards Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation

We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for out- opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above

present fairly in all material respects the financial position of Willaimette

Industries Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 1999 and 1998 and the

results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the

three-year period ended December 31 1999 in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles

KPMG LLP

Portland Oregon

February 10 2000
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December 31 1999 and 1998

dollar amounts except per share amounts in thousands

Assets

Current assets

1999 1998

25557

382 763

445.110

36160

889 590

057 529

2751210
99532

4797861

31359

306.332

411 316

45 316

794 323

1112180
2707.146

84.019

4697.668

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current liabilities

Current installments on long-term debt note
Notes payable note

Accounts payable includes book overdrafts of $53653

1998 $55030
Accrued payroll and related expenses

Accrued interest

Other accrued expenses

Accrued income taxes note

Total current liabilities

Deferred income taxes note

Other liabilities

Long-tern debt net of current installments note

Stockholders equity note

Preferred stock cumulative of $.S0 par value

Authorized 5000000 shares

Coasson stock of $.50 par value

Authorized 150000000 shares iaued
111587433 shares 1998 110980768 shares

Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Total stockholders equity

3.256

13 617

212222
77043

38525
65256

22200

432 119

491374

41813

1628843

55.794

303626

1$44 292

2203712

4797861

2267
47252

196134

70670
39533

55 540

16081

427 477

404518
42159

1821083

55490

285.140

1661801

2002.431

4697668

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
c..a.cfl.fl

Years ended Decemer 31 1999 1998 and 1997

dollar and ire amounts except per share amount in thousands

Cash

Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful

accounts of $3222 1998 $4300
Inventories note

Prepaid expenses and timber deposits

Total current assets

linther timberlands and related facilities net note

Property plant and equipment net note

Other assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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1999 1998 1997
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Weighted average shares outstanding basic

Weighted average shares outstanding diluted

Pershare earnings both basic and diluted

number of shares outstanding

are based on the weighted average

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding are calculated using the treasury

stock method and assume all stock options with market value greater than

the grant price at December 31 1999 aró exercised See note

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCICBOLDERS EQUITY

Years ended December 31 1999 1998 and 1997

dollar amounts except per share amounts in thousands

Common Stock

1999 1998 1997

27677

27 787

211

55794 55.490 55675

Capital Surplus
Balance at beginning of year

2-for-i stock split

Shares -isued for options exercised

Stock repurchased and canceled

Balance at end of year

285.140 294760

18486 3124-

12744

303626 285140

306 517

27767
16 030

294760

Net sales 4077969 3700282 3501376

Cost of sales 3261302 3185028 3029092

Gross profit 816667 515254 471484

Selling and administrative expense 266398 252510 245319

operating earnings 550269 262744 226165

Other income expense 11710 2029 2008

538.559 264773 228253

Interest expense
125284 131.990 116990

Earnin9s before provision for income taxes 413275 132783 111263

Provision for income taxes note 152800 43800 38300

Net earnings 260475 88983 72963

Earnings per share basic 2.34 0.80 0.66

Earnings per share diluted 2.33 0.80 0.65

111.375 111.302 110975

112001 111747 111550

Balance at beginning of year

2-for-i stock split

Shares issued for options exercised

Stock repurchased and canceled

Balance at end of year

55490

304

55 675

50

235

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online Inc ver 101/2.003
Page 22



WLLAME7TE INDUSTRIES INC I0K Annual Report Dare Filed 3/22/2000

Retained Earnings
Balance at beginning of year

Net earnings

Less cash dividends on common stock

$70 $.64 and $.64 per share in

1999 1998 and 1997 respectively

Balance at end of year

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31 1999 1998 and 1997

dollar amounts in thousands

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings

to net sh from operating activities

Depreciation
Cost of fee timber harvested

Other amortization

Increase in deferred income taxes

Changes in working capital items
Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and timber deposits
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued income taxes

Net cash from operating activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net change in operating lines of credit

Debt borrowing

Proceeds from sale of coamn stock

Repurchased comtn stock

Cash dividends paid

Payment on debt

Net cash from financing activities

Net change in cAsh
Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

240374
46 197

17 148

86 938

69760
31015

23.224

23159
6126

602866 439442 389378

5965
267855

8026
14364
33329

317610

237422
417772

8767
15300
9582

213 999

162711
506 348

7787
13 778

9624

395 573

31359 27600

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

1661801 1644045 1642087
260475 88983 72963

77984 71227 71005

1844292 1661801 1644045

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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1999 1998 1997

260475 88.983 12963

296466

54376
20299

7683

167

14623
7778

26381
12250

268 030

52649
18.270

28650

34.293
28646

1463
23 568

13.276

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds from sale of assets

Expenditures for property plant equipment

Expenditures for timber and timberlands

Expenditures for roads and reforestation

Other

Net cash from investing activities

33635 27630 23985
27770 591 175415

18725 3117 16109
12979

77984 71227 71009
229934 109556 172.931

291058 217684 28.427

5.802 3759 5379
31359 27.600 22222

25557
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Cash paid during the year for
Interest net of amount capitalized

Income taxes

126292 130796 116987

5291.6 24369 22926

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Been Paper
Packaging

Other

Total Bin Paper

Building Material
ttnder

Structural panels

Otagouite penal
Other wood product

Total Building Material

Total net tale 11

Intereegeent sale at rerket value

Building eatariaiu

Greet Profit ISP

White Paper

Orooei Paper

Building I4eteri.la

total geese profit

Operating earnings
White Paper

Penn Paper

Building Natarirle

0007arate

Total operating tenting

Other incone teepena
Interest enee

taningo tfnre prevision
for incoee teeae

000reeletion coat of tee tither

hane.tod aenrtizetion 62
woite Paper
Cr001 Paper

tuilding Material

Cnrpor.te

Otpitai topenditurea

Whito Paper
Brawn Paper

Building Ilaterialu

Corporate

identifiable alerts
White Paper

arGon Paper

Building Olntarialo

Corporate

29

OUPPI.O2uarreuy OllIotti Ses4trr iiJPatilkTION

dollar aenunte 1w thouueda

1999 1991 1997 1995 1991

Sale to noteide leatonero

White loper

coewnalratien paper and cut sheets oiuoia 20 153.506 20 603435 1$ 712.OBI 21 939472 22
Market pulp and fine paper 227.07 340657 340910 09 216.351 403741 ii

Tutu White Paper 1142311 24 1065233 29 1.029.619 29 11302io 30 1.323213 32

1.239.940 30 1191366 31 0107759 29 1.017.092 92 1.274.991 33

230.112 327644 241270 324714 291444

1.461.440 26 1.373610 31 1.209039 11 t.300.6 38 S7i3i9

295231 2339 229.022 179333 010042
465.707 11 361950 10 364246 14 3M0917 11 431.294 11

193.296 10 367072 16 344.434 16 260041 26d309
227.722 291.722 331.090 14 560320 233111

1447.216 36 1.354.743 34 1.342.693 36 2.091.242 22 2064093 31

4077.P99 100 3.700242 160 3301.276 100 3425.113 100 3.073171 196

40.279 60113 47300 43.692 61.903

GM GM or GPO 0P4

171456 26 110.234 11 120947 13 303343 34 434713 34
326990 23 363937 09 162.121 13 213.376 31 404341 26

313191 22 135113 10 276.375 ii 150146 14 344.706 33

116607 20 515.204 14 471.401 17 626.000 10 1.091.040 20

110959 94.654 73343 149511 300200
32131 106600 41027 107047 334070
753910 50461 121637 173113 196154
147.0795 113.1911 140.0101 144.901 32799

050269 363.744 226169 395.029 094.016

1111140 2.031 2466 3041 710
121204 131990 315.999 92004 71.059

413.370 132.703 111.343 345060 033.004

124115 039240 116449 106.200 96501
63333 90.404 10473 00.146 01242

146.494 135160 120154 193314 67341
4115 0.309 1343 4767 3737

303.119 371.041 330949 302337 249161

63249 215.343 371994 371726 150062
141154 130.931 42.910 03167 164.061

44420 101.004 12.074 126433 151305
1044 344 3613

210.316 441.039 527.990 460769 493523

1.034.043 1.065.473 1.700003 1405143 1260301
1.149133 1331.100 907.607 900.424 1027664
1734940 1.135.217 1.966136 2.001.542 344.315

03750 00.051 13.323 206673 70.914

4.797.061 4097.660 4011455 4729013 7.413.115
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The company is not dependent on any one significant customer or group of

customers Approximately 91% of the companys total output is sold

domestically

See note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of

change in accounting estimates for depreciation

30

SELtCTED QUARTERtY FINANCIAl DATA

Uoaudited dollar amounts except per share amounts in thousands

Ne Earnings

Net Gross Per Share

1999 Sale Profit Amount Diluted

1st Quarter 923453 145158 31594 .28

2nd Quarter 1007369 190961 63314 .57

3rd Quarter 1087899 242.919 81958 .73

4th Quarter 1059248 229629 83609 .75

Total 4077969 816667 260475 2.33

Net Earnings

Net Gross Per Share

199$ Sales Profit Amount Diluted

1st Quarter 900075 124252 22081 .20

2nd Quarter 946390 128947 24014 .21

3rd Quarter 956794 151308 35735 .32

4th Quarter 897023 110747 71.53 .07

Total 3.700282 515254 88983 .80

Net Earnings

Net Gross Per Share

1997 Sales Profit Amount Diluted

1st Quarter 855192 109296 13.317 .12

2nd Quarter 879348 118.815 17750 .16

3rd Quarter 888795 122668 20697 .18

4th Quarter 878041 120705 21199 .19

rotal 3501376 471484 72963 .65
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-NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 1999 1998 and 1997 dollar amounts except per share amounts in

thousands

Note Nature of Operations

Willametfe Industries Inc is diversified integrated forest products
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company with 103 manufacturing facilities in 24 states France Ireland and

Mexico The companys principal lines of business are white paper brown paper
arid building me.terials The company produces hardwood market pulp fine paper
specialty printing papers business forms cut sheets kraft linerboard

corrugating medium bag paper corrugated containers paper bags inks lumber

plywood particleboard MDF 055 laminated beams LVL I-joists and other

value-added wood products Based on 1999 sales the companys business is

comprised of 28% white paper 36% brown paper and 36% building materials The

company sells approximately 91% of its products in the United States its

primary foreign markets are Asia and Europe

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all

majority-owned subsidiaries All material intercompany balances and

transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined on

the last-in first-out LIFO method for all major classes of inventory All

other inventories are valued at average cost

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment is carried at cost and includes expenditures

for new facilities and those that substantially increase the useful lives of

existing plant and equipment Maintenance repairs and minor renewals are

expensed as incurred When properties are disposed of the related cost and

accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any

profit or loss on disposition is credited or charged to income Depreciation

is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the

respective assets Leasehold improvements are amortized over the terms of the

respective leases

Timber Timberlands and Related Facilities

These accounts are stated at cost less the coat of fee timber harvested and

the amortization of logging roads Both are etertn.ined with reference to costs

and the related existing volume of timber estimated to be recoverable

32

The company obtains portion of its timber requirements from various

private sources under timber harvesting contracts The company does not incur

direct liability for or ownership of this timber until it has been harvested

Income Taxes

The company utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes
This method requires that deferred tax liabilities and assets be established

based on the difference between the financial statement and income tax bases

of assets and liabilities using existing tax rates

Capitalized Interest

Interest is capitalized on funds borrowed during the construction period on

certain assets Capitalized interest in 1999 1998 and 1997 was $3998
$13589 and $19939 respectively and is netted against interest expense in

the consolidated statements of earnings Such capitalized interest will be

amortized over the depreciable lives of the related assets

Busineso Segments
The company various product lines have been aggregated into three segments
white paper brown paper and building materials based on the similar

nature of the products the economic conditions affecting those products and

the management and reporting of those products within the company Information

with respect to the segments is included in the Supplementary Business Segment

Information on page 30
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Use of Estimates

Generally accepted accounting principles require management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets
liabilities and contingencies at tiie date of the financial statements and the

amounts of revenues and expenses during the period Actual results could

differ from those estimates

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications haVe been made

with the 1999 presentation

Mote Inventories

33

to prior years data to conform

The major components of inventories are as follows

December 31

1999 1998

445110 411316

Valued at
LIFO cost

Average coal

If current cost rather than LIFO cost bad been teed by the company

inventories would have been approximately $57049 and $49548 higher in 1999 and

1998 respectively

Note Property Plant and 2quipment

Property plant and equipment accounts are summarized as follows

Land

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

Construction in progress

Accumulated deprŁiat ion

Range of

useful lives

December 31

1999 1998

40446

366125

4354789
90606

7209
l0l522

4960697
2253551

2751210 2701146

Finished Product 139385 131383

Work in progress 7722 6909
Raw material 198866 184734

Supplies 99137 88290

288161

156 949

276549
134767

15 35

25

15

life of lease

41985
380 967

569 273

92411
6619

145479

5236734
2485 524
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Effective January 1999 the company changed its accounting estimates

relating to depreciation The estimated service lives for most machinery and

equipment were extended five years The change was based upon study performed

by the companys engineering department comparisons to typical industry

practices and the effect of the companys extensive capital investments which

have resulted in nix of assets with longer productive lives due to

technological advances As result of the change 1999 net income was increased

$51900 or $0.46 per diluted share

34

Note Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following

December 31

1999 1998

Notes payable to public

9.625% due in 2000 150000 150000

7.75% due in 2002 100000 100000

9125% due in 2003 50000 50000

6.45% due in 2005 100000 100000

7.00% due in 2018 100000 100000

9.00% due in 2021 150000 150000

7.35% due in 2026 200000 200000

7.85% due in 2026 200000 200000

Medium-term notes with interest rates

ranging from 6.45% to 7.20% due in

varying amounts through 2013 205700 205700

Bank loans with interest rates averaging

6.20% and 5.52% due in varying amounts

through 2006 250625 445000

Revenue bonds with interest rates

averaging 5.04% and 4.59% due in

varying amounts through 2026 113440 113800

Other long-term debt with interest

rates averaging 8.62% and 7.43%

due in varying amounts through 2006 12334 8850

1632099 1823350
Less Current installments 3256 2267

1628843 1821083

Principal payment requirements on the above debt for the four years subsequent

to 2000 are 2001 $230088 2002 $117503 2003 $69852 2004 $10458

The company has revolving loan with group of banks that provides for

borrowings up to $450000 in principal amount and provides backup for master

note program At December 31 1999 the outstanding balance covered under the

revolving loan was $225000 At December 31 1999 $150000 of noteS payable due

in 2000 were classified as long-term debt as the company plans to refinance the

motes in 2000
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The company utilized short-tern borrowings with number of banks at various

times during 1999 and 1998 of which $13617 was outstanding at December 31

1999 The weightd average interest rate on short-term borrowings at December

31 1999 and 1998 was 5.65% and 5.46%

35

respectively Interest is based upon prevailing short-term rates in effect at

the time of the transaction

The fair value of the companys long-term debt is estimated to be

approximately $1606000 based on the quoted market prices for the same or

similax issues or on the current rates offered to the company for debt with the

same remaining maturities

Note Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes includes the following

1999 1998 1997

Payable teceivable from

taxable earnings

Payable receivable due to AMT

Currently payable

Deferred taxes due to temporary

differences for
Accelerated depreciation

Other

Total deferred

Total provision

Federal income taxes

Other income taxes

The companys deferred income tax liability is mainly due to depreciation

Differences between the effective tax rate and the federal statutory rate are

shown in the following table as percentage of pretax income

1999 1998 1997

Federal statutory rate

State income taxes net of

federal tax effect

Benefit from foreign taxes

Estimated non-deductible

EPA penalty
Other

1.0%

1.0% 0.7% 1.6%

37.0% 33.0% 34.4%

The cowpaii7s consolidated federal income tax retu.rns through 1995 have been

examined by the Internal Revenue Service and while final settlement has not been

made management believes that the company has provided for any deficiencies

that ultimately might be assessed

85563 26018 4350
19700 10100 14000

65863 36118 9650

81667 26974 23395

5270 19292 5255

86937 7.682 28650

152800 43800 38300

135.343 36664 31600

17457 7136 6700

152800 43800 38300

35.0%

2.5%

0.5%

35.0% 35.0%

2.3%

3.6%
2.3%

1.3%
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The Tax Reform Act of 1966 expanded the corporate alternative minimum tax

A1r Under thi-s Act the companys tax liability is the greater of

36

its regular tax or the AMT To the extent the companys AI1T liability exceeds
its regular tax liability the A4T liability may be applied against future

regular tax liabilities At December 31 1999 the company had $4400 in AMT
credits

note Pension and Retirement Plans

Contributory Plans
The company covers all salaried employees and some hourly employees under

401k plans The amounts contributed by the company vary for the plans Total

plan expenses were $11 515 $11221 and $10903 in 1999 1998 and 1997
respectively

Befined Benefit Plans

The company contributes to multi-employer retirement plans at fixed payments

per hour for certain hourly employees Substantially all other employees of the

company are covered by non-contributory defined benefit plans Retirement
benefits are based on years of service and compensation prior to retirement

Total pension expense in 1999 1998 and 1997 for all such plans was $8669
$8863 and $10770 respectively

As advised by its actuaries the company makes contributions to provide for

benefits attributed to past service and for those benefits expected to be
earned in the future

Postretirement Benefit Plans

The company has contributory postretireiuexit health plan primarily covering
its salaried employees Employees become eligible for these benefits if they
meet minimum age and service requirements

The following table sets forth reconciliations of the benefit obligation plan

assets funded status and disclosure of assumptions utilized in the December 31

calculations

Poatretirement

Defined Benefit Plans Benefit Plans

1999 1998 1999 1998

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation Beginning

of year 386108 342065 37348 34217
Service cost 17431 15401 1203 1.182
Interest coat 27748 24585 2426 2428
Amendments 17.186 1671
Other 821 274 783 680

Actuarial gain loss 24965 15448 2.078 3072
Benefits paid 16051 13336 4275 4.291

Benefit obligation End of year 406630 386.108 35407 37348

37

Poatretiiet
Defined B.netit PJ.ne Benef it Plans
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Change is insets

1999 1950 2999 1998

Fair value of assets Beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets

Easplayer contribution

Other

senetits paid

529458

77 218

4819
194

16057

460.911

71610
2740 3381

531 054

U336 4275

Fair value of assets End of year

Reconciliation of Prndd Status

Funded statuS

rinracognised actuarial gain lose

Jarecognized prior service cost

Unrecognized asset

Prepaid accrued benefit cost

Asauzeptions of Deceether 21

593242 528456

35407 37.348
4.127 8.515

251 202

962 1705 29029 28.553

Discount EOtC 7.50% 1.081 7.50% 7.00%

Expected return on plan assets 9.009 9.80%

Rate Of increase in coe.pensstion

leve3.a 5.005 5.00%

Medical cost treed rate B00I 8.50%

For the year 1999 an 8.0% increase in the medical cost trend rate was

assumed In the tuture the rate decreases incrementally to an ultimate annual

rate of 5.0% 1.0% increase in the medical trend rate would increase the

postretirement benefit obligation PBO by $3958 and increase the service and

interest costs by $385 1.0% decrease in the medical trend rate would decrease

the PBO by $3141 and decrease the service and interest cost by $306 Various

pension plans have benefit obligations in excess of plan assets The following

table Bets forth the unfunded status of those plans

Defined Benefit Plans

1999 19S8

Benefit obligation

Plan assets fair value

38

2238l

21.718

9.491

8676

The components of net periodic benefit Cost are followsI

Defined

Benefit P1n$

1999 1998

Postretiresient

Benefit Plans

1999 1998

Service coat

Interest Cost

Expected return plan assets

Iunortizatiet0 of prior ezvice Cost

Asiortization of net cransiUco

otligatiun

Recognized actUxda1 gain lees

Net periodic benefit coat

3.7.431

27740
40 754

194

566 604
3901 U.423

3152 3460
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680

4.291

106.612

211453
26 201

398

142.340

154290
12.209

984

09 401

2491
US 11

1141

1.203

2.426

31

1.182

2.420

31

3.99 185

3859 3824
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Note Stockhoiders Equity

The companys 1995 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan the Plan provides

for grants of stock options awards of stock appreciation rights and restricted

shares of common stock to directors and key employees Options are granted at

exercise prices not less than the market value of the common stock on the date

of grant Options generally become exercisable after one year in 33 1/3%

increments per year and expire ten years from the date of grant The company has

reserved 5500.000 shares for distribution under the Plan The company has

elected to account for stock-based compensation under Accounti.ng Principles

Board Opinion 25

summary of stock option activity is as follows

2848.694

776 940

650092
126 972

2848 570

626.370

102286

28567

3344 087

555 680

608484

10 597

3280686

2217585

11.625 30.575

30 563

11.625 30.875

22.68$ 30.875

11.625 30.87$

38 6875

13.125 30.87$

25.75 38.67$

11.625 38.6875

47 25

11.625 38.6875

29.719 47.25

11.8125 47.25

11.8125 38.6875

Restricted shares have been awarded to certain officers at no cost based upon

continued employment the attainment of performance goals or both These shares

will vest in one-third annual increments beginning after three years of

continuous employment At December 31 1999 3074 restricted shares had not yet

vested

The company has shareholder rights plan providing for the distribution of

rights to shareholders ten days after person or group becomes the owner of 20%

or more of the companys common stock or makes tender or exchange offer which

would result in the ownership of 30% or more of the common stock Once the

rights are distributed each right becomes exercisable to purchase for $280

1/100th of share of new series of company preferred stock which 1/100th

share is intended to eqial four common shares in market value Each right is

exercisable to purchase for $280 common shares with market value of $560

The rights will expire in February 2000

The board of directors baa approved new shareholder rights plan that will

extend the 5enefits of the existing plan The new plan lowers the percentage of

the companys common stock that person can own and the threshold for tender

or exchange offer that would trigger the plan to 15% The new stock purchase

rights will have an exercise price of $200

Option

Shares

Price

Per Share

Out8tanding December 31 1996

Granted
Exercised

canceled or surrendered

Outstanding December 31 1997

Granted

Exercised

Canceled or surrendered

Outstanding December 31 1998

Granted

Exercised

Canceled or surrendered

Outstanding December 31 1999

Shares exercisable

39
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In September 1998 the board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to

$25000 of the companys common stock The company repurchased 470900 shares of

common stock for$13000 in the third and fourth quarters of 1998

Note Dispositions

In December 1999 the company sold 117000 acres of timberland in southwestern

Washington for $234000 The timberland was acquired in 1996 as part of the

Cavenham acquisition The timberland was sold as it was not critical to the

long-term supply needs of the companys Northwest operations Proceeds of the

sale were used to pay down existing debt

Note 10 ContingencieS

The company has established $10000 reserve as an estimate of mon-tax

deductible penalties resulting from federal Clean Air Act assessment of the

building materials operations

There are various other lawsuits claims and environmental matters pending

against the company While any proceeding or litigation has an element of

uncertainty management believes that the outcome of any lawsuit or claim that

is pending or threatened or all of them combined will not have material

adverse effect on the companys financial condition or operations
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT

3A Third Restated Articles of Incorporation of the registrant as

amended Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the registrants

Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed February 24 2000 the Form

8A 141

3B Bylaws of the registrant as amended through December 1998

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3B to the registrants annual

report on Form 10-IC for the year ended December 31 1998 the 1998

Form lO-K 231

4A Indenture dated as of March 15 1983 between the registrant and The

Chase Manhattan Bank Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4A of the

registration statement on Form S-3 effective December 13 1985 File

No 33-1876 891

4B Indenture dated as of .Ianuary 30 1993 between the registrant and The

Chase Manhattan Bank Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4A of the

registration statement on Form S-3 effective March 1993 File No

33-58044 82

4C Credit Agreement dated as of May 10 1996 among the registrant Bank

of America National Trust and Savings Association ASH Amro Bank N.y
Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York Nationsbank N.A Wachovia

Bank of Georgia N.A and other financial institutions parties

thereto Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the registrants

current report on Form 8-K/A amendment No dated May 15 1996

41 L.etter Amendment dated August 13 1999 to Credit Agreement filed as

Exhibit 4C El

4H Rights Agreement dated as of February 25 2000 between the registrant

and ChaaeMellon Shareholder Services LLC Incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 4.1 of the Form 0-A tSll
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1OA Willamette Industries Inc 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan for

Directors 16

108 Willamette Industries Inc 1985 Stock Option and Stock Appreciation

Rights Plan as amended Incorporated by reference to Exhibit lOB of

the registrants annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 1996 1996 Form 10-K

bC Form of Wilbamette Industries Inc Severance Agreement with Key

Management Group as revised effective April 20 1999

41

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit bA of the registrants quarterly

report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended June 30 1999

100 Willamette Industries Inc 1993 Deferred Compensation Plan

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 108 to the registrants annual

report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1993 No
112545 161

IOE Willamette Industries Inc 1995 Iong-Terta Incentive Compensation

Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1OF of the registrants

annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1994

1OF Consulting agreement dated December 1998 between the registrant

and William Swindells Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 100 to the

1998 Forte b0_K

11 Computatiorr of per share earnings is obtainable from the financial

statements filed with this annual report on Forte 10-K

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21 Omitted because the registrants subsidiaries considered in the

aggregate as single subsidiary do not constitute significant

subsidiary

23 Consent of Independent Auditors to the incorporation by reference of

their report dated February 10 2000 in the registrants registration

statements on Form S-3 and Form S-8 11

27 Financial Data Schedule

99 Description of capital stock incorporated by reference to Exhibit

99.1 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K tiled on February

25 2000

The registrant will furnish copy of any exhibit to this annual report on

Form 10-K to any security holder for tee of $0.30 per page to cover the

registrants expenses in furnishing the copy The number of pages of each

exhibit is indicated in brackets at the end of each exhibit description

Managemeflt contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Note Certain instruments with respect to the long-term debt of the registrant

are not filed herewith where the total amount of securities authorized

thereunder does hot exceed ten percent the total assets of the registrant and

its eubsidiries on consolidated basis The registrant agrees to furnish

copies of such instruments to the Commission on request
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DI VISION OF CORPORATION FINANCE
INFORMAL PROCEDURES REGARDING SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

The Division of Corporation Finance believes that its responsibility with respect to

matters arising under Rule 14a-8 CFR 240.14a-8 as with other matters under the proxy

rules is to aid those who must comply with the rule by offering informal advice and suggestions

and to determine initially whether or not it may be appropriate in particular matter to

recommend enforcement action to the Commission In connection with shareholder proposal

under Rule 14a-8 the Divisions staff considers the information furnished to it by the Company
in support of its intention to exclude the proposals from the Companys proxy materials as well

as any information furnished by the proponent or the proponents representative

Although Rule 14a-Sk does not require any communications from shareholders to the

Commissions staff the staff will always consider information concerning alleged violations of

the statutes administered by the Commission including argument as to whether or not activities

proposed to be taken would be violative of the statute or rule involved The receipt by the staff

of such information however should not be construed as changing the staffs informal

procedures and proxy review into formal or adversary procedure

It is important to note that the staffs and Commissions no-action responses to

Rule 4a-j submissions reflect only informal views The determinations reached in these no-

action letters do not and cannot adjudicate the merits of companys position with respect to the

proposal Only court such as U.S District Court can decide whether company is obligated

to include shareholder proposals in its proxy materials Accordingly discretionary

determination not to recommend or take Commission enforcement action does not preclude

proponent or any shareholder of company from pursuing any rights he or she may have

against the company in court should the management omit the proposal from the companys

proxy material




